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The group's mission is to retain leadershin in cost-eifective
and profitable retzil operalions and to achieve significant
growth through emptoyee coniribution, innovative
differentiation, new business development, acquisition and
aggressive expansion, including expansion acress borders.

The company, which commenced trading in 1924, has been
listed on the JSE Limited since 1 January 1941 and is regarded
as one of the foremost independent chain siore groups in the
country. The company’s success is strongly diiven by its
desire to provide the right merchandise to the respective
target markets of all its trading divisions, and its skilk in
achieving this abjective has resuled in a successful irack
record. The Foschini group believes that teamwork coupled
with professicnalism in all aspects of retailing will continue
to be the foundation for the future.

« the mainienance of ils integrily by being honest. open and
ethical in all its dealings;

e a commitment to providing “exceeding service” Lo
customers, and giving ihem value for monsy;

« the treaiment of people with dignity and respect, ensuring
a supportive and encouraging environment;

« the belief in equal opportunity and devefopment for all, and
{air reward to people according to respansibility. effort and
performance; and

« the commitment to a seH-crilical professionalism, with
visible and consistent standards and a constan! search for
performance improvement,




corporate profile

The Group

Foschini Limited has the following operating divisions:

Retail: Foschini, branded as Foschini, Donna-claire, Fashionexpress and Luella « Markham « Exact! » The Sporis division,
branded as Sportscene, Tolalsports and DueSouth « The Jewellery division, branded as American Swiss, Matrix and
Sterns « @home, branded as @home and @homelivingspace « TFG Apparel Supply Company and FG Financial Services.

External Financial Services "RCS Group”: RCS Personal Loans « RCS Cards « RCS Private Label Cards and RCS Home Loans.

The retail givisions retall clothing, jewellery, accessories, casmetics, sporting and oudoor apparel and equipment and
homeware to the broad, middle-income group throughout southern Africa, mainly as a credil retailer. The ratio of cash
sales to total turnover approximates 36%.

The external linancial services division provides a range of broader financial services to customers of the group and

to customers of unrelated retailers.

B FOSCHINI

A destiration of choice for women
seeking fashionable, current
apparel and tootwear, offering
good value, in an environment
that is modern and friendly.

donna-claire

rafmiIGN |W 31TLY 14-28

Otfering stylish fashion for larger
sized women.

fashionaxpress

A value tashion chain focusing on
the valve for money proposition.

Loctle

A range of ladies footwear, hand-
bags and accessaries aimed at the
middle to upper middle market,

exact!

Accessible fashion for everybody
offering consistent quality and
reassuring af{ordability with
focused ranges that are easy 1o
dress up or down.

STERNS

— THE JEWELLER —

A trusted jeweller offering stylish
jewellery for special occasions,
with an emphasis on gentle
sophistication, sincerity, emotional
warmth and romance.

AMERICANSWISS

TOU DESERVE [T

The teading contemporary Jewellery
retailer offering new and exciting
merchandise for the aspirational,
confident indlvidual.

MATRIX

Sunglasses + Cell phones

Strong [ifestyle odentation providing
branded accessorles almed at a
generally younger customer.

Markham’

Interaationally inspired mens-
wear of great quality ang value,
suitable for all occasions and daily
experiences.

A modern, hi-tech, outdoor lifestyle
and adventure destinatlon offering a
comprehensive and fashionable range
of the tatest brands and product
innovation,

sportscene

Provides the street-wise active youth
in search of a more defined Identity, a
unlque biend of freesport brands and
urban style in their own environment.

Thtlcnnpre
Y HNYRV/ (YIS

Top of mingd sportswear destination
giving the everyday athlete the inspira-
tion to compete and perfarm by offering
a range of intemational sports brangs.

@home

Tul nddiwanf sTaet

Fashionatie merchandise covering the
Eat, Slaep, Bath, Cook and Live categories
for the disceming homeowner.

@homelivingspace

Offering design-conscious consumers
a comprehensive range of affordable
contemporary furniture,
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financial highlights and share performance

Financiai Statistics and Targets
Megizm-term
target
Operating margin (%) 24,0
ROE &%) 35,0
Current ratio (tlmes)
Debt equity ratio {%) 40,0
Finance charge cover (limes)
Number of stores 1600
Square melres 500 000
Stock tum
— Jewellery
- @home
— other
Financial Highlights
% change
Retall iumover (Am) 6.1
Operating profit belore finance charges fm) 1.0
Profit before tax Rm) 0.2
Headling eamings (Rm) 08
Profit attributable to equity holders of Faschini Limited (Rm) 08
Total shareholders’ interest {Rm) 06
€amings per ortfinary share* (cents) 24
Headline eamings per ordinary share® (cents) 24
Tangible net asset value per ordinary share*” (cents) 4.1
Dividend per share {cents) — interim 18,0
Dividend per share {cents) — final -
Dividend per share (cenis) — totat 6,7
Market capitatisation {Rm} {44.3

Gross number of shares In Issue {millions)
Net number of shares in issue (millions)
Closing USS conversion rate

Average US$ conversion ralg

* based on B weighted average number of shares In issus
= based on be net actual member of shares in issug

£ + Foschini Group Annual Report 2008

248
29,6

23

36,2
159
1393
403 601

2,21
2
KWl

2007

26,1
25

31

188
18,0
1332
380 615

218
243
320

72300
1887.0
17823
11192
11182
38236
534,2
9342
1789,4
100,0
170.0
270,0
166134
240,5
2120
7,30
7,06




Retail Turnover

@ Foschini @ Markham @@ Exact! @ Sports division
@ Jewellery division @) @home

Share Performance

Market price per share {cents)

— at year-end

- highest

~ lowest

- average

Number of shares in issue (millions}

Number of beneficial shareholdings
Pricefearnings ratio at year-end

Dividend yield

Number of shares traded during the year {millions)
Volume traded/number of shares in issue (%)
Market capitalisation (R millions)

2008 ©o2007

Rm % change Am

Foschini division 55 29118

Markham 46 11383

Exact! 36 682,6

Sports division 84 1062,4

Jewellery division 6.7 10225

@home 1.1 4124

61 72300
2007 2006 2005 2004
6910 5826 3555 1995
7101 5995 4100 2140
4040 5825 1775 1070
5427 5880 2 630 1724
2405 2405 2405 2405
5349 5303 5349 3960
1294 0.9 9,88 8,41
35 31 35 32
2733 156,8 178.0 1492
1136 65,2 74.0 62,0
166184 140114 8549,7 47979

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 = 3




corporot@
structure

FOSCHINI

FOSCHINT LIMITED

DIRECTORATE ’
Foschini Limited

sy

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

OPERATING BOARD
Foschini Group of Companies

operations I

services

Group Finance and Administration
Group Audit Services
Foschinidata
Group Logistics
Human Resources
Group Services
Group Property

* AR disions are wholly owned, with the exception
of the extemal financlal senvices division, in witich -
The Standard Bank of South Alrica Limited (SESA}




turnover and stores
by geographic regions

Foschini Limited 2008 2007
Number Tumover Number Tumover
of stores Rm of stores Rm
Botswana § T 208
Eastern Cape 100 . 5448
Free State % 4118
Gauteng 828 . 2nle
KwaZulu-Natal ‘j=_’1gg .+ - 9063
Limpopo R :33?:6-
Mpumalanga 8¢ | 8827
Namibia T || 1837
North West 75 329,1
Northem Cape T 48 T 1584
Swaziland 4 97
Western Cape 301 “152489
1332 72300
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five yearly review 1982 — 2008

Mil.ons of Rancs

p 0
1982 1987 2003 2008 1963 1838 2003

Equity attributable to equity holders of Foschini Limited Number of stores

Willions 01 Rancs 630y Cenmis i

103.3
15.5 _32.37

1982 1987 1693

Attributable samings Earnings per share*

* Comaarative higures have besn restated in terms of the Mereased rumber of thires
& issue resulting from sub-chvisisns ind capitafisation issues. Where epplicable,
RuTENpS 2r¢ shown befory extraonEnary/eacepliona] s,

Mill ans ot Racs .
From 2000, ezmings are Sased on e weighted average number of cheres in lssus.

1953 1998 2003 2008

Retail turnover

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 = 7
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gQroup statistics

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Years ended 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1899
Profitability
Retail umover (Rm) 72300 64321 52793 44100 36806 32899 29805 26465 25143
Operailng profit before finance charges (Rm) 18870 15673 12048 8146 5820 3485 2027 IN7 W78
Profit attnbutabie to equity holders of
Foschini Limited (Rr) 11192 9869 7670 5169 3595 1999 160 2333 2.2
Headline eamings (Rm) 11192 9869 7670 5234 348 2030 1191 2333 211.2
Balance sheet
Non-current assets (Rm} 21604 15365 14979 10966 7947 OG5 11077 8056 8008
Current assets (Rm) 46233 43118 34221 27841 26306 21206 17813 17972 15176
Totaf assets (Rm) 67837 58483 49200 38907 33853 30861 28880 26028 213184
Tota! shareholders' interest (Rm) 38236 32679 24968 22914 20770 18301 17751 17957 15443
Mingrity interest (Rm) 1813 889 16,0 0.3 5,1 86 - - -
Non-current liabilifies Rm) 12824 10642 10386 5545 5147 6252 5993 3762 3247
Cuyrent liabiiities (Rm) 14964 14273 13686 10347 7885 6222 5146 4709 4404
i Total equity and liabitities (Rrm) 67837 584863 49200 38907 33853 30861 28890 26028 23184
Cash flow statement
Cash flows from operating activities (Rm) 933 (97,3 867 2899 2883 1214 66.1 1590 279
Czsh fiows from investing activities Rm) 1zn 515 (65,7 {1873 (1551) (1666 (3703 436 {45.3)
Cash fiows trom financing activities ) 200 721 860 {1006) {1328 46,7 3822 B38 (2364
Net (decrease) increase in cash (Rm) 6,6 %3 70 20 c4 15 48,1 1188 9.8
Cash at the beginning of the year (Rm) 62,5 36,2 292 212 %8 1753 1272 84 18.2
Cash al the end of the year Rm) # 69,1 62,5 362 232 272 1768 1753 1272 B4

# The figures from 1999 bb 2002 comprise cash and cash equivalents. whereas thoss from 2003 orwards comprise cash only,

Performance measures/ratios

Tumaver growth (%) 124 28 197 136 18,0 104 126 53 48
Operating margin (%) %1 243 228 185 150 108 68 126 134
Debt equity ratio {%) 18,8 16,2 127 40 B6 173 151 30 -
Total liabilities to shareholders’ inferest flimes) 073 0,76 096 069 0,63 068 063 0.48 050
Curent ratio (times} 31 30 25 a7 33 34 39 38 34
Headline eamings per ordinary share (HEPS) (cents}' 5342 4630 3596 2371 162.2 87.9 50,1 100 91,2
Change in HEPS (%) 154 288 51,7 46,2 845 754 (50.0) 8.8 10,2

2100 2200 640 940 56,0 3o 180 35:0 173
17894 15234 11650 10390 78 8034 736 7528 660
166184 140114 85497 47979 25733 16811 11905 31961 29174

Dividends declared per ordinary share (DPS) icents}
Tangible net asset value per ordinary share (cents)
Market capitalisation (Rm)

Notes
When an accounting policy has been changed, comparative figures have been restated in accordance with the new policy.

" Up o 1999, compera‘ive figures were restated in iems of the increased number of shases in kssue resuttng from sub-chisions and capriaisation issues
From 2000, this figure has been calculated wsing the weighted average nexmber of shares In tssue, without restatement of prod year figuees.

8 « Foschini Group Annual Report 2008




Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries
Years ended

Statistics

Number of ordinary shares in issue (milfions) 2405
Numbes of ardinary shares on which headting

eamings per share & calcutated (millions) 2063
Net rumber of ordinary shares on which net asset

value per share is caiculated {millions) 204.6
Number of stores 1293
Floor area (gross square metres) 40} 601

2006 2005 2004 2003 202 2N 2000 1999

2405
29,5
2120

1332
380615

2405 2405 2405 2405 2405 405 2BH S
231 N33 207 249 W0 A8 W2 25
126 218 184 236 2263 2405 22 2315

1273 1233 1197 1188 1185 1207 1088 1069
354747 334662 323450 317381 30166 309188 272152 2603N

Foschinl Group Annual Report 2008 « @







definitions

Credit transactions ~ RCS Group
Comprises all lcan advances and card purchases for the year under review

Credit transattions - retail
VAT inclusive credit reizil tumover and income from sundry credit services

Current ratio
Current assets divided by current liabilities

Debt equity ratio
Interest-bearing debt reduced by preference share investment and cash,
expressed as a percentage of capilal and reserves

Doubtful debt provision as a % of debtors' book
Provision for doutrtful debts expressed as a percentage of gross receivables

Gross square metres
Comprises the total leased store area including stockrooms

Headline eamings
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders adjusied for the effect, after
tax, of exceptional items

Headline earnings per ordinary share
Headline earrings divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue
for the year

LsM

Refers to the SAARF Universal Living Standards Measure which is a unique
means of segmenting the South African market by dividing the popufation into
10 LSM groups, 1 {lowest) to 10 (highes).

Market capitalisation
The market price pes share at the year-end multiplled by the number of
ordinary shares in issue at the year-end

Net bad debt and provision movement
VAT-exciusive bad debts including provision movement, net of recoveries

Net bad debt write-otf — retall

VAT-inclusive bad debis, net of recoveres and excluding movement in
provision

Net bad debt write-off ~ RCS Group

VAT-exclusive bad debts, nel of recoveries and excluding movement in
provision

Net bad debt write-off as a % of credit transactions

Net bad debt wrile-off expressed as a percentage of credi transactions

Net bad debt write-off as a % of debtors’ hook
Net bad debt write-off expressed as a percentage of gross receivables

Same store
Stores which have traded for the full current and previous financial years out
of the same trading area

Tangible net asset value per ordinary share
Total net asset value, after minorties, excluding goodwil! and intangible
assets, divided by the net number of ordinary shares in issue at the year-end

Operating margin
Operating profit before finance charges expressed as a percentage of relail

Refer table below fumover

Average

manihly

household

income
Popu'ation % Population % Population % Poputation % Population i)

SAARF Living Standarts Measure LSM)" 2007 2003 2005 2006 2007 2007
LSM 1 1 287 000 93 16 61 41 1058
LSM 2 3034 000 131 122 12,2 9.8 1261
LSM 3 3 366 000 144 130 12,6 108 1613
LSM 4 4296 000 14,0 148 149 138 2022
LSM 5 4 516 000 128 135 135 145 2903
M6 5379 000 13,2 145 14,4 17,3 4723
LSM7 2 885 000 65 71 78 93 7579
LSM 8 2 096 000 59 52 57 6,7 10015
LSM ¢ 2353000 5% 64 6.7 76 13507
LSM 10 1 898000 5.1 55 6.0 6, 20278

* Source: SARRF AMPS 2005 - 2007

Foschini Group Anttual Report 2008 « 11
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Overview

The redall sector in South Africa has experienced substantial growth in the
1ast six years, with consumer spending being extremely strong. This began
10 change for our group in June 2007 as the retail cycle started to move
downwards.

The advance in profit achieved by our group this year was more modest
than In the previous six years, with headline earnings per share increasing
by 2,4% and dituted headfine eamings per share increasing by 4,5%. This
reflects the more difficult trading environment which prevaited, particulary
in the credit non-durabies sector,

Nevertheless, having regard to our very strang batance shee! and the
satistactory level of ongoing cash flow, we have maintalned our final
dividend at 170,0 cents per share. This means that the total dividend for
the year has been increased by 6,7% to 288.0 cents per share.

Economy and operating environment

A combination of a possible recession in the USA, global equity market
volatility, high interest rates, implementation of the Nationa! Credit Act, fuel
price increases and food inflation have collectively created a mood of
negativity amony South Alrican consumers as they enler a lean year after
a period of refatively plenty. This is nof the first time that there has been a
bleak outlook in the retail industry which happens each time our economy
arjusts from an overheated position back {0 more reasonable levels. [t has
happened bstore and undoubtedty will happen again. | am confident that
in the medium term, our economy has the strength and resilience to
recover and continue to grow. Internally, we have taken strong measures
to ensure that our stakeholders have good reason to retain their
confidence in the group.

The prime Interest rate has increased to 15,0%. There Is reason 1o hope that
it will start declining from the middle of next year. This should once again
allow consumer sentiment to become positive and spending to resume al a
greater rate than cumently.

There is, however, risk that CPIX inflation will remain outside the Reserve
Bank’s inflation target range in the forthcoming year, and this coutd delay
the inevitable reduction in interest rates.

16 « Faschini Group Annual Report 2008
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chairman’s report

fliot Gsein

We are concemed that if the Reserve Bank only uses interest rates as its
tool to achieve its inflation target, the inevitable increase in interest rates
could have the effect of serlousty harming our economy.

Even though household debt as a percentage of total dispasable income
has risen {0 a new record high of 77%, the ratio of household debl-
servicing costs to disposable income remains manageable at around
9,5%, which compares favourably to historical ratics.

Infrastructural development spending will gather pace this year, but shor-
{erm investment spending in the private sector may be placed on hold until
confidence in the outiook for household demand and for fowered interest
rates is restored.

Our next financial year is likely to be one of considerable political Ruidity.
The African National Congress’ confesence in December 2007 settled
many issues, but left others open, with much remaining unclear.

Staff and directors

Our group's greatest asset continues to be its excellent management. To
ensurg that this situation continues in the years ahead, we pay
cansiderable attention 1o retention and succession planning in all facets of
our business.

Doug Murray was appointed as Group CEQ on 1 January 2008, Doug has
been with our group for 22 years, the past eight as Retail Director whh al

outstanding retaifer wha has a wide knowledge of all aspects of the group
and thus he has picked up the reins quickly and defily and | am confident
that he will steer the group to new heights in the future.

Leslie Bergman resigned as a director of Foschinl Limited on 14 April 2008.
Lestie had been a director since 2002 and we thank him for the role he
played during this tims.

Community responsibility

We remain commitled to achieving a balance between economic
performance and the part we can and must play for our society and the
community In which we operate. We are mindful of the critical role that
busliness has to play in the upfiftment of the community and for this reason
we continue 1o invest in the devetopment of society. We make charitable
donations to more than 100 national and local non-govemmental
organisations, with our primary focus areas being education; skills
development; arts, culture and the environment; special projects and
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combating HIV/AIDS, with specific emphasis on women and children,
Full details of our CSI endeavours are covered in the sustainability repart
in this document,

Transformation

Our transformation committee, with myself as chalrman, has the task of
driving the group’s broad-based black economic empowerment (BEBEE)
strategy ino the future. Qur varipus internal transformation sub-
committees tackle, on a daily basis, the various issues underlying BBBEE
in orger 10 ensure that our group plays its aghtful role in the advancement
of historically disadvantaged communities. In the financial Mail's Top
Empowerment Companies Report of 2008, our group hag once again
fared well.

Governance

The directors consider responsible corporate govemance to be integral to
the success of the group and our commitment to it i outlined in our
corpocate governance report, which appears elsewhere in this document.

Assessment starts at the top with a comprehensive annual peer review
of the pedormance of all board directors. The board’s various sub-
committees, which cover the fields of audit, remuneration, risk,
nominations and transformation, keep ongoing observation of all
significant factors within thefr purview. The group has formutated and
abides by a code of ethics which includes a set of clear goals to achieve
in its relationships wilh customers, suppliers, stalf, the general public and
the communities among which we operate, The increasingly complex field
of compliance with the laws and regulations governing our businesses is
another among the many issues on the govemance agenda.

Locking ahead

Consumers are facing lesting times as the economy slows down and
inftation rises. These clrcumstances will have an inevitable impact on the
group, but nevertheless all our divisions remain, in all respects, in good
shape. Gverall, in attempting to maintain or improve our performance, the
group will be reliant on achieving good tumaver levels while tightly
containing costs.

The strategies which the group has devised and which i is now
implementing %o retain and grow its market position and its profitability are
multi-faceted, but the following deserve special mention:

* we have been cauticys in the past in the opening of new stores, and

whilst this remains our approach, there are certain of our formats §

which are ready for further roll-out and we anticipate opening in
excess of 100 new stores in the year ahead;

= our supply chain initiative, designed to improve lead times and cut
distrbution costs, has reached the point where implementation is
already occurdng and benefits can be expetied to be derived
progressively as it evolves; and

= credit sales, as well as interest cevenue are likely to be boosied by
providing customers with a 12-month account as an alternative to the
curren! 6-month option.

In addition, the performance of our retall deblors’ book appears to be far
betier than the norm in the retail industry, demonstrating the value of our
conservative credit extengion policies of the past.

The 2009 financial year will undoubtedly be a tough year, but al the same
lime we are well placed to maximise the benefits of any uptum in the
economy, therefors making our group even stionger for the future.

Thanks
On behalf of my board | wish to extend appreciation and tharks to:

¢ all employees for their continued excellent performance during the year,

e our customers for their continued and growing support;

= our shareholders for their continued confidence in the group;

* our suppliers, agvisers angd business associates for their co-operation
and contribution to the continued growth of the business; and

* my fellow directors for their ever ready support, guidance and
valuable input.

Eiot Osrin
Chaimnan

11 June 2008
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Group overview

In last year's annual report we indicated that the year to 31 March 2008
would be one of the most difficult that the group would experience for
many years.

This year has been a tale of two halves, While trading condilions in the first
hall were challenging, the group nevertheless achieved acceptable
pariormance in this period, with retail turnover increasing by 8,8% and
headline eamings per share Increasing by 12,2%. The tempo of business
started to slow considerably towards the end of June and the second half
of the year proved to be difficutt, with tumover growth of 3,7% and a
reduction in headline eamings per share of 4,0%. For the year as a whole
tumaver was up 6,1% aver the previous year while headiine eamings per
share increased by 2,4%. Diluted headling eamings per share were up
45%.

Prior to the infroduction of the National Credit Act (NCA) our group adopted
a conservative approach to the opening of new pre-approved accounts,
thus opening far fewer accounts than our major competitors and other
credit providers. Whilst this negatively affected the level of our retail
twrnover, it seems thal il was the correct strategy for cument econgmic
conditons, as it has resulted in our group entering these more chatlenging
times with a healthy retail deblors’ book, in contrast to what appears to be
happening in the credit industry.

The businesses in which we trade are cyclical in nature and after our
previous six years of above-average compound growth in eamings it was
inevitable that a slowdown would ocour. 1t is still not known how long and
how severe the current downtum is [ikely to be. However, the group is
positioned as favourably as pessible 1o weather any downtum and emerge
stronger than ever o continue our above-average growth when the
economy tums. All our divisions are in good shape, with strategies in place
to contend with difficult times, with no areas requiring additional corrective
action or restructuring. The retail debtors' bock Is mareaver performing
well in the current climate, in contrast to what appears to be taking place
in the wider economy. The emphasis next year will be on cost confainment
to levels appropriate to expected trading activity, whilst continuing with
strategic inittatives to ensure above-average growth in the fulurs.
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Trading environment

Having approached his year with a good deal of caution, the group had
an acceptable first six months, The second half tumed out to be difficult,
particutarty from the end of June, after the introduction of the NCA,
A combination of the consequences of the NCA, interast rates which have
been increased nina times since June 2006, frequent petrol price hikes
and sbove-average food Infiation, has considerably dampened the
economy and placed severg constraints on the budgets of most South
African consurmers.

In the last annual report, issued at the end of May 2007, we expressed
the view that the interest rate cycie was at or very close to its peak and
that interest rates might be expected to start declining towards the end of
the 2008 financial year. inflation has however been higher than
aniicipated, with the result that the Reserve Bank continued to increase
interest rates. The prime overdraft rate is now 15,0% and the outlook for
interest rates is still unclear, There is potential for further increases,
particularty as the inflation numbers have not stabilised, and as maters
now stand we do not see interest rates starting to decline before the
middle of 2009.

The consumer environment is likety to deteriorate still further before it
starts to improve and we are under no llusions about trading conditions,
which we expsct (o be chatlenging in the next financial year.

Areas of particular concern ta the group in the next year are the rate of
gxchange of the Seuth African currency and expected inflation in the price
of merchandise coming from China, both of which have the potential to
cause greater inflation in our product supply iine than we have seen for
many years.

In addition, the electrical power outages currently being experienced
throughout the country may continue. Whilst our head office and
distribution centres are not affected, as they are covered by backup power
generators, our stores in shopping centres are nol able to trade as there
is insufficlent Nighting in these centres. Discusslons are presently under
way with our major landlords in order to provide adequate lighting and
some sort of airflow into shopping centres when the power is down, and
it remains 10 be seen whather these discussions will be successful.
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report

Financial performance

Whilst the group's detalled financial performance for the year is described
in the Francial Director's report, | would ke fo drow attention to the
following:

= gperating margin was 24,8%, close to our record of 26,1%;

= net profit before tax in excess of R1,7 billion,

« the final dividend being maintained at 170,0 cents per share;

* good performance from gur retail deblors’ book; and

e the group's return on equity ot 29,6%.

Trading performance

Al our divisions performed satsfactorily in the first half of the year, but
since mid-June trading conditions have become difficull. Product inflation
averaged approximately 4% for the year. Sales and sates growth in the
various divisions were as [ollows:

Hetall

Number turnover %

of stores Rm Change
@home 458,0 1.1
Exact! 707,2 36
Foschini division 30705 55
Jewetery division 1080,7 8.7
Markham 11809 6.5'
Sports divisign 11514 8.4
Tota! 76687 61

* Growih exchudes the discontinued RIL brand.

Total same stare turnover for the year grew by 2,2%, wilh apparel growing
2.2%. cosmetics 6,6% and Jewellery 3,5%. Homeware declined by 0,3%
and cellphones by 0,7%.

Cash sales as a percentage of totat sales increased from 33,3% to
36.4%.
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The @home division continued to expand, increasing its number of shores
10 61 during the year and growing ils temover by 11,1% to R458,0 million.
Trading results were encouraging at the three @homelivingspace stores
and the number of these stores will be expanded over the next two years
to ten. In an extremety competitive sector this division's same store results
showed a decline of 0,3%.

| Exact!, which has a lower LSM customer base than most ef the group’s
I trading divisions, traded marginally worse than expectation, yielding
growth in tumover of 3,6% and same store growth of 1,7%. Customers
with limited disposable income bought lzss than had been expected in the
summer season and it was necessary lo take more markdowns than
planned.

Of the division's total tumover, 44% is generated in shopping malls as
oppased to high streets and rural areas and this percentage will continue
to increase with planned store expansion.

The Foschini division achieved turnover growth of 5,5% and
unsatisfactory same store growth of 1,2%. Particular emphasis s belng
placed on the Foschini stores business and the results of this focus should
become evidend in the forthcoming summer season, The Donna-claire and
Fashionexpress brands ¢ontinued to trade satisfacterly and are now well
established in the marketplace. Both of these brands are under-
represented and will be actively expanded in the next year.

The jewetlery division, comprising American Swiss Jewellers, Sterns and
Mairix, perfoarmed better than expected with tumover growth of 6,7% and
same store growth of 3,.3%. The divisien remains the dominant player in
the mass middle market jewellery sector, It has been severely impacted by
the increasa in the gold price and by movements in the rand/dollar rate of
exchange, the combined effect of which has been an increase of more
than 30% in the input gold price during the year. This required proactive
planning to ensure that the product mix was adjustec to soften the impact
on price points.

The Markham division, which had a disappeinting first half, traded more
successtully tn the second half and achieved fummover growth of 6,6% for
the full year. Same store growth was 3,4%. The repositioning exercise
undertaken in the past few years towards a younger and more tashipnable
customer is now beginning 10 bear tull and its new “Markham Relay®
casual range format has been well received in the marketplace.

The sports division, trading as Totalsports, Sportscene and DueSouth,
iraded satisfactorily and achieved tumover growth of 8,4% and same
store growth of 3,7%. Ongoing focus remains en gaining maximum
benefit from the Wordd Gup 2010, where the division is the pariner of
chaoice for some of the major brands.
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chief executive officer’'s report continued

b

FG Financial Services, the retail debtors’ book, which amounts 1o
A2,4 billion, grew by 8,0% during the year, Because of the group's
conservative approach {0 new account openings before the
implementation of the NCA, the performance of the debtors™ book
continues to be satisfactory. Net bad debt as a percentage of credit
transactions Increased marginally from 3,0% to 3,5% and net bad debt as
a percentage of the closing debtors' book increased from 7,4% to 8,3%.
During the next financial year, in ine with current market practice, we will
provide customers with a 12-month account as an alternative to the
current §-month option, This should positively impact our interest revenue
as well as retall tumover.

RCS Group

The RCS Group provides 8 range of broader financial services to
customers of the group and also 1o customers of unrelated retatters. This
group consists of two separate business units, namely Transactional
Finance and Fixed Term Finance. At present the Transactiona! Finance
business comprises the RCS genesal-purpose card and other private tabel
card programmes. The Fixed Term Finance business comprises RCS
Personal Loans and RCS Home Loans. The diision experienced a
chaltenging year having been affected by the introduction of the NCA,
which resufied in & reduction in the number of new loans advanced and
accardingly a reduction in the loan receivables beok. Net bad debt and
provisions increased significantly in line with current market trends. Profit
before tax for the year reduced fram R322,7 million to R269,6 million,
Loan advances to customers following the year-end will remain tightly
contralled, though an increase in advances and profitability in this divislon
is anticipated. ACS is in the process of acquiring the consumer credit
division of Massdiscounters, which is awaiting final Competition
Cornmission approval, The group's shareholding in the division has been
55% from 1 Agril 2007, with the balance being held by The Standard Bank
of South Africa Limited.

Strategy

§ The strategic tocus across our divisions is to improve our customers’
experience through targeted expansion of our slore base and by
constantly developing cur merchandise offering to meet owr customers’
needs,

A key element of the group's strategy Is to optimise the efficlency of
its supply chain, ensuring that lead times In ordering, acquiring and
distributing stock are reduced to the minimum, In consu'tation with an
external consuitant the group set up its supply chaln project durng the
year to deal with supplier relationships, replenishment and merchandise

pipelines. This will rasult In improved lead times and increased stock
tums, ensuring our ability to be first to market with key products, whilst at
the same time reducing overheads. The benefits of this initiative will take
time to make their impact, but a good start has been mads.

Strategies of the individual divisions are referred to In the divisional review
section of this report.

Prospects

In the last number of years we have been cautlous in the opening of new
stores. Whilst this remains our approach, there are certain of our formats
which are ready for further roll-out and accordingly we anticipate opening
in excess of 100 new siores in the year ahead.

Retait tumaver for the first ten weeks of the new (inancial year remains
difficuit. Budgeted costs for the new year have been curtailed to levels
appropriate to the expected turnover. Notwithstanding the downtum in
the economy, all the trading divisions are in good shape which places
the group in good siead to weather the current consumer downiurm,
although we are mindful of the unceriain and challenging macroeconomic
emvironment.

Thanks

Having been appointed as CEO on 1 January 2008, | was aware that{ was
taking over the position in difficult times. | have had fremendous support
from my cofleagues, for which | thank them. | look forward to working with
them to steer the group to new heights and achieving much with them in
future years.

Thanks are extended lo the group’s 15 000 staff members for their
contributions to its development and success. | extend my sincere
appraciatlon to each and every one of them,

Thanks are also due to all the members of the board for their wisdom,
guidance and direction.

To gur sharehotders, | extend thanks for thelr suppon of the group. | trust
that their loyalty wi) continua to be rewarded.

Finally, I would like to express the group's appreciation to our suppfiers,
advisers, corporate stakeholders and customers for their contributions to
the group’s activilies and its successes.

Doug Murray
CEQ

11 Jung 2008
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Qverview

This year was a difficult year tor our group. The first half of the
year, whilst ¢hallenging, produced acceptable performance with
retail turmover growth of 8,8% and headline eamings per share
increasing by 12,2%. The second half became extremely difficult,
particularty from the third week of June after the introduction
of the NCA. This, together with above-average food inflation,
substantial petral price ikes and Interest rates which have now
increased nine times since June 2006, have increased the cost of
living of the average South African consumer, which has taken its
toll on the semi-durable retai] sector. Second-half turnover grew by
3,7% with a reduction in headline eamings for the half of 4,0%.

For the year as a whole retail turnover increased by 6,1% to
A7,7 billion. Headline eamings per share increased by 2,4%
5470 cents, whilst diluted headline earnings per share
increased by 4,5% to 538,0 cents. The compourded annual
growth in headline eamings per share over the pasl seven years
is 40,7%.

The key financia! indicators for the year are as follows and are
discussed in more detail elsewhere in this report.
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Ronnie tein

Medium-
term

Key performance indicators 2008 target 2007
Tumaver (Rm) 72300
Turnaver growth 146%
Gross margin 420%
QOperating margin 24% 26,1%
Profit before tax (Rm) 17823
Profit after tax (Rm) 11920
Headfine eamings per share
(HEPS) {cents) 534,2
HEPS growth 15,4%
Diluted headline eamings per
share (HEPS) (cents) 5148
Diluted HEPS growth 14,5%
Dividend per ordinary share {cents) 2700
Dividend per ordinary share growth 22,7%
Return an average equity 5% 125%
Gearing 40% 18.8%
Net asset value per share {cents) 17894
Net asset value per share growth 17,5%
Stock turn (limes)
- jewellery 218
- @home 243
— other 320

Accounting policies and standards

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with the
requirements of the South African Companles Act. The principal
accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the previous year,
except for the increased disclosurs requirements of {(FRS 7: Financial
Instruments.

The group reclassilied certain balance sheet items in order to achieve
improved disclosure.

Further information regarding restatements can be found in note 36.
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Income statement
Retail tumover

Retail tunoves of R7,7 billion increased by 6,1% on the previous year,
Same store tumover for the year grew by 2,2%. As is usual in more
difficult times our cash tumover growth of 16,1% outpaced credit turnover

growth of only 1,1%.

Retail turmover by
merchandise category

Clothing
Jewellery
Celiphones

Cosmetics
Homeware and fumniture

Totat

2008 2007 %
Rm Rm growth
47274 55

9441 70

706.8 21

4357 12,1

416,0 105

72300 6.1

The poorest performing merchandise category was cellphones with
turnaver growth of 2,1% after its frenetic growth in the past few years,
There has been a lack of new generation phones this year which we feel

has reduced the churn factor.

Surprising on the upside was the level of jewellery turmover as histarically,
when the economy gets lough, lwury geods tend to suffer mere than

other products.

Homeware and furniture, as well as cosmetics, performad reasonably well
with double digit turnover growth, whilst ciathing turnover grew by 5,5%.

Overall product inflation for the year was approximately 4%.

% Same

Retail turnover 2008 %  swore Number % Space
by division Rm Growth growth of stores  growth
@home 11 0.3 61 8.1
Exact! 6 17 182 28
Fosching division 55 1,2 400 6,3
Jeweltery division 6.7 a3 328 2.2
Markham 66 34 201 53
Sports division 8.4 37 2 10,2
Total 6,1 22 1393 6.0
* Growih extiudes the dsconttnued RJL, brand,
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Prior to the introduction of the NCA our group adopled a
conservative approach to the opening of pre-approved accounts,
having opened far fewer new accounts than other credit
providers in the country. This negatively affected the level of our
retait wmover for the year, although it has resulted in our group
entering these more difficult times with a healthy retail deblors’
book in contrast to what appears to be happening in the wider
economy. The percentage of account holdars at the year-end who
were able to purchase was 82,0%, almost identical to the 82,1%
in the previous year.

Trading area in the first six months of the year grew by 3,2% and
for the year reached a total of 6,0% growth.

During the year, cash sales as a percentage of total sales once
again increased to 36,4% from 33,3%.

Our gross margin decreased by 0,4% from 42,0% to 41,6%.
Cur budgeted input margins remained constant and afthough
we had budgeted stock levels conservatively for Christmas,
Christmas trading was softer than expected resulting in
marginally higher markdowns. Markdowns as a percentage of
turnover increased from 12,5% last year lo 13,9% this year.

Gross margin treng analysis

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
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financiol director's report continued

Interest received

Interest received increased by 20,4% fo &1 0564 million from
R877.4 million primarily due te the growth in all the deblors’ books, with
the exceplion of the loans book which declined, combined with higher
interest yields on all debtors” books.

Expenses
Expenses belore bad debts were well controlted at 12.8%.

Depreciation and amorlisation grew by 17,6% reflecting the costs
assaciated with new stores as well as enhanced IT systems.

Employment costs of R1 120,0 milken are our group's biggest operating
cosi and Increased by 16,1% over the previous year. The increase in these
costs is due to normal stafl salary inCreases which this year averaged
6,5%, as well as the appointmem of new staff to service new Store
openings. Included in these costs are restraint payments which are paid
1o ensure the retention of key staff. Restraint payments amounted to
R35,4 millior and we now have in excess of 60 of our key executives
covered by four-year restraints. There shoutd be minima! restraint payments
paid in the next four years. This year, ng Incentive bonuses were paid to
staft as performance largets were not met. The FRS 2 share option charge
this year amounted to R30,7 million, whilst an amount of R19,2 mifion was
recognised as an gxpense last year,

Store occupancy costs, the group’s second largest operating cost,
increased by 12,1% to R583,5 milion, and as a percentage of sales
increased to 7,6% from 7,2% last year. The increase in this cost is due
malnly to the opening of new stores. During Lhe year 76 new stores were
opened whilst 15 stores were closed. In addition 12 stores were enlarged
whist 14 were relocated. This year an amount 77,7 milion was charged
to slore occupancy costs, exactly the same amount as in the prior year in
order to comply with 1AS 17: Leases.

Net bad debt and movement in provisions In our retail debtors™ book
increased by 15,7% to R217,2 millign, reflecting the healthy state of this
book. tn contrast the net bad debt and movement in provisions in the
RCS Group, which was more severely impacted by the NCA grew by
91,6% to R253,7 milion. More detail on the group's bad debl and
provisions is dealt with in the Finangial Services review etsewhere in this
report.

interest paid increased 1o R120,1 million from R104,7 million, of which
R97.7 milion refates directly (o the funding of the ACS Group. Included in
this amount is a reversal of an interest provision of R35,6 million which is

no longer required. This R35,6 million is a non-recuming income Rem
which in the current year i Dalanced by the non-recuring restraint
paymenis of R35,4 milion. The increase In interest pald Is due to the
increase in interest rates, as well as the increased capital requirements of
our group relating 10 new stores and receivables.

Income from associate

During the year our RCS subsidiary acquired a net 60% share in Effective
Intelligence, a data intefligence company and the income from assoclate
reflects our share of the profit of that company {or the year.

Profit before tax

Profit before tax marginally increased {rom the prior year to
R1 786,3 million. The group experienced a sharp downtum in turnover in
the last quarter of the financial year and although cost cutting measures
were Immediately introduced, they had little effect on this year, the full
impact of which will be evident next year. This resuffed in the group's
operating margin belng reduced to 24,8% from 26,1%, still however
above our medium-term target of 24%.

Taxation

The group's effective tax rate reduced from 33,1% to 32,5%. Further
details are contained in the notes 0 the Financial Statements.

Earnings

Headline eamings increased by 0,8% from R1 119,2 million to
R1 128,4 million, whilst headline eamings per ondinary share increased
from 534.2 cents per share to 547.0 cents per sharg, an increase of
2,4%. Headline eamings per share has been calkculated on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue of 206,3 million, down from
209,5 million in the prior year as a result of continued share buy-backs.

Dituted headiine eamings per share increased from 514,8 cenis to
538,0 cents, an increase of 4,5%.

The group's return on equity {ROE) of 29,6% remains at a satistactory
tevel, but is down on last years ROE of 32,5%. Our medium-term target
remains at 35%.

Dividends

Having regard to our strong balance sheet and cash fiow, we have
maintained our fina! dvidend at 170,0 cents per shane and together with
the interim dividend of 118,0 cants per shara, the total dividend for the
year of 288,( cents per share is 6,7% higher than the previous vear.
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financiol director's report continued

Balance sheet

The tangible net asset valug per share grew by 4,1% 10 1 862,7 cents per
sharg (2007: 1 789,4 cents). Total assets now amount to R7 074,4 milfion
and grew by 4,3%.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment increased by 8,4% to RB47,4 million from
last year's R782, 1 milion primarily due to:

« the opening of new siores, store enlargements and rafurbishments in
ling with our strategy to increase our total trading area; and

+ the infroduction of new IT systems.
Trade recelvables — retail

The group’s net retall trade receivables increased by 8.0% to
R2 414,9 millon on credit turnover growth of 1,1%. As mentloned
efsewhere in this report, prior to the introduction of the NCA our group
adopted a conservative approach to the opening of new pre-approved
accounts. Whilst this negatively affected the level of our retail tumover, it
has resufted in our group entering the next year with a healthy retail
debtors’ book. Net bad debt as a percentage of credit transactions
increased from 3,0% to 3,5%, which is a good performance in the
current economic climate. The key debtors' statistics are detailed in the
FG Financial Services section of this report.

There has been specutation regarding credit retaders divorcing their
financial services from their retail operations. ln our case, our retail
financial sarvices are an integral part of our business and we have no
intentlon of divorcing them from our retail business.

Inventory

Total inventory on hand decreased by 0,2% to R1 290.0 million from
R1 292.9 million. Inventory of merchandise for resale increased by 2,7%
to A1 227,5 million in ling with our stringent control on stock levels. The
group moves into the next financial year with a clean stock position. Stack
fums in our business need 1o be improved and are being addressed
through our supply chain initiative. Our stock tum in respect of jewellery
merchandise al 2,21 is satisfactory In terms of world benchmarks, whilst
the group’s stock turns on other merchandise categories fall well betow
wortd standards. Adequate provision has been made for markdowns,
shrinkage and inventory obsolescence.
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RCS Group

This division provides a range of broader financial services o both
customers of the group, as well a3 to customers of retailers outside the
group. This division experienced a challenging year, having been affected
by the introduction of the NCA, which resutted in a reduction in the number
of new loans advanced and accordingly a reguction in the loans receivable
book te R716,2 million from RB66,5 million.

fts privaie labe! card receivables hewever increased by 29.2% lo
R1 068,3 million from R826,7 million. The group'’s non-retail receivables
now toial R1 784,5 million, an increase of 5,4% over last year.

Prafit before tax reduced {rom R322,7 million 10 A269,6 milfion for the
year, with net bad debt casts and provisions increasing significantly in ling
with current market trends. The key deblors' statistics are detalled in the
ACS Group section of this report.

This division currently represents 15,1% of our group’s profit before tax,
reducing from last year's 18,1%.

Equity

The group’s aftributable equity increased to R3 8452 million from
A3 823,86 million, ransfating ins0 tangible net asset value of 1 862,7 cents
per share. During the year 12,5 million shares were repurchased al a cost
of A760,4 milion. At the financial year-end freasury shares held by

subsidiaries, including the share trust, amounted to 35,9 million shares,
representing 14,9% of the tota! issued shares.

Minority interest

The mincsity interest of R290,9 million relates 1o the minority shareholding
in the RCS Group. At the financlal year-end the group's sharehoiding in
this division was 55% with the balance being held by The Standard Bank
of South Africa Limited (SBSA).

Debt profile

Qur group's operations are financed primarily by means of its own cash
flow, as well as hanking facilities. This debt, offset by the group’s cash and
its “near cash” preference share investment of 8200 million, represents
net gearing of 36,2%, which is below the group's revised medium-term
objective of 40%.

R1.2 billion of the group’s debt relates directly to the funding of the
RCS Group, where the group’s facility is fixed at R750 million, the balance
being funded by SBSA. The SBSA funding is nol subject to any guarantee
or security from Foschini Lirnited or any of its subsidiaries, and accordingly
the debt is ring-fenced within the RCS Group.




0000000000000 OCOO0O00OCO0O0O0000OCOC0O0000000000GCGOC0O0O0O00CO0
0000000000000 O0O0O0O0O0O0O0OO0O0O00OO00OOO0C0OCOO0O0CO0O000OD0O0O0OO
0O0COOO0000O00COOO0O000OO0O0O0O00C00OCO0OC00O00OCO0O0O0000000O0OO0O0
OC0O000000000000000O0000000QO0O0COCOO00O000O00000CO0O000O0OO
IDOOCOO0O00O0O0O0QOOOOOOOOOCOOO0CO00000O00000CQOO00O0OO0O0O00COO
0000000 QC0O00CO0COO0D0OOO0C00O0O0O00O00O00COOOOOOLOOGOOO
NoNeNeNoNeNeNeNeNoRoNeNeNoNoNoRoNeNeNeNoRoNeNeNoNeNoNeNeNoNoNoNeNeNeNoNoRoNeNe e NoNoNoNoNo Je

Accordingly the group’s debt relating to the retail business is only
R298,7 million, which is equivatent 10 our usual month-end creditors’
payment. This year the March monih-end creditors’ payments amounting
1o R289,7 million were paid on the last day of the financial year, whilst in
the previous year, because the month-end occurred on a weekend, the
month-end credilors were paid after the year-end,

Having regard to the cusrent instability in financial markets, the group has
secured threg-year term funding of A700 millon which is aimost
equivalent 10 our agreed facility to the RCS Group. Thus, shoutd financial
markets deteriorate further, the group should not be impacted.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables reduced from R1 17,7 milllion to R741,B million.
It would thus appear that we have substantially paid down our creditors,
which is not the case. As atready mentioned, in the 2007 financial year,
March month-end irade creditors amounting to R286.,9 miflion were paid
on 2 April 2007, after the year-end, whilst these in respect of the current
year amounting to R289,7 million were paid prior 1o the year-end. Our
group’s policy af paying all suppliers 30 days from statement date remains
consistent with prior years.

Capital expenditure

Tota) capital expenditure for the year amounted to R274,4 million, most of
which retates to the opening of new stores and refurbishments, as well as
investment in IT systems. R27,1 million was incurred this year in respect
of the RCS Group's move Lo their new premises.

Oue to our continuing expansion in new stores, budgeted capital
expenditure for 2009 is R315 million.

Cash flow

Cash flows from operating activities Defore working capital changes
amounted to R1 074,2 million, marginally down on the previous year's
R1 187,9 million. There were larger working capital requirements during
the year primarily as a result of an increased investment in private label
card receivables of R241,6 million, as well as a reduction in rade and
other payables of R429,9 miltion which is due primarily ta timing of the
year-end trade creditors’ payments. Cash generaied by operations
amounted to R505,9 million.

The net cash outflow from investing activities amounted to R52,2 million
with investment of R274,4 million having been made in IT eguipment and
shopfitting.

included In cash inflows from financing activities are share purchases by
the share frust amounting to R760,4 milfion,

Bue 1o these outflows, interest-bearing debt increased by R741,8 million
which resulted, as menlioned previously, in our group's nel gearing
increasing to 36,2% from 18,8% last year.

Financial targats

Our group’s financial targets have been Included In the Financial
Hightights section of this annual report.

Ronnie Stein
Financial Dicector

11 June 2008
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2008 % change 2007

dﬁt‘gail oBisogno

Tumnover Foschini 36 2304
(Rmillion)  Fashionexpress 149 2798
Donna-claire 9.1 03,0
Luella 276 276
Total 55 29118
Number Foschini 1.9 207
of stores Fashionexpress 31 97
Donna-claire 70 94 64
Lueka 19 56 18
Total 400 6 386
Floor area  Foschind 138 553 6,2 130487
{grossm?)  Fashionexpress 29379 29 28 563
Donna-claire 18736 13,4 16 520
Luella 2759 47 2 636
Total 189 427 63 178206
Number of  Foschinl 4199 52 KR) ]
employees  Fashfonexpress 602 4,0 5719
Donna-clalre 471 6.6 442
Luella 117 5.4 1
Totat 5389 5.2 5123
* Nota: The comparative figees have been adfusied to take Into account a store
conversion from Foschini to Fashlonexpress.
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Foschini

Positioning

The Foschini division is the primary womenswear fashion division
in the group. K comprises the following four chains:

Foschini

The stores in this chain offer contemporary clothing, footwsar and
COSMELCS.

The Foschini brand has undergone a repositioning process over
the past year to raise tevels of fashionability and quality.
This allows the ranges of products offered to be more desirable
lo the target market and to be consistent with the modem and
fashionable image which the Foschinl rame and reputation are
intended to project.

The positioning of the sub-brands Oasis, News, Instinct and
WWW, which are house brands applied to ranges of clathing and
accessories located within their own areas in the stores, has
been darified and redefined in the division's overall branding
sirategy. Product ranges in these brands will be refaunched in the
third quarter of the next year.

The target market of the Faschini chain remains 18 to 35 year
olds in the LSM 6 — 10 categories. The stores are bocated in pme
shopping cenlres and CBDs.

Donna-claire

The stores in this chain offer products at a fashionable tevel
for larger-sized women of all ages. The target market is the
LSM 6 — 10 categuries.

The stores are located in prime shopping centres.
Fashionexpress

This s a price-centric chain catering for
customers in the LSM 5 - 9 categories.
its stores are located in smallér towns and in
secondary positions in shopping centres.
The stores offer clothing and foatwear.
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f
fashionexpress /(.

Luella

This is a relatively new chain devated only to lootwear and
offering moderately priced products in a modem intemational
store format.

The number of stores in the ¢hain has reached 19, and at this
number some consolidation in the roll-out process will take
place. Long-term strategy is being reviewed In the light of trading
experience since inception of the chain and studies are being
undertaken to select the most suitable product mix to meet
current and predicted trends [n the market.

The stores are located in key shopping centres,
N

.

s
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Foschini continued

Review of the year

The high fevel of development of retall space that has been undertaken
in recent times in South Africa continued during the past year, and the
following new major regional shopping centres in which the division is
represented were opened:

Greenstone East Rand

Loch Logan Bloemiontein

Maponya Mall Soweto

Irene Mall Canturion

In total, 19 new stores were added across the division's four chains,
In addition, nine stores were enlarged or relocated. A total of 11 221 square
metres of retail space was added during the year, representing growth
of 6,3%.

Trading conditions were reasonable in the first half of the year and weak
in the second half. Tumaver growth of 8,9% was achieved in the first six
maoriths, but October and November, traditionally the: division's key opening
summer period, were very soft months, being adversely atfected by poor
economic conditions, exacerbated in certain ingtances by a fashion
offering which failed to meet expectations. December and January, whilst
below budget, showed reasonable growth, with January being buoyed by
the year-end sale. Fetvuary and March saw g decline in sales, and it
became ciear that consumers wers holding back because of the
unfavourable economic conditions and the fact that early stock in the
Foschini ranges lacked iterns for the winter.

Cosmetics

The cosmelics business, in contrasi, has continued fo perform well,
growing by 11,7%. Turnover in cosmetics is now close to R500 milion
annually.

The Foschini cosmetics range brings together a number of major
international brands including Clinique, Elizabeth Arden, L'Oreal, Revion
and Yardley. In most of the new-format stores in shopping centres the
cosmetics departments have their own enfrance, creating a standalone
ambience. It has been shown that this layout increases footfall and
benefits the other departments within Foschini stores.

An enlarged-format cosmetics range was Ilaunched in the Foschini store
in Canal Walk, inctuding an in-store MAC department, which is performing
well, MAC s the premium make-up range from Estee Lauder, and is used
by make-up artists internationally.

Cellufar

Mobite handsets were launched in Foschini stores in 2000 and sales have
grown to almast R250 miillion annually. The division's strategy to date has
been to be an exclusive MTN retailer canrying the major product brands.
The store base has been limited thus far to the Foschini chain.

Prepaid handsets cunently account for 95% of turnover.

In the latter part of the year tumever was negatively affected by stock
shortages. A major downturn also occurred in sales of Motorala products,
whith have lost market share intemationally.
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Future plans are to roll gut cellular products 1o the Fashionexpress
chain and to stock other brands of handsat and complementary
products in a drive {0 increase sales.

Supply chain initiative

The group’s supply chain initiative, described in detail in the report
of the Group Logistics division, will reduce lead-times and enable
the Foschini division, in common with the ather trading
divisions, to react faster {o irends emerging in the

market. This will atlow orders 0 be placed closer to

the time when merchandise is required in the

stores. The division is positioning iisefl to

take fil advantage of (his strategic

benefit.
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Foschini continued

Foschini

Total sales in the Foschini chain grew by 3,6%. The first-half
growth of 8,5% came off a low base, stock shortages having
being experienced in the previous year, The second half suffered
from the impact of deteriocating trading conditions stemming
from rising interest rates and the implementation of the National
Credit Act (NCA). Same store sales for the year showed a small
deciine of 0,2%.

Six new stores were opened during the year, including one at the
V&A Waterfront in Cape Town. A further live slores were
upgraded, taking the total number of new-concept stores at the
year-end to 107.

The new Watesfront store incorporales a number of innovative
design concepis which have been well received and will influence
future Foschini store designs. In addition, the Wateriront store
prompted the launch of Lipsy, an intermational ¢ashion brand
camied by Topshop of London. Although these products
command a premium price there has been a good take-up, ang
they have been introduced in a number of the division's ather
top-selling stores.

The new-concept stores continue fo perform at levels well above
average for the Foschini chain, both in terms of turnaver growth
and trading density, and now account for 70% of the chain’s total
turnover.

Performance by Kew Qld
store concept concept format
Number of stores 107 104
Sales growth (%) 5.0 02
Sales contribution (%) 70 30
Trading density/m?® {incl. VAT) R21 600 L R16 00D

Total number of stores 2n,

Total rented space grew by 6,2% 1o 138 553 square metres.

Capital expenditure of almost RA0 million was incurred on
Foschini store openings, entargements, relocations and
refurbishments.The upgraded stores hawe shown good growth
and they strengthen the Foschini brand.
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Fashionexpress

This valug chain, created inldally out of ailing Faschini stores, had another
good year and has become well established in the marketplace.
Built around the concept of “express yourself for less”, this chain offers
fashionable garments in a pleasant shopping environment at prices that
rival those of traditiona! cash retailers,

Totat sales grew by 14,9% with same store sales up 8,6%.

The new store format has been widely accepted and will continue 0 be
rolled ouf, including the conversion of the existing older stores. This will
aliow the Fashionexpress brand to have a consistent image across all the
localions.

During the past year five new stores were opened. A further four are
planned for the next year. The division is confident that this chain will
continue 1o increase its profit contribution and that it can easily expand o
150 or even 200 stores.
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Donna-claire

The totat turnover of this chain grew by 9,1%, assisted by the opening of
seven new stores. Same store growth of 3,9% was disappointing but a
recent move to place emphasis on products for younger customers is
showing signs of success.

With ten new stores already committed for the next year and
a similar number envisaged for 2010, this niche chain
shoutd have 100 stores within three years.

With their high trading densities and low
markdowns, Donna-claire stores are the
mast profitable stores in the division.
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Foschini continued |

Luella

Now in its third year, the Luella chain has not yel reached its full potential,
having at this stage only 19 stores. One additiona! store was opened in the
2008 year, at the Loch Logan centre in Bloemfontein. All are in key
shopping centres.

This standatong footwear concept offers a range of women's footwear
supplemented by handbags and accessories almed al customers in the
migdle to upper income groups. The curent target market is the fashion-
conscious woman with a passion for shoes.

The division is confident that with expected improvements in the fashign
ranges the Luelia chain will become a positive contributor to profit within
three years. t has the potential to be a 50-store chain.

Stock levels and markdowns

Although stock levels at the end of the year were at an acceptable level,
teing down 11% on the previous year, markdowns for the year were
above budget at a disappointing 17,4% of sales. The increase was largely
caused by Christmas trading being softer than expected. Current and
projected stock levels are considered to be appropriate. The medium-term
goal remains to reduce clothing and foctwear markdowns 1o between
10% and 12% of sales, and to increase stock tumn,

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Markdown value (Rm} 3040 2667 3493 3710 gEEAs
% lo sales 185 133 151 151 gRYK}
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Strategy and prospects

These is general awareness that the South Afiican consumer i under
pressure and that levels of dispasable income have declined. Despite this,
the Foschini division considers that it is well positioned in terms of the
number and quality of existing and planned stores and its flexible buying
processes 1o withstand a trading downtum. lts objective is to emerge
strongly, in order to capitalise on the upswing which will foliow.

The emerging markel continues to grow and to fuet demand, and whilst
the introduction of the NCA in June 2007 has softened credit demand in
terms of the opening of new accounts, the long-term benefits of this
legislation will ensure the sustalnabillty of consumer credit.

The division's continuing investment in capital expenditure on new stores
and the refurbishment of existing stores, even during a peried of economic
decline, is part of a long-term straiegy to capitalise on South Africa’s
proven pattern of economic growth, daspite periodic downturns in the
business cycle.

In the next year, a'most 30 new stores will be opened and appraximately
15 high-tlumover stores will be upgraded. They inchuide some of the
divislon's premier CBO stores in cities such as Johannesburg and Pretora.
These measures will add substantial tumover and improve the visibifity of
the division to the consumer. This programme will be fellowed in the 2010
year by the opening or upgrading of another approximately 20 stores.

in the: next year atone more than 15 000 square metres of additional retail
space will be added. Among the developments in which the division will
have stores are ihe following regional shopping cenires:
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Regional Centre Foschini

Poichelstroom refocate and refurbish

Richards Bay eniarge ang refurbish
Zevenwacht (Western Cagpe) new

The Grove (Lynnwood Pretoria) new

Westwood (Weshville Ourban) new

Mountain Mill (Worcester) new

Galleria {Amanzimtoti) new

Wonderboom (Pretoria) new

Melrase Arch {Johannesburg) new

Regional Cenire Donna-claire Fashionexpress
Potchefstroom new new
Richards Bay newt new
Zevenwacht (Western Cape) new

The Grove (Lynnwood Pretoria) new

Westwood {(Westville Durban) new

Galleria (Amanzimtoti) new

Wonderboom (Pretoria) new

Melrose Arch (Johannesburg) new

The divisipn's strength in the markets it serves and its growth over the
years is reflected in the table below, setting out detalls of the stores in its

four chains.

Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Foschini 197 196 201 207

Fashionexpress 89 86 90 97

Donna-claire 48 53 59 64

Luella - - [} 18

Total No. of stores 334 335 356 386

Closures 1 i5 ] 3

Floor area {m? 152 767 154 025 163703 178 206 RELEYG
Projection

Store statistics 2009 2010

Foschini 220

Fashignexpress

Donna-claire 80

Luglla 20

Total No. of stores 430

Closures - -

Hooe area (m?) 205000 218000
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Review of the year
Despife the stuggishness which prevaitzd in the economy in the ;
latter ha!f of the year, total sales in the Markham stores improved |
by 6,6% for the year, with same store sales growth of 3,4%. I
2008 % change 2007 Although prices effectively remained constant, changes in the |
product mix resulted in 6% product inflation. Ceflphones again }
Turnover  Markham 11909 66 11176 performed well, sales growing by 6,4% to represent 16,9% of *
(R milion)  RJL - {1000) 20.8 tumover. |
Total 11%09 46 11384 Continued close conirol of markdowns and of expenses resulted
Number in a further increase in profitability,
of stores  Markham 20 5.2 191 Markdowns made up 9,8% of sales. From trends known at this
Floor area stage it seems that an acceptable level of markdowns will be
(grossm3)  Markham 61 298 53 58230 sustainable into the future, although the rate may well rise
marginafly in the near future. The table below sets out the appare!
Number of markdown history.
employees  Markham 134 (128 1560
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
- Markdown value (Rm) 83,1 950 1066 99,2 971
Posmomng % 10 sales 120 124 117 105 98

Markham is the targest men's lashion reiail chain in southern Africa.
Markham stores are kocated in most major shopping centres and lowns

in this territory. In dis endeavour to make its customers “leel great, look
good, and shase our passion for style”™, Markham provides up-to-date,
internationally-inspired menswear of good quality and value, suitable for
al occasions and daily experlences. This is done from conveniently
accessible stores, most of which offer a full range of menswear, and
others, Eke the recently-introduced smafler-format Markham Relay stores,
offering fashion casualwear onty.

The smaller Markham Relay formal is an answer o expansion into
secondary, smaller shopping malls that do not warrant a {fully-fledged
Markham offering. They will be placed in new malls that are prolilerating
on the outskirts of karge towns, in second or third stores in city CBOs, and
second stores in large mafls whare 1t is not possible to expand an existing
Markham store.

During the next year Markham intends to open a few stores on a pilot
basts stocking only formatwear and smartwear. They are likely to be
named Markham Cignal stores.

Whilst the division tarpets the LSM 6 - 10 range, the LSM 3 — 5 categories
are also buyers of its stylish apparel.
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The fruits of the division's brand repositioning, which
commenced in the second haff of 2005, have handsomely
exceeded expectations. The fashion and quality expectations of
cuslomers visiting the division’s stores have been raised and
wurmoves levels and profitably have improved significantly.

During the year B1 stores with the old Markham logo were
rebranded with the new Markham logo but did not receive a
complate store renovation, Ten new stores were added and a
further five were relocated or enlarged. Of the new stores, four
are in the new Markham Relay format.
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Strategy

The major repositioning of the Markham brand mentioned above has the
objective of ensuring thal Markham remains a refevant, aspirational brand,
recognised for delivering fashlon and style in a sophisticated shopping
environment. This is a continuing exercise since it involves an extensive
refurbishment af stores and this process must be spread over a number
of years.

Space availability is one of the factors thal set a ceiling on the growth of
the division in the past. A {ull-line Markham store requires a substantial
{loor area and this has been unavailable in some malls in which the
division would have liked to have stores. The Markham Relay concept is in
part an attempt to dea! with this problem since its smaller store format is
easier lo accommodate. The cument slower economic conditions should
provide oppertunities 4 open full-line Markham stores where there are
prospects of good sales, as well as to take opportunities to right-size and
open smaller stores where this is justified. More than 20 stores will be
opened n the next year.
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Nongside the roll-out of new stores in both the Markham and Markham
Relay formats there witl be strong emphasis on cost controls in a drive 1o
enhance profitability. Training programmes for all staff members will be
continued in order to ensure that customers recéive insightful and efficient
service and that the Markham reputatlon is enhanced,

Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Markham 173 177 180 191 0
RJL 3 38 28 - -

Total No. of stores 210 215 208 19 F

Closures 1 3 13 29 -
Floor area (m?) 56956 58538 58764 58230 61208

Projection
Store statistics 2000 2010
Markham 224 242
RIL - -
Tota! No. of stares 24 282 Prospects
Closures _ _ The further roll-out of new Markham and Markham Refay stores,
combined with better fuffilment of customers’ size regulrements,
Floor area () 67047 70826 will underpin the performance of this division in the next and later
years.
The target is 1o have more than 240 slores, including at least
In addition to the activities described above, the division will continue 1o 30 of the new Markham Relay format.
investigate options 1o reduce lcad times for merchandise procurement The pilot project mentioned above of standalone “lormalwear-
wilh the objective of enhancing the division’s abilty to react quickly to only™ stores may atso lead to some extension of trading activity
changing trends. There will also be emphasis on better fulfilment of in a high-margin area.

customers’ size reguirements, utilising the group’s newly-implemented
size-managemen! software which is designed to ensure that the size
tanges of stock arriving at a store will correspond to historical records of
the sizes of stock s0ig at that store.

The men's fashion arena has extremely limited focal manufacturing
capabliity. However, the division will continue {o strive to develop closer
relationships with domestic suppliers in order to redress this deficiency
over time, thus lowering fefiance on imported product.
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2008 % change 2007

Buzennc glinnenbekg

Store locatlon % of turnaver % of m?
Shopping malis 44,1 413
High stregls 30,3 274
Rural areas 256 3

A breakdown of sales by product category in the Exact! stores in the
2008 year is set out in the following table.

Womenswear 248%
Menswear 21,0%
Footwear {for men, women and children) 20,3%
Childrenswear 10,1%
Accessories 29%
Smalls 31%
Cellutar 17.8%

Review of the year
The Exact! division Slarted to experience tough trading conditions in the

- ™ second quarter and these conditions went on to prevall throughout the rest
Tumever (R million) 072 35 662,6 of the year. Consumers in the division's target calegory were negatively
Number of stores i 4g2 11 180 affected by the implementation of the National Credit Act in June 2007,
which reduced their ability to obtain credit. In addition, several nterest rate
Floor area (gross m} 52 831 28 51386 hikes had a dampening effect on consumer confidence. The resut was
Number of employees | 1063 {1,6) 1080 that turmover for the year grew by 3,6%, with same store sales up by
1,7%. Customers with reduced disposable incoms bought fess than
expected in the summer season and [t was necessary o take more

Positicning markdowns than had been planned.

Bxact! offers a focused range of fashionable women's, mens and
children’s appare! to the growing group of middie income South African
shoppers in the LSM 5 — 8 groups. It targets shoppers seeking products
In the smart-casual category. Footwear and accessories complete the
range, with cefiphones providing a useful additional procuet line.

The products stocked offer clear value to customers in terms of both
quality and price, and are easy (o fit into combinations with other appare!
00 a “dress up or down" basis,

Customers respond to the division's Emited but consistent styles of

apparel, for which care is taken to provide appvopriate displays which
hightight the features of the garments offered while avoiding produsion.

The Bxact! stores are tocated in city shopping malls, high streets and nural
areas, and provide their customers with a consistent experience wherever
they choose to shop.
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Markdown value (Rm) 539 662 846 91,0;1 3
% of sates 129 137 148 143, B8

The performance of menswear and footwear was reasonable, with
footwear coming off an extremely high base in the previous year.
Womenswear performed below expectation as some fashion fines proved
to be less poputar than had been hoped. This area was subjected to
research in an attempt to reach a better understanding of customers’
wants and needs.

The response to chiidrenswear was extremely pleasing. with sales of
boyswear growing by 27,2% and girlswear by 15,8%. This ts attributed to
offering differentiated ranges and the fact that, despite tough economic
times, consumers will invest in their children’s clothing.
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In line with the owerall trend in clothing, there was reduced
demand for cefiular products and this was evidenced hy a decling
in sales of 0,3%. Cellutar products nevertheless made up 17,8%
of divisional tunover.

The volume of sales in shopping malls and high streets refative
to rural areas continued 1o increase, conflrming that there is a
strong trend towards urbanisation.

Sales in the divisien’s two "megastores™ namely a larger, multi-
leve! format in Church Street, Pretoda, and in West Streel,
Durban, were adversely affected by the start of the government
workers' strike in June 2007. Despite this, tumaover in these
stores grew by mare than 22% and 24% respectively.

Stare windows have proved to be the division's biggest marketing
medium, customers being aftracted by varied and visually
interesting displays of merchandise, Feedback from customers
conflrms that the attention which is devoted to these displays is
recognised in the market as one of its strengths. This Is a source
of great pride and encouragement to the division.

Exact! continued to support local clothing manufacturing through
a strong collaborative effort between its buying teams and the
group’s In-hause design and manufacturing arm, TRGA.

Speed-to-market became a key strategic initiative in the division,
as efsewhere in the group, and a number of projects have been
initiated to improve stock turns and optimise lead times In the
Bxact! stores.

The division's personngl development activilies in the past year
were focused on braining programmes for store managers and
middle management. Perermance measvrement, succession
planning and talent reention are now firmly entrenched in the
cu'ture of Exact!

Exact!'s main corporate social respoasibllity initiative remains
Monkeybiz, a non-profit organisation that employs and empowers
more than 450 women who suffer social disadvantages or are
Hiv-positive, and who hand-make a range of attractive bead
products. Exact! continues to subsidise the Monkeyhlz soup
kitchen, as well as giving support through donations. In addition,
Exact! supporied the Attie van Wyk School.
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Exact! continued

Strategy

The foundation of Exact!'s strategy and the slx pillars of its business are
people, fashion, value, stores, service and profit. These concepts remain
firmly embedded in the division's collective thinking and planning. For the
year ahead, action plans and success criteria have been developed under
gach of these headings in order to drive the business forward. All projects
will be managed holistically and ¢learty-communicated comman goals will
ensure that all departments work synergistically.

After conducting research on the factors which cause people to shop and
having made an intense examination of the needs and wants of its target
market, Exact! has designed a strategy to attract the fashion-aware
customer who seeks value, has multiple rotes and has little time to shop.

Ranges of products will remain Emlled and focused, with an emphasis on
fashion at moderate prices. Stylish, easy-to-combine and comfortable
garments will be the basis for making Exact! the preferred dastination for
the target market.

Emphasis will once again be placed on boosting turnover while
maintaining a balanced approach to stock control. Further steps will be
taken in bringing to fruition the supply chain prejects which were initiated
tast year. In support of local initiatives the division will zim to procure at
teast 70% of its apparel purchases locally.

A total of ten new stores will be opened and four stores will be refocated
and enlarged. This sizeable expansion programme, focusing on sites
where mass shopping takes place, indicates the confidence which prevails '
in the future of the business. |

Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Mumberofstores 185 170 170 180 | B2
Closures 1 4 - R B
Floor area (m?) 54408 46862 47855 51386 |5231

Store statistics

Number of stores
Closures
Floor area {m?)
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exact!

The succession plans that were implemented last year are already
showing benefits and will continue to play a key role in developing
strength, stability and capaclty in the division in the future. There is
ongoing emphasis on people development, particularly in store
management, through centralised training programmes. The objective
remains to provide good careers to pegple from previgusly disadvantaged
communilies.

The division's current corporate responsibility initiatives will again be
supported In the next year, and seme innovative educational projects will
also be taunched.

Prospects

The retafl sector is expected to be under pressure throughout the year
ahead and the division has adjusted its budgets (o be in line with
predictable consumer spending patterns. The division is alse positioning
itself to take advantage of the economic uplum as soon as it occurs
through unflagging attention to customers’ needs and by extending the
reach of its stores into areas of high density.
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The Sportscene chain stocks a blend of sports and fashion
2008 % change 2007 products directed mainly at youthfu! and fashion-conscious .
customers, Initiatives are undertaken outside the stores to keep
Tumover  Spartscene 440 74 3863 the chain in touch with its target market. The image i cultivates
{R million)  Totaisports G4 77 599.3 is that of a fast-paced, urban, streei-smart, energised shopping
DuaSouth 8,9 18,6 76,8 venue.
Total, 7 W' 84 10624 DueSouth caters for modem, hi-tech, oitdoor enthusiasts who
Number Sporiscene 90)] 47 86 enjoy shopping in an environment which stocks a wide range of
of siores Totalsports 112} 57 106 products that correspond to their lifestyle. The target market
DueSouth 419} 18,8 16 comprises adults (n the middte 1o upper income groups. As this
‘ is only the fourth year of tracing the chain constantly updates its
Total &2 63 208 product range in order to cater fully for the market's tastes and
Floor grea  Sportscene Bay 69 17296 to strengthen its market position.
{gross ) L:tam gé] lgg Zg g? Tre sports division continues to be recognised by leading
! intemational suppliers of sportswear and sporls equipment as a :
Total (538 8.1 88 48858 key retail distribution channel in South Africa. While the success
Number of of these international products is cruial to its continued growth,
amployees $6E0 42 1613 the division also supports a number of focal manufacturers.
: In-house brands are furthermore used to provide margin
flexibility and to enhance growth.
Positioning

The sports division, comprising the Totalsports, Spartscene and DueSouth
chains, occupies a leading position in its space in the retail sector. It is wall
represented in shapping centres, CBOSs, high streets, and nral towns
throughows southern Africa and has built up a high reputation with the
sporting fratemities and other interest groups which make up its target
markets. it maintaing a policy of clear differentiation between the chains
in products, presentation and branding, relying for this differentiation on
active product innovation and selection and continuous updating of layout
and dispiay in the stores.

Totalsports retains its position as Soeuth Alfrica's premier chain for
sportswear and sports equipment. it stocks leading intemational brands of
products to mest the everyday needs of sporismen and sportswomen,
tegether with complementary fashion products. The chain has well-traingd
and knowledgeable staff who provide customers with premium-level
service in stores where there is a vibrant atmesphere, The main sports and
activiles for which the chaln caters are football, running, fitness and
rugty, and customers have a wide choice of contemporary sportswear
{including footwear) and equipment,
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DUESOUTH

BE AN DUTSIDER

Review of the year

Trading conditions in the past year proved to be difficult and obstacle-
ridden. The imptementation of the National Credit Act (NCA) in June, in
combination with higher inflation and rising interest rates, severely dented
consumer confidence. Power outages disrupted shopping pattems and
reduced the division's ability to provide its normal teval of sarvice. Rising
fuel costs and a surge in inflation adversely affected expenses,
necessitating an increased focus on expense control and efficiencies. In
addition, new and aggressive players have entered the retail market for
sportswear and sports equipment.

Despite this unfavourable climate the division achieved tolal umover
growth of 8,4% and same store grawth of 3,7%, ensuring that the division
maintained its position as a market leader. A total of 17 new stores were
opened, including two on a franchised basis at Cape Town International
alrport, thus posttioning the division for growth in the {uture.

The dwvision's markdown [evels have remained well controlled and at

acceplable lgvels.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Markdown value (Rm) §01 927 1320 1338 ;'.'q 7]
% o sales 120 15 128 1%

Throughout the year the division continued to stock and display the latest
products avallable in the maskel, both in sportswear and equipment.
Emphasis was again placed on iraining programmes for the staff in order
1o ensure thal customers entering the slores will receive technically
competent and superior all-round service. In co-operation with suppliers
of major ranges of products the division also participated in the launching
of new products on to the southem African market. This is a strategic
process 1o attain first-to-market status and reputation.

The division’s irvolvement in the group’s supply chain initiative, which is
not yet at a final stage, resuited in reduced fead times and enabled its
stores to be first-to-market with some new products. Close collaboration
with suppliers of products and wilh the Group Logistics division also led to
some reduction in the time which merchandise spends in the group's
distribution centres, and a signlficant propertion of foctwear was shipped
directly from the factories of manufacture to a distribution centre of the
group. This type of innovation results in the elimination of duplicate
processing and hence reduces costs.
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Totalsports

Totalsports achieved furnover growth of 7,7% for the year, with same store
growth of 3,5%. s expansion policy continued and six new stores were
opened and ten stores were refurbished.

Rugby has been added to football, fifness and running as a key sport in
the strategy Of this chain. This step recognises the growing popularity
which nugby enjoys as a mass participation sport in sputhemn Africa,
boosted by the Springboks’ successes in the most recent World Cup
serias,

Streamlining was undertaken to remove overlapping and substitutable
product lines and add others in order to remain refevant to key sports
categeries. The objective has been to ensure a clearly-defined offering by
sport and gender.

Another innovation was the broadening of the range of Fusion products by
the infroduction of new core products in apparel, accessories and
equipment.

The Totalsports chaln also increased its participation in co-operative
events with manufacturers and distributors of Intemationally-brandeg
products in order to reinforce relationships both with these suppliers and
with the public, and to raise awareness of the avatiability of these products
in the stores. These relationships and the resulting consumer awareness
will be important in the build-up to World Cup 2010 and to the business
climate confronting Totalspents in later years.
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Because of the growing public enthusiasm for World Cup 2010, the chain
has expanded yet further Its involvement in grassrogts football events,
interacting with more than 100 foolball clubs at various levels. These
initfatives with the targel market are supplemented by sports clinics for the
staff of the chain, so building up the knowledge bass and ingreasing
commitment and energy al the store level.

Totalsports s the Sauth African retail foothall partner of chioice for the
suppliers of several major ranges of sportswear and sports equipment,
and it wil use this competitive edge to maximise sales and market
penelration,

Sportscene

Competition intensified in South Africa in the past year, particularly as a
resuit of the further advance of intemational markel participants.

The youth fashion market has received increasing recognition
intemationally as presenting opportunities for suppliers of major brands of
sports products. This has led to the arrival of waves of new products. The
suppliers have globally iniensified their marketing activities and they
compete aggressively with each other for resail presence, whether in the
increasingly common own-brang stores or in the stores of traditional
retatlers. They take global initiatives in strategic direction, the ranges of
products offered, and promotional activities.

The result in South Africa for retaliers such as the Sportscene chain has
been Increased competition but also the prospect of a growing market.

T

The Sportscene chain has played a part in this drive of the big international
players by participating in the introduction of new produels through launch
campaigns and other promotional aclivities, so ensuring that it would be
first-10-market and would gain publicity in its own right.

The relentless pace of change in the youth market requires ongoing review
of the chain’s marketing strategy. This brings about continuing change in
the “look and feel” of marketing communication in order 10 keep it in step
with fashion and hence deal effectively with competition.

A more intensive focus on footwear, aimed a1 enhancing the division's
feading position in this product category, has paid dividends. The division's
Redbat range continues 10 expand with the introduction of new items for
women and men. The sange of accessories under this trademark has been
streamiined.

Sportscene opened six new stores during the year and refurbished nine
stores, whilst closing two non-perferming stores. The franchised store al
the Cape Town International Afrport was converted to a Tolalsports format.

In a year of volatile trading conditions the chain’s turnover grew by 7,4%,
with same store growth of 3,0%.
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sports division continued

DueSouth
DueSouth, the newest of the division's chains, continued to gain public awareness

and to strengthen its repisation in the outdoor lifestyle market. Growing popularity
of the chaln's exclusive international ranges, The North Face and Columbia, has

helped 10 enhance its market position. The chain also provides products under the | =t /
in-house DueSouth trademark, which play an accessible allernative and |

complementary role. \

The product range continues to evolve, and in the past year additional well- ‘
recognised intemationally-known apparel and footwear, both for women and men, !

were introduced, together with an enhanced range of accessories and equipment.

d
/
Following a review of the chain's stores a programme was started o enhance store J
presentation throuph increased lighting and the re-gonfiguration of shopfronts. A '|
visual merchandising initiative was alse undertaken to demarcate clearty the "oy
lfestyte and performance areas within the stores and t identify the trail-running, :
maountain-biking, outdoor and exploration categories of products. It is clear that
these changes have been welcomed by customers and that they serve 10 enhance
the character and individuality of the DueSouth stores.

DueSouth continues to expand and four new slores were opened [n the past year,
including a franchised airport store.

Sales growth was encouraging at 18,6%, with same store growth of 7.7%.
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Strategy

Al ol the chains in the division are given equal opportunities to achieve
their best possible performance.

In the Tolalsports chain there will be emphasis in the coming year on
providing an oplimal selection of products in the sparts for which it caters,
presented to customers in attractive and simple-to-find displays.
Intensified focus will be placed on appare! for women and on cerlain other
product fines for which there is at present particutarly strong demand.

Totalsports’ status in the football sector as a preferred retail partner for
major suppiiers will provide a strong platiorm 1o establish both exclusive
and competitive positions for the acquisition and marketing of products.
The window of opportunity presented by the Word Cup 2010 and the
marketing drive of the major sporting suppliers in this ragard will allow the
chain to progress yet further in building its reputation.

There will be continued interaction with the customer base through
targeted Jocal events, promotional initiatives around the introduction of
new products, and the division’s own national event sponsorships. These
are all tools to gain top-of-mind awareness in the marketplace.

In the Sportscene chain, following from the above-mentioned strateqy
review, there will be ongoing action to keeg the chain aligned with its fast-
moving target youth market. Emphasis will continue on buliding strength
in the footwear category and in strengthening the chain's pasition in
popular internationally-bianded products. There will also be a continued
drive lo position Redbal as a wanted brand.

DueSouth will retain its existing objectives and its product ranges will be
supplemenied by new products and new categories of products.
Sponsorship of the DueSouth Xterra Multisport event will continue.

The division is parlicipating actively in the group's supply chain initiative
with the objective of bringing products inte the stores faster and thus
improving efficiency and stock turr. Buying decisions can then be made
later than in the past, hetping the division in its drive 10 be the first-lo-
market with newly launched products.

Good expansion epportunities have heen ideniified in several geographical
regions and the division intends 1o open nine Totalsports, eleven Sportscene
and six DueSouth stores.

Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007  2008*

Totatsponts 92 94 97 106 1124
Sportscene 70 74 79 86 90]
DueSouth - 9 14 16 1 0]
Total No. of stores 162 177 190 208 4224
Closures 3 2 2 - b2}
Foor area (m?) 39691 40643 447221 48858 | (RER
Projection
Stora statistics 2008 2010°
Totalsports 20 28]
Sporiscene w .06}
DueSouth 2] b3()
Total No. of stores aw 262}
Closures = -
Floor area (m?) &7 GBI

" Bxcludes 2 franchise sloves 2t CPT Intermational Aimon.

Prospects

Trading conditions are expected to remain difficull in the new financial
year as a result of rising interest rales, fising inflation and the continued
ehects of the NCA. in spite of these conditions the division expects to
produce moderate growth, and investmant in the business for the future
is continuing.
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jewellery division
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Positioning

The Foschini group jewellery division is the leading player in the mass The American Swiss brand is positioned to appeal to the fashion-forward
middle market for jewellery and branded accessories. It has attained this and image-conscious customer, and offers consumers in the growing
position by offering attractive retail environments, extensive producl middle market appropriate products and brands to express their status,

ranges, desirable brands and great service. Measured by number of
stores, American Swiss Jewellers Is the largest jewellery chain in
southern Africa, followed by Sterns. American Swiss and Sterns have each
traded successfully for more than 100 years and as a result bave buil up Stems is a contemporary and classic jeweller, welk known to the market
large and loyal followings in the marketplace. In-house credit accounts lor for its quality and welcoming service, offering beautiful and meaningful

The American Swiss brand is highly visible in shopping centres and in the
media, making its fashign statements with confidence and flair.

60% of total sales. jewellery. The Stems brand Is In the process of being repositioned to be
The division strives continually to differentiate the products it stocks in mare in line with trends in contemporary merchandise,

order to offer real choice to customers. The division oblains merchandise

from around the world, including products designed and manufactured Matrix, the diision's sunglasses and cellphones chain, calers for the
locally for the southern African market, so ensuring that there is ongoing brard-sawy and image-conscious cansumer who aspires to designer
innovation and trend-setting. labels.

2008 % change 2007

Tumover  American Swiss | - (R 65 622.7
(Rmillon)  Matrx fap| 138 34,1
Stems AT 6.2 365.7
Total lgERy | 67 1025
Number  American Swiss |30 33 181
of stores Matrix R 357 14
Stems 3 R 08 121
Tota) 470 38 316
Floorarea  American Swiss | -J9% 33 12850
{gross m7  Matrix 230 508
Stems 0.6 8671
Total 2085108 22 2029 = .
ey N umhy.
Numberof  American Swiss | 3R 27 742 ; : s
employees  Matrix H e 93 54 - i
Stems TR | 22 453 - | . . s Ha
Total A 0 28 1249 e
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Review of the year

The division’s sales growth of 6,7% for the year was lower than the previous year's growth of
16,3%, but nevertheless represents an acceplable result in 2 year of substantially higher metal
prices, higher interest rales, higher inflation and the effects of the impiementation of the National
Credit Act (NCA). Despite having to contend with these negative factors, the division maintained the
markdown to sales percentage for the year below 9%, which it considers (o be the optimum level.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Markdown value (Rm) 83.1 838 89,0 96,5 1161
% 10 sales 1.5 10,1 9.1 86 88

Operating profilts grew &l a rale in excess of the rate of sales growth, thereby
improving profitability ratios.

The divisian had a good start to the year, with impressive double-digil
growth during the first months. Because the NCA came into force at

a time of interest rate Increases, a decline in the rate of growth
set in. To contend with this, merchandise purchases were
accordingly adjusted. The remainder of the year saw further
increases in interest and inflation rates and spiralling growth in
commodily prices, particularly metals. The gold price jumped
by more than 30% during ihe year under review and
judicious planning on the part of the division's merchants
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was again needed in order 10 ensure that the stores would have a suitable
product mix for their customers.

Stock levels were affected by the factors described above and this
resulted in a reduction in stock tum to 1.9 from 2.2 last year.
Strategies have been devised to push this back to more than 2,0 in the
next year.

The division opened 19 new siores In the year under review
{American Swiss 8, Sterns 5, Matrix 6), and 7 undarperforming stores
were closed (American Swiss 2, Stems 4, Matrix 1).

Average Yading densities continue 10 rise and are running al more
than A48 000 per square metre compared 10 Iast year's R46 000 per
square metre.
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Strategy

The new financial year calls for reliance on the strength of each of the
American Swiss, Sterns and Matrix brands. Al elements of
cammunicaton, design and service will be aligned accordingly and
cansistently communicated to our personnel and consumers. American
Swiss will maintain its role as a fashion jeweller while adding new brands
and differentiated products. Stems wifl continue its move to contemporary
status white also adding its own new product lines. A new store format for
Sterns will be implemented al the beginning of the financiat year and will
be rolled out to all new stores after feetback and review, Existing stores
will receive corresponding treatment over a period. This will complele the
repositionng of Stens as a contemporary brand with consistency
between products, advertising and store design. Matrx will be
investigating aflernative store formats to Increase its product roll-out
patential.

Customer sevice is a key differentiator and, in line with the brand focus
mentioned above, the division is continuing o improve the training
programmes given in stores and at the group’s head office in order to
ensure that all personnel are aligned with the brand’s customer focus and
core values,

Supply chain management is a key factor and the division intends to
pursue a supplier pipeline that has greater flexibility and shorter
lead limes than have prevailed in the past. This should result

in improved decision-making and operational efficiency.

The division's store location strategy includes the
continuous mondtorng of performance trends, and
where economic factors so diciate, closures or
consolidation will proceed. Locations in new and
existing shopping centres where the division's stores
are under-represented have been identified, and new
stores will be opened in prime positions. Great care is
taken in ensuring that new stores are apprapriately
sized. A measured view of expansion i taken, in fine
wilh the core strategy of seeking long-term growth in
sales and profil.
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Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
American Swiss 175 175 179 184 157
Sterns 114 115 115 121 )22}
Matrix 9 12 14 14 19}
Tota! No. of stores 298 302 308 316 2t
Closures 15 8 3 4| %0
Foorarea(m) 21123 21189 21580 22029 | ZBE0
: Projection
: Store statistics 2009 2010
i —
: American Swiss
i Stems
Matrix
Total No. of stores
Closures
Hoor area (m)
o SE—
T2
L Al
gﬁfﬁu Prospects
. Despite the currenl economic slowdown, the
Tr2 Digmaf Givision expects that growth In the middle market
Cowu - in southern Africa will continue for the foreseeable
4 T— E v : . future. The Foschini group jewetlery division is well
- . 2 .
{ -__ﬁg:\_ o] ‘ e L !!_(‘“ l"—a‘:p&‘ﬁ. positioned to take advantage of this growth,
X : _,_;_-—--\ . - " considering the brand awareness, loyalty and trust
ub N _‘ A ' that already exist among consumers.

These factors, combined with training to align
personnel and brand values, will further ensure

ek " that a customer-centric culture is entrenched
:lr'p‘q‘y”.l ! " e e o
ey | within each of the brands. With this in prospect, the
ARE - d division is confident that it can continue to
Byl ¥ ] 5 strengthen and grow.
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2008 % change 2007

Tumover (R million) 11,1 4124
Number of stores 196 51
Floor area {gress m) 8.1 21 906
Number of employees (10.8) 848
Positioning

This division has two store formats. The first and older comprises
@home stores, which have since the launch of the divislon in 2001
successiutly sold a wide range of homeware. The second is the more
recenty developed @homelivingspace category, which selis contemporary
fumiture and larger décor items for the home, as wall 2s the full @home
offering.

Despite having only been launched in 2006, @homelvingspace has
been well received in the marketpiace and is already making a useful
contribution to profitabillty,

The division targets the middle to upper segment of the market in the form
of the LSM § - 10 group.

There were 61 stores at the year-end, located in leading retail malls in the
major urhan centres of the country.
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Review of the year

Ten new stores were opened in the year under review in keeping with the
division's long-term rofl-out programme. Of the new stores, ning are
@home stores in Johannesburg, Pretoda, Cape Town and Durban.
The tenth is an @homelivingspace store of 2 000 square mebres in
Loch Logan, Bloemfontein, and is only the third @homelivingspace
store to be opened tn South Africa. A fourth opened in Pon Elizabeth
during May 2008.

In January 2008 the division opened its first overseas stores, one in Dubai
and the other in Bahrain. This represents a joint venture on a franchise basis
between the group and a Dubai-based company, the Al Tayer Group LLC.
The performance of these pioreering stores in their first few months of
operations has been ahead of expectations.

This is the divisien's first foray outside South Africa and represenis a
milestone in its development. U it lives up te the promise embodied in iis
first few months of aperations some other opportunities on the horizon
may be pursued,

The homeware market has, in common with other consumer goods
markets in South Africa, felt the pinch of the siow-down in consumers”
spending that has resulted from rising interest rates and rising inflation
and the generally tightened economic conditions that prevailed in the
latter part of the year under review. Despite this, total tumover for the
division rose by 11,1% although same store tumover remained flat. In the
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@I:mme' @homelivingspace

TrE HOMEWARL MTONW]

THE HOMEWARE STORL

present phase of iis existence the chain is at the point whera new stores 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

in the chain are being opened in relatively close praximity to older stores,

drawing away some trade from established customers. This is likely to be Markdown value (Rm) 5 160 271 23
only a temporary levelling process pending the buiid-up of independent % to sales 80 56 75 83 gl
Customer and tmover bases. The division's trading density for the year amounted 10 an acceptable

As is shown in the table below, markdown was somewhat bigher than in R22 290 per square metre.
the preceding years, but it remains under 10% of sales and ks considered
to be acceptable for a moderately difficult trading year.
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@home continued

Strategy

Plans for the coming year include the roll-out of another eleven stores in
South Africa, of which four will be @homelwvingspace stores and seven
@home stores. The Sandton store wil be revamped and enlarged, and
revamps wib also take place 2t the VBA Waterfront and Canal Walk stores
in the Westem Cape. These are among the division's prime locations.
The revamps will include the addition of a décor element.

The slowdown in the economy presents a challenge for the division to
excel in bringing desirable ranges of high-quality and well-priced
merchandise to its customers. In-store, the division’s operations teams
will remain focused on rendering superior customer service.

In the United Arab Emirates the @home franchised stores wilt be
supplemented by the opening of a further threg outlets, bringing the
number in this zone to five. This will give a meaningful boost to the
division's drive into new territory.
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Prospects
The division remains focused on retaining its marging and profitability and Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007  2008*
tight control of expenses will be essential,
@home 24 KL 39 49 58
Unabated efforts are being made to find suitable trading sites to meet @homelivingspace - - 2 2 3
h irem homelivi .
growth requirements for bath @home and @homelivingspace stores Total No. of stores o4 ” r 51 61
Despite the current economic downtum, the further roll-out of both Closures — — — _ _
@home and @homelivingspace stores will underpin this division’s
performance in the future. Floor area (m?% 10001 13405 18624 21906 grklis]
Projection
Store statistics 2009 20107
@home
@homelivingspace
Total No. of stores 72 80
Closures - -
Floor area {m%) 35000 43500

* Excludes franchise stores.
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TFG apparel|supply company

Gelwyn fagle

Positioning

TFG Appare! Supply Company (TFGA) is a strategic supplier of apparel and
accessories to the group's trading divisions, its primary function being to
manage the supply of locally made apparel. It has no factories of its own
but works elosely with several local cut, make and trim (CMT) contractors
wilh whom the group has long-standing refationsnips. It operates a full
design studig for womenswear and childrenswear, and a facility for pre-
production and production,

The division alse co-ordinates the group’s aclivities in the figlds of
meschandise sourcing, shipping and quafity assurance.

Further details of the sourcing and shipping operations are mentioned
below in this report.

The division’s quality assurance unit provides a technical service to the
group's appare! trading divisions, 1o the homeware division and to TFGA
Itself. Quality standards ang processes are continually reviewed in order to
ensure that product quafity is world-class and that Iocal and intemationai
best practices are adopled.

TFGA's In-house textile testing laboratory provides a lesting service of
intemational standard to TFGA and other divisions of the group and o the
group’s outside supply base.

Review of the year

The quoia system introduced by the Department of Trade and Industy,
setting limits on the quantily of fabric and finished appare! which can be
imported from China, has been in place for more than a year. One of its
consequences, acutely felt in the past year, has been an inability on the
part of local appare! manufacturers to gbtain the types and quantities of

60 » Foschini Group Annual Report 2008

i

APRARTL ¢ G

fabric which are needed for some of the products desired by retailers.
Thus negative effects have been felt throughout the supply chain, with a
particularly strang blow to the CMT base.

The TFGA division and other traders in similar positions have therefore
found it necessary to attempt to find alternative sources of supply from
regions other than China. While these new supply possibilities have been
explored, the local manufacturing capability, and particularly the CM1
secior, has been greatly weakened, and TFGA has had to make strenuous
efforts to assist its cluster of CMT contractors Lo stay in business.

Meanwhile China itself can no longer be looked upon as the profilic and
reliable exporter which it has been until recently. This Is the resuft of 3
number of internal factors including the appreciation of China's currency
agains! the US Dollar and some other currencies (including the Rand),
rising worker remuneration and social upliftment, intreased intemal
demand, environmental issues, reductions in export rebates and logistical
issues in the run-up to the Qlympic Games. The change i China's status
&s an exporter reinforces the group's need to have a wider network of
sources of apparel, fabric and other products,

Through these more difficult times TFGA has continued to support its local
CMT base, as well as encouraging the creation and imptementation of
ransparent and coflaborative partnerships with certain other suppliers.
Greater consofidation within the CMT and textile base would stand the
group in good stead for the future.

The shipping department continued to run efficiently and to add value lo
the procurement process by which the group’s trading divisions receive
stocks of merchandise. The external clearing and forwarding agencies
used by the division have once again given oulstanding service.
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Strategy |

The group’s supply chain initiative, mentioned efsewhere in
this annual report and outlined in the report of the previous
year, has taken on added momentum. The aim of this inftiative
is 10 bring about improvements Hroughout the supply chain by
a series of measurgs which amount 1o verical streamlining.
Among the benefiis of the initiative will be improvements in
stock turns, reliability, processes, compliance and olher areas
of the group’s activities.

TFGA's main suppliers have supported a broad-based black
economic empowerment (BBBEE) supplier development project
that has been worked out by the group's sub-committee on
BBBEE procurement and enterprise development.

A drive is under way to up-skill and provide career
enhancement for the division’s statf complement. The division
continued with ils leadership academy, which oves the years
has given staff members an opportunity to grow and progress
within the group.

Prospects

TFGA will continue to advance the supply chain initiative in the
forthcoming period. The positive outcomes of this should
enhance the group’s capabilities for the future with emphasis
on shorter lead times, guaranieed quality, enhanced refiability
and the reduction of waste within the supply chain. All this
shou'd contribute to more refiable defivery and improved stock
turns for the trading divisions.
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Foschini group financial services

Positioning

The goup's financial services division consists of two independent . In the same process customers were evaluated in terms of their credit

businesses: facifities and in some instances these facilities were increased, although

e FG Fmanc]al Semces manages Lhe group's in.stae Credll card customers had no access to this Increased laDllIh[ until their risk nrﬂﬁle
programme thai consists of 14 different card formats. Included in this engbled the division to release the increased amounts.

division's responsibilities are the group's Club, insurance products,

ceflular phane operations and customer relationship management, During a period of several morihs preceding 1 June 2007 many piayers

+ RCS Group provides a range of broader financial services lo nTnh?nimd;stryﬂmdelmw.nnal a:eufunts o cred:il -a vaulabletlocuilomers.
customers of the group and to customers of unrelated retallers. is had the eftect of boosting rade for these entities over this perlod, but

At present the financial products provided comprise RCS Personal some consequences are currenily finding their way into the bad debt

Loans, ACS Cards, RCS Private Label Cards and RCS Home Loans. numbers. The approach adopted by the division was prudent and certainly
Standard Bank holds a 45% interest in this business. The RCS its bad debt experience appears to have been better than that of the peer
Group's divisiona! report is found elsewhere In this document. group.
The positions of these businesses In the group structure are represented The advent of the NCA had a negative impact on customers who wanted
| graphically beiow. credit but did ot qualfy for il The NCA affordability test resufted in a
I
| Review of th ar The year also saw four interest rate increases and the repo rate
. eview of tne ye consequently moved from 9,0% to 11,0%. This, coupled with Inflation in
The past year has seen tremendous changes to the credil landscape, the cost of food and fuel, has placed a heavy burden on many customers.
In June 2007 the National Credit Act (NCA) became eftective, and it has High levels of indebtedness continue to be seen.

had a significant impact on the way credit is advanced 10 customers,

The group chase to convert its entire base to operate under tha framework

and regulations of the NCA. Carrespondence to this effect was sent oul that 'whllosl their collective behaviour scores al‘ the bureaux are
prior 10 % June 2007. This enabled the division to have a single standard deteriorating, the same customers have stable behaviour scores with the

for dealing with alt customers and atso afforded customers the prolection * group. This fact supports the conclusion thal the division's debt
that the NCA offers. management practices arg yielding good resulls.

,
EXTERNAL QQ

An examination of the payment behaviour of customers seems to indicate

-

FOSCHINI GROUP

Insurance 0% Holding
| f
[ 0ne20ne ] General | Priva Personal tome Effective
I P“c’:tm 1 ";b Loans Loans " intetligence |
| swacass | ¢! " ;

* The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited {SBSA} ks a minodty shara in this division.
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Concerted efforts have been applied to prevent a build-up of amears in
the debtors’ book. Ouring the course of the year, in anticipation of
increased defaulls, the division added capacity fo its collections
depariment by increasing the number of colfectors and also applying
dialer optimisation features. A great deal of emphasis was also placed on
early-stage default, with good results. Strategies within our debtors’
decisioning system, TRIAD have heen oplimised to easure that the division
is effectiva in this area.

Al the vear-end arrears were up by only 0,3% on the previous year.
Cument trends suggest that the division's recent efforts are paying off and
the book continues to remain in a healthy contractual state.

Net bad debt grew by 15.7% compared to overall net receivable growth
of 8,0%.

2008 % change 2007

Rm Rm
Interest income **gmg 288 2003
Other income 2wl e0 852
SUMB | a7z 3845
FaRrae
Net bad debt PRy 57 osnge
Credit costs GO 116 (1480
Profi befors tax i A

** Restated 16 exclude R19,8 milion abnormal sale of written off accounts.

Interest income

The Foschini Interest Rate, which is applied to customer accounts, was
kept below the madmum usury rate, and hence well below the maxdmum
permitted under the NCA, despite the fact that customers are operating
in acoordance with the NCA. During the course of the next year an
examination ¢f risk-based pricing will take place and it is Ikely that these
will be a move to ditferential interest rates, giving a sfightly better rate
to those customers whose payment performance has been correct and
on time.
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Foschini group ﬁnjmciol services continued

Other income
Insurance

The division's relationship with Safika Highbury
Comrmunications has led to a step-up in the quality and
content of the Club’s magazine and a very good
response has been recorded from customers when
surveyed about the magazine.

~ Following from a point made in last year's report about
other niche Club offerings, a new Sports Club together
with an associated magazine wil shorlly be launched
and initiad consumer research indicates that a strongly
positive response to this initiative will be forthcoming,

Profit from this area grew by 49,2%.

' Cellular

Under the economic pressure that prevailed, cellufar ‘
sales lpst momentum and tumover rose by a modest |
1,8%. The group’s exclusive arrangement with MTN i
continued. The product range is being continually
reviewed and all procurement is now overseen by the
division,

ONE2ONE

Profit In this area grew by 46,4%, aided by some non-recurring items.
By the year-end two additional insurance products had been developed
and have been offered to the customer base since 1 April 2008. These
products have been well received and will generate positive resuits.

Club

The Club grants a range of benefits for subscribers who are holders of the
group's credit cards or those of the RCS Group.

These benefits inctude:

* autematic death insurance,

* account balances protection;

* medical and legal helpline;

*  qualification in the monthly A300 000 draw;

» discounts at several retailers;

» promotional item discounts;

« bursaries to the value of R2 million per annum; and
* a monthly magazine with topics of interest,

Currently there are more than 910 000 paying subscribers of the Club and
85 000 of the SuperClub.

&4 » Foschinl Group Annual Report 2008

One20ne was established in the 2007 year with its first product belng the
One20ne Top-up Airtime Deal. This product grew in the past year and has
clearly found a niche in the market. i is a discounted airtime offer sold
through felemarketing and provides the convenience of an airtime contract
linked to a group credit card. The rates to custamers are better than those
for standard prepaid airime and the cusiomer also benefits from a
significant discount to conventional retail pricing.

Revenues grew by 188,8% for the year. There are expectations that still
greater markel penetration can be achieved by means of better customer
selection, with a stronp contribution to the division's profits.

Net bad debt

In the collection process the division's focus has continued to be on the
earlier stages of defaull. This approach, coupled with the division's hybrid
contractual/recency collections policy, has seen collections continue to
stay within acceptable ranges. Behavioural scores were evatuated during
the year to ensure that they rank-order accounts correctly according to
value and rigk. The division's scorecards were found to be highly predictive
when measured against industry standard scorecards.

Write-off policy on bad debt remained consistent with the previous year,
Non-perferming accounts, defined as accounts whose payment prolile
scares and recency fall below fixed criteria, are written off monthly.
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New applicant fraud

The torensic unit of the division had a very busy year, with high votumes
of fraudulent applications being encountered. 1D theft and impersonation
have been exploited by crime syndicates. Database analysis tools used
by the division have allowed il to keep the incidence of fraudulent
applications below an infernally recognised threshold of 3%. All new
accounts continue to be passed through fraud profiling scorecards and
datahase tests, with exceplions being referred to forensic underwritess.

Provisions

The division continues to use the Markov model o identify inherent risk
within its database. Markov relies on 12-month delault roll rates ang
predicts which accounts are likely to proceed to write-off. This infarmation
is used to create a provision tor doubtful debts. In the past year the
Markov model required a R25,9 million charge 1o the inoome statement
as against R29,0 million last year. The doubtful debt provision now stands
at R220,7 miflion, which represents 8,4% of the closing book compared
t0 8,0% of the closing book in the previous year.

Net bad debt to credit transactions increased to 3,5% from the previous
year’s 3.0%"*. Net bad debt write-off to debtors increased to 8,3% from

the previous year's 7,4% .

Key debtor statistics 2007
Number of active accounts {'000) 2163
Credit sales as 2 % of tolal retail sales 66,7
Net debtors” book (Rm) W 22352
Arrear debtors % o debtors' book | 250
Net bad debt write-off* as a % of

credit transactions 0
Nel bad gdebt write-ofi* as a % of

debiors’ book 74
Doutrtiut debt provision as a % of

debtors’ book 8,0
% able to purchase 82,1

* Including VAT, exchfing maovement in provision.
** Restated 10 exclude R19.8 milion abnormal sale of writlen off accounts.
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Credit costs

Credit costs increased by 11,6% in the year. The factoes influencing this
increase were an investment in systems to contend with the NCA, as well
as marketing expenses related to invitationa! mailings.

Strategy

A good leve! of success has been achieved in providing value-added
products 1o customers. Having done this, the division, like other retailers,
now taces the challenge of achieving growth in its customer base,

The respanse 1o this challenge lies to a great extent in optimal use of the
group’s national presence and the number of ditferent offerings across the
group. It will also be necessary to increase product cross-shopping across
the various chains within the group, and with this In mind a customer
relationship management programme has been initiated. This will be
teaded by a senior executive transferred from a ftrading division.
By exploiting the analysis capabilities which have been bullt up in the
anaiytics unit of the division, the team headed by this executive will be
able to seek out opportunities o increase the customer base and increase
the group’s share of customers’ wallels while satisfying customers that
they are receiving added value by shopping at the group’s chains. Some
products thal can be sold on a direct basis are also being investigated.

In the past year a sizeable propartion of customers indicated a preference
for repaying their accounts over extended pericds. They will now be
accommogated by the group's introduction of a 12-month plan as a
defavlt eption (although a 6-month facliity can still be chosen by both
existing and new credil customers]. Ouring the Course of the nexi year
customers witl have the option of moving to the full 12-month lacility.
This exercise will bring relief to some customers in that they can lower
the amounts of their instalments, while others can raise the iotal of their
purchases while still paying the same monthly instalments. This should
have a stimulatory effect on sales throughout the group.

Prospects

Despile the present economic downturn and some negalive sentiment
in (he market, the division’s abjectives will be the continued efiicient
management of debtors and the achlevement of growth in the customer
hase. If these objectives can be aftained they will provide a meaningful
contribution to the group's overall perfoemance.
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Kacl Westvig

Review of the year

The weakening economic conditions which prevailed in the second half of
the past year took their toll on the RCS Group and the outcome was a

The RCS Group
decline of 19,7% in profit before tax.

The RCS Group Is a majority-owned bist operationally independant division

which provides a broad range of financial services to customers of the

Foschini group and also to customers of unrelated retailers. = an over-generous supply of consumer credit by many credit suppliers
in a period preceding the implementation of the National Credit Act
(NCA) on 1 June 2007 — what has become known as the pre-NCA
Gold Rush;

«  asignificant pull-back in credit purchases after 1 June 2007 coupled
with generally unfavourable market conditions;

Factors leading to this decline were:

The RCS Group consists of three separate business units named
Transactional Finance, Fixed Term Finance and Other Investments,

The Transactional Finance unit is a card business made up of two
sub-units, one providing a general-purpose credit card known as the
RCS Card, and the other sub-unit being concerned with private label card

programmes. * (he removal by the NCA of artificial regulatory barmiers, resulting in

credit marke! convergence and margin-shaving by credit suppliers
The Fixed Term Finance unlt also comprises two sub-unils, known as under heavily competitive conditions;
RCS Personal Loans and RCS Home Loans. e , .
*  Ihe effect of rising inflation on consumers’ budgets for living expenses;
The Other Investments unit is at this stage fimited to holding 60% of the -
shares in Effective Intelligence {Pty) Limited, a data intelligence company.

interest rate Increases of 4,5% over the previous two years, eroding
customers” spending power and squeezing product margins;

Whilst there is a degree of commonality in systems and seme sharing of « 2 significant worsening in pattems of payment by credit customers

operational resources, the busingss uniis are tunctionally separate and
have their own fields of operation, manzgement teams, budgets and profit
models. The decision to differentiate the businesses was taken at the
establishment of this division i 1939 in order to ensure that the Foschini
group's focus on its traditiona! frading activities was not lost, and that a
profits and costs associated with this division were clearly ring-fenced.

give yoursel{~
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across the whole market; and

* increased collection costs to combat payment defaulls stemming
from some of the factors mentioned above.

Despite the sethacks it inflicled, the past year opened up various
opportunities for the RCS Group to diversily its operations and make
significant investments in infrastructure, Major investments were made in:

s personnel for the management team, both executive and operational;

* premises leased to allow the division (o consolidate its operations at
a single location;

* data warehouse and businass intelligence systems; and

» strategic investments in the form of the acquisition of Effeclive
Intelligence (Pty) Limited.

During the year the RCS Group moved further towards its goal of
becoming & fully-fieoged South Alrican consumer finance business by
expanding its product range, improving its solid business platiorm and
enhancing its infrastructure.
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Foschini group Finociol services continued
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Transactional Finance

The RCS Cards unit has undergong spectacudar growth as a result of
changes made to its business model in 2006 which led (o greater support
by merchants. The general-purpose ACS Card is now accepied in the
businesses of more than 7 500 merchants nationally across various
industries. Thus the unit's cardholders have better utility than before,

The Privale Label Cards unit, which continues 1o be a strategic growth
business, again grew the number of customers and tumover In the
Queenspark portfolio above expectations. The credit operations of
Massdiscounters (MBD), which were acquired in the course of the
year, will be a significant addition to the private labe) card operations.
The acquisition is awaiting final approval from the competition authorities.

2008 % change
Transactional Finance
Interast income 466
Interest expense 80,0
Other income 773
Tota! income 50,0
Net bad debt 162.0
Credil costs 456 e
Profit before tax and minorities (105
Transactional Finance
- Key debtor statistics 2007
Number of active accounts {'000) 366
Net debtors’ book (Rm) g26,7
Arrear debtors % lo debtors 20,3
Net bad debt write-off as a % of
credit transactions 35
Net bad debt write-off as a % of
debtors' book 44
Oouttfut debt provision as a % of
debtors’ book 76
Applicants granted crecit (%) 479
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Review of the year

Merchant turnover through our cards in the past year was R1,36 billion
{2007: R1,14 billion). In the current market this is a significant
achievement.

The introduction of a single-format card with lower merchant commission
rates in August 2005 has had an extremely positive impact on merchart
acceptance and consequently on tumover through the card. The wider
acceptance has also lifted the number of new accounts, the active hase
rising to 435 000 (2007: 366 000). The RCS Card continues to make
inroads into the broader card market.

Revenue growth was strongly positive as a result of better preduct pricing,
robust book growth over a threg-year period and increased credit turnover.

Net bad debt cost increased significantly as a result of the lagged effect
of strong book growth since 2005. Arrear debtors have increased to
29,1% (2007: 20,3%} of the portfolio. This reflects the effect of adverse
market conditions and the continuing upward trends in interest rates and
levels of indebtedness, with the excessive credit granted by some
lenders before the implementation of the NCA also playing a role,
This increased risk has been covered in the increased provision made on
the portfolio. It is, however, expected that debtor statistics will normalise
in the next year.

Credit costs have been contained at tess than revenue growth. Increased
costs arose mainly from collection costs and from investment in key skills
and infragtructure. Further investments in skills and infrastructure are still
being made to enable the unit to provide superior service to its merchants
and customers.

Tight control was exercised on direct costs under the unit’s control and as
a result the cost-to-income ratio decreased to 34,1% (2007: 35,2%).

Prospects

Credit turnover is expected to rise despite current tough trading
conditions. This should lead to continued healthy book and revenue
growth. Although bad debt growth can be expected to remnain high during
the coming year, rising revenue coupled with strong cost control should
result in satisfactory performance in the future.

The unit is well positioned to utitise new channels and to add to existing
private labet programmes. The business model fundamentals are therefore
in place to provide sustainable profit growth over the longer term.

&8  Foschini Greup Annual Report 2008

Fixed Term Finance

This unit provides personal loans to customers of the Foschini group and
to others. Customers are attracted by the convenience and simplicity of
the RCS personal loan offer, with a large part of the process being handied
telephonically. The high level of repeat loans attests to the appeal of the
loan model.

The selection criteria for loan applicants remain sirict, whilst response
modelling has been improved. The unit's challenge in the next year, when
tough trading conditions are again expected, will be to balance volume
growth with product profitability and credit risk.

2008 % change 2007

Fixed Term Finance Rm Rm
Interest income ﬁﬁﬁi 59 3365
Interest expense " '(E‘I&S}) 82 4.7
Other income e 224 755
Total income 01 370,3
Net bad debt 24,5 67,7
Credit costs 27,5 (92,0)
Profit before tax and minorities (19,7 210,6

Fixed Term Finance

- Key debtor statistics 2007
Number of active accounts {'000) 204
Net debtors’ book (Rm) 866,5
Arrear debtors % to debtors 8.6
Net bad debt write-off as a % of

debtors’ baok 33
Doubtful debt provision as a % of

debtors’ book 87

Review of the year

RCS Personal Loans' profit before tax has been hampered by higher bad
debt provisions, increased bad debt write-offs and pressures on product
margin stemming from increased cost of borrowings and higher collection
costs.




Net interest revenue declined as a consequence of the smaller debtors’
book and increased bosrowing costs. Interest hedging mitigated some of
the higher borrowing costs. Other income increased as a result of some
pricing adjustments to fees after the implementation of the NCA.

Amear debtors increased to 14,3% (2007 8,6%) of the portfalio.
The factors which affected this unit's bad debt position are similar to those
experienced in the Transactional Finance unit referred to above.
The increased risk of default has resulted in increased amounts for bad
debt provisions and write-offs.

Credit costs increased by 27,5% mainly as a result of higher collection
costs and the unit's investment in key skills and infrastructure.
Tight control was exercised on direct costs under the unit's control.
As a result, the cost-to-income ratio remains acceptable at 31,6%
(2007 24,8%) when taking into account the lack of book growth and the
significant investments made during the past year.

All key debtor statistics were affected by the lower debtors’ book, the
reduction in its size resulting mainly from lower credit advances after the
implementation of the NCA. Taking into account the lower levels of
advances and debtors’ book growth the rise in key debtor ratios remains
in ling with current market trends.

Prospects

The Fixed Term Finance unit remains a profitable business with significant
growth opportunities. Before the implementation of the NCA the fixed-term
loan offer was capped at R10 000 in amount and 36 months in duration.
By utilising some of the post-NCA opportunities and after conducting
extensive market research, the unit launched a new personal loan product
during the last quarter of the 2008 year. Some of its features are:

« alonger term (capped at 60 months);

« g higher amount (loans in excess of R10 000); and

+ flexible risk-based pricing to compete in wider market segments.
This product should allow the unit to increase credit advances and grow
the debtors™ book in the next year. High levels of recoveries are also
expected because of write-offs in the past, an improvement in the ,.‘j

arrears position in the coming year and a better risk mix among
customers for the new product. -

This will have a positive impact on the new year.
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New Ventures

The RCS Group made an acquisition of 60% of the shareholding in
Effective Intelligence, a data intelligence company. Although this
acquisition was strategic in nature, its profits, whilst not material for the
group, exceeded expectations.
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group finance and administration

The Group Finance and Administration division Is a centralised service Treasury
division thal provides support o the other divisions in the group.

. . This department i sible for managing the group’s foreign exchange
The division’s tunctions cover the following areas of responsibility: 'S Cepariment s resport haging The grop's foreign exciiang

and funding poiicies. The department ensures that the group’s funding
Financial accounting and corporate reporting needs are provided for with adequate credit lines and appropriate financial
instruments at the lowest cesl, and that daily cash management is

This department is responsibie for:
epanment s ble for oplimised. Investments and interest rate risk are managed in consultation

» the collating and production ¢f the group’s interim and annual with the Financial Direclor within the parameters laid down by the beard.
financial statements; The department, in conjunction with the Taxation department, assists with

+  corporale communications and shareholder reporting: various commercial initiatives that affect the group.

e ensuring compliance with all required accounting standards and Taxation

requirements; an . . . . .
Statutory requirements: and This department is responsible for all aspects of the group's taxation

¢ laison with the external auditors, compliance. By fts nature, it is staffed by highly skiled experts who
Management accounting constantly remain abreast of current and pending legislation.

Managemenl accounting compeises: Secretarial and administration

* contiol of the group's financial accounting systems and intemal This depastment is responsibte for:

contrals; ¢ maintenance of the group's statutory recards;
*  co-ordination and consolidation of all the group's financial planning, «  administration of the Foschini Group Retirement Fund;
including annual budgets and quarterty re-projections; o administration of the group’s rademarks:
= divisional financial repaning to enable accurate managememt o administration relating t0 the preparation and signing of the group's
decislon-making; and store leases;
« all operational financial reporting at store, area, regional and divisional o Ihe group's compliance function; and
level. '
« provision of legal assistance and advice to other divisions of
Genera finance and administration the group.
General finance and administration comprises: Risk management
» processing and payment of all merchandise costs, expenses and The risk management department is responsible for the
rental transactions; following functions:
* gnsyring that all stores deposit the correct amounts datly; and « managing and contrafling the risk management
« administration of store and head office inventory and claims. process, as defined by the risk committee and as
The maintenance and development of the SAP financial system is [ﬂgﬁ by the Code of Corporate Practices 2nd
inctuded in the division's responsibifities. The division intends to continue ’
to investigate the use of other modules within SAP in order to obtain the « gbtaining anrd maintalning appropriate insurance for

full benefits of the integration capabikities of the systsm. the group;
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e the administration of all group insurance claims and the compitation Non-merchandise procurement
. of comprehensive loss statistics;

The group procurement process ensures that best practice is followed in

= control over the group business continuity planning process; and all areas of the purchasing process throughout the group. Quarterty

« facilitation of inter-divisional store security meetings, as well as the procurement reports are made to the procurement committee, comprising
hGSting of similar informal meetiﬂgs with other retailers to allow three members of the Operating hoard and two Senior maragers.
cross-poltination of loss prevention informatien and strategies. In addition, the procurement manager ensures that the BBBEE

A detailed risk analysis is contained in the corporate governance report. procurement strategy as defined by the transformation committee is

implemented. Further details of initiatives in this regard are contained in
the sustainability report.
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service divisions gontinued

group audit services

The Group Audit Services (GAS) division's primary responsibility is 10
support the group’s commitment to strong corporate governance and
sound internal control. While management is rasponsible for the
development, implementation and manitoring of efective control
systems, GAS assists management in fulfiling this commitment,
This is done by evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of controls
to support management in its pursuit of sustainable achievement of
business objectives. lts scope includes the appraisal of performance
measures, the reliability of management information, operational
controts and the safeguarding of assets.

An internal audit charter, approved by the audit committee of the
board, determines the scope and mission of GAS' activities.
The charter conforms to the International Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as defined by the Institute of
Internal Auditors {IIA).

Although GAS is responsible to the Financial Director for
administrative matters, GAS reports to the audit committee.

The 17 staff members of GAS are responsible for the audits of
all group operations.
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Head office and information system

The head office and information system (S) audit teams co-operate closely to
provide internal audit services for the group’s head office operations. This
includes financial areas, such as accounts payable and the large credit
operations, as well as non-financial areas, including shopfitting, risk
management and distribution centres.

[n addition, the IS audit team conducts technical reviews covering Foschinidata
areas such as database administration and networks.

The audit teams make extensive use of technology such as automated
scanning and data interrogation tools to improve assurance reporting 1o
management. In addition, auditors often bacome involved when new computer
systems are developed in order to ensure that cost-effective controls are
considered at both the system design stage {prior to implementation) and
during system implementation. In this way the risk of business interruption is
reduced.

Store audits

Current store audit coverage is between 15% and 20% of group stores per
year (approximately 25% of all stores’ turnover), but maximum leverage is
obtained by ensuring that at least 85% of alt the area managers experience a
minimum of one audit every year. The audited store’s administrative
performance can then be benchmarked against that of other stores in the same
trading division.

The store audit team has developed a scoring system that enables
management to evaluate the administrative health of stores both within and
across frading divisions. Given the geographic spread of stores, as far afield as
Namibia and Botswana, the planning of visits is crucial in ensuring that the
planned coverage is met. The experience and professionalism of the store
auditors has contributed significantly to the success of the store audit team.

Control workshops for field and store management are held regularly.
Goals

GAS is committed to providing quality internal audit services at a competitive
cost. This is done by measuring and monitoring audit productivity and other
performance factors, and keeping abreast of international trends. The IT audit
team recently completed the configuration of a standalone facility to support
the testing of sophisticated audit tools in a controlled environment.

Divisional projects to increase the automation of audit processes by
implementing an electronic working papers (EWP) system and to provide
infernal auditors with a mobile work environment are well advanced.
Implementation of the EWP software for the head office audit teams has
been completed and phased implementation for store audits will commence
during 2009.




foschinidato

Foschinidata, the division responsibte for the group's in-house information
and communication technotogy (ICT) services, experienced a high level of
activity during the past year. Planned future activity will be equally intense,
bearing testimony to the group's continuing refiance on this technology
{ICT) and to the benefits it offers to the retail industry.

The division has developed an ICT delivery model which allows the group
to undertake large and technically challenging projects on time and within
budget. This model was put to full use in the past year in an ongeing drive
to improve operational efficiencies and reduce costs.

Key initiatives successfully achieved during the past year included the
following:

» replacement of the group's sales audit system with the Windows
Biztalk system;

= introduction on a pilot basis of an electronic time and attendance
system for the group’s stores;

» development of an electronic funds transfer (EFT) system which is
integrated at store level with the group's point-of-sale (POS) system;

+ implementation of a system known as “Size Scaling by Intellect” to the
retail apparel divisions (so that the correct sizes and quantities of
garments can be determined for delivery to stares in accordance with
their history of sales); and

» the rofl-out of an electronic style card system to the retail divisions.
Total capital expendituse of the ICT division for the year amounted to
R59 million. Operating expenses were R184 million, representing 2,3% of

sales. Budgsted operating expenses for the next year are broadly in line
with those of the past year and capital expenditur2 will grow by 20%.

Key initiatives for the 2009 year include:

« commencement of roll-out of the time and attendance system to all
the group’s stores;

» commencemant of the EFT system in all the group’s stores;

* upgrading of the @home division’s merchandise and planning
systems;

= upgrading of the group's data storage and data back-up technofogies;

200500 0,0:00,0900900000000

« commencement of a three-year process to replace the existing
warehouse management system in the group’s distribution centres
with a system known as Manhattan;

« implementation of an advanced security and Intrusion prevention
system on the group's networks;

« commencement of a business user data mining and business
intelligence (BN initiative (which provides a central repasitory of
business data for analysis and interrogation at different levels by the
use of open-source tools);

« continuation of a server consolication and virtualisation programme
designed to improve operational efficiencies, reduce infrastruciure
costs and reduce the carbon footprint of the ICT infrastructure, and
hence align it with the group's “Enviranment Green” initiative; and

s developing and enhancing various credit systems to cater for new
financial products.

With governance objectives in view, a number of exercises were
conducted to test the disaster recovery plans on which the group refies for
business continuity.
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service divisions continued

group logistics
Structure and functions Review of the year

In the past year the DCs handled 44,0 million units (.e. individual items of
stock), reflecting a drop of 0,5% in unit volumes from the previous year.

The Group Logistics division is responsible for managing stock recalved
from suppliers and for distributing it to stores efficiently and on time,

The group has eight distribution centres (DCs) based near the head office
in Cape Town. From them takes place the group's entire stock distribution
function, including receiving, storage, picking, packing and despatching.

The cost per unit to process stock through the DCs was 4,6% higher
than last year, which was well below the CPIX rate notwithstanding
significant increases in diesel fue! prices. Without the fuel price increases

{he cost per unit would have remained al last year's figure. This reflects a
substantial improvement in productivity.

The OCs together with the divisions or operations they serve are as
folows:

Productivity figures in the form of cost per unit and units per man-hour are
closely measured and benchmarked against corresponding figures of the
world's leading retailers.

+ Tygerberg DC. Foschini, Donna-tlaire, Fashionexpress footwear,
@hame and returned goods;

* @homelivingspace DC: a new site for furniture;

« Ncabeni DC: Exact!, Markham and Style Accumulation (comprising
certain partly-completet orders);

+ Sports DC: Totatsports, Sportscene and DueSouth;

* Foschini OC; Faschini, Donna-claire and Fashionexpress apparel;

* Jewellery DC: American Swiss, Stems, Matrix ar Foschini Jewellery;
»  (loth Store: Fabric for focal production of apparel; and

« Shopfitting DC: Shopiitting stock for the group.

The cost of logistics as a percentage of group tumover was 1,95%,
representing a slight improvement on the 1,57% achieved in the
previous year. This figure includes depreciation, industrial engineering, |
management costs, labour, packaging and outhound transport.

The materials handling improvement programme was completed by
the instaflation of the fina! RapidPac materials handling System.
This equipment was acquired to provide better efficiency in the handling
of flow-through products. The DCs that support replenishment continue
fo operate by the use of radio frequency devices, which have greater
flexbility.

With the aim of improving stock tum, the division will in the next year
make a start on replacing Nautilus, the cument warehouse management
software, with Manhatian, which is the leading software in this fleld.
The change-over will be implemented throughouwt the DCs gver the nexi
three to four years. There will be & simultaneous critical review of
busingss processes in order to maximise supply chain effectiveness,
This replacement will be important in supparting the group's supply chain
initiative which is referred to below.

During the year the division put out to tender the outbound transport
business, with the result that new contracts were signed with HRP, RAM
and Grindrod Logistics {Boltt).

The major risk assoclated with the DCs i fire. Fire-fighting raining,
maintenance of fire-fighting equipment, atmospheric detection and inter-
rack sprinkler systems mitigate the risk of fire or at least of exiensive fire
damage, and close attention was again given to these issues.
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Generators have been provided at all the DCs In order 1o aveld
or minimise the ill effects of electricity interruptions.

Security is 2n important element of the distribution operation, particularly
al and near the time of transportation. The group’s DCs are equipped
with CCTV cameras and are guarded 24 hours 2 day. As pant ol the
security procedures, access cantrol systems are In place. The group's
security procedures are extended to iis transport partners, who have
comprehensive security through a combination of secured premises and
sateliite-racked vehicles, Security measures again received close
atiention in the pas! year In view of the high incidence of crime in
South Africa,

Business continuity plans are in place and they were again regularly tested
and reviewed by the group’s risk commitiee,

Supply chain initiative

Mention has been made in the previpus annual report and in varius
reports in this document of the group's supply chain initiative, an extensive
and engoing review of the group's supply chain practices. is objective is
to develop a sustainable and world-class model of supply chain
management that enhances the group's capabilities in the fast fashien
retail business.

There are four projects within this initiative, namely:

e Supplies relationship management.

« Lead time.

+ Replenishmenl.

« Foschini and Exact! pipeling management.

The plan for all the pojects has been scoped to include the following
targets, which are deemed to be criical to the success of the initiative:
» defined standard operating procedures;

* shoner lead times;

e guaranteed quality;

¢ ephanced refiability;

» reduced waste within the supply chain; and

» decreased inventory holding, hence more rapid stock turn.

There has been pleasing progress with the initiative and il is expected thal
significant earty benefits will be realised in the next year,
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nuMaN resources

The role of the Group Human Resources (HR) division is to set and
implement strategies for human interaction within the group, working in
collaboration with the group's frading and service divisions. The HR
division also provides a common platform to group companies for the
provision of best practice HR.

The services listed below are provided by the division and are directed at
the group's employees and at HR practitioners working within the group's
trading and service divisions:

* management of the group’s payroll for its more than 15 000
employees;

+ management of policies regarding benefits and the practices
associated with all these policies;

« performance management;

*  reward,

e talent development;

+ organisational structure management;

*  [esourcing;

+ employment equity and transformation;

e f{raining and development;

¢ industrial relations and dispute resofution; and

e corporate social responsibility {CSI).

In providing these services the division makes use of specialised

information technology aimed at providing data where and when it can be
used most effectively.

The group recognises that its success is dependent on the full
commitment of its employees within an occupational framework that is
moral, fair, has social conscience and c¢an readily be managed. The HR
division carries out the value management process as one of its functions.
As a result all HR policies and processes rest on a foundation supplied by
a code of values which has become known as the Foschini Group Values.
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Group values
The Foschini Group Values are as follows:

* we maintain our integrity by being honest, open and ethical in all our
dezlings;

* we are committed to providing “exceeding service™ to customers and
giving them value for money;

+ we treat people with dignity and respect and ensure a supportive,
encouraging environment;

* we believe in equal opportunity and development for all, and reward
peaple fairly according to responsibility, effort and perfarmance; and

* we are committed to self-critical professionalism, with visible and
consistent standards and a constant search for performance
improvement,

Talent management

The management of talent, which encompasses recruitment, performance
management, development, succession planning and reward remains a
priority function in the division. This is a critical function in view of the
prevailing shortage of skills in South Africa and the intense competition
which takes place to attract and retain talented employees, particularly in
view of the requirements of the Employment Equity Act (EEA). Talent audits
are conducted twice a year and on the basis of their resuits retention and
development plans are then formulated and carrded out. Trends in the
departures of employees from the group are monitored to enable the
group to react to any risks that might endanger adequate employee or
talent retention.

Details follow of some of the division's ongeing activities and action taken
in the past year,

Recruitment: An on-line recruitment tool, accessible through the group's
website, has been developed and is being used fo identify and process
candidates for vacancies in the group. Psychometric tests and
assessment tools are used to enhance its effectiveness. More than 900
appointments were made by its use during the past year. Preference is
given to intemma! candidates as part of the group's commitment to
advancing the careers of its employees.

Parformance management: Employees are reviewed against measurable
goals set in March of each year and progress reviews are conducted twice
a year. The reviews are supported by training and development plans in a




service divisions continued

constant drive to raise levels of employee competence. The process of
review, traditionally less than systematic and open to Subjective
influences, has been moved on to a far more satisfactory plane by the use
of the competency wheet illustrated betow. It displays the success factors
required from the group’s employees and aflocates weightings to them.
This model was devised through intensive internal and external research
and all the factors which are taken into account during recruitment,
development and promotion of staff are to be found on it. It provides a
single simple tool for use throughout the group, enabling objective
measurement and comparison 1o be made in all circumstances.

Talent development; During the past year there has been intense focus on
improving the training of employees. This has resulted in a reorganisation
of training structures within the trading divisions in favour of a centralised
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skills management
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training structure. The objective of this training is to build both generic
business competence and leadership competence.

For these purposes the division launched:

« aretail academy for store managers;
* a buyer and merchandise planner trainee development programme
aimed at newly-emploved talent; and

« 3 buyer and merchandise planner academy for honing the skills of
existing merchants.

All of these are in-house developments specifically designed o cater for
identified skills requirements within the group.

The retail academy for store managers touches every store manager and
potential store manager both nationally and in Namibia.

The curriculum is aimed primarily at advancing the following goals and
objectives: ’

development of business skills and improved retail knowledge;
+ managing employee relations and performance; and

e equipping store managers as coaches to develop their staff.

The buyer and planner trainee development programme
is available to new and young talent in the group.
The programme is run over a period of 18 to 36 months
and combines technical and generic interventions to
build the capacity of the trainees. The programme

> SUCCESS
" FACTORS
g

‘Interpersonal " Leadership
skitls - - and

weay spt‘.mn

Functional / Technical /
Knowledge / Skills

inctudes a coaching compenent by which each trainee is
trained on a personal basis by a technical coach as well
as a senior mentor.

Reward: Best practice jn the area of reward is
critical in this environment where there is intense
competition for skilled people. A number of projects have
been completed in this connection to ensure that our
approaches are up to date and refevant and that they provide
the group with the best opportunity to employ and retain people.
With these objectives in mind the division has implemented a new job
evaluation system designed to achieve more effective measurement and
comparisen of jobs internally and externally.
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service divisions continued

human resources continued

Leadership

. Passage 6: ‘
Pl Cotcrprise/Group Leader \
’

N\ Cossege & Gummstonay §

Passage 4: Functional Lcader‘

Passage 3: Leads Managers

Passage 2: Manages Others

Passage 1: Manages Sell ‘

A “pipeline™ leadership modet similar to the one ilustrated above is
intended to provide a framework to grow leaders to meet an organisation's
future leadership requirements. The develapment of such a model has
been a matier of high priority in the past year. The model created by tha
division highlights key milestones thal make up the developmental
process for future leaders. Each milestone requires that the subject gain
proficiency in a variety of competencies hal are associated with a critical
career stage. Career progression is based on mastery of these concepls,
given sufficient time to achieve competence. The process is supplemented
by assessments, specialised fraining, coaching, and various projects and
assignments. The capability of each developing leader is carefully
monitored and reviewed. Individuals advance on this joumey according to
their level of performance and capabiiity.

Employment equity (EE)

The group is commitled o being a demographically representative
organisation which gives competent individuals equal opportunity at alt
tevels and on all occasions. It operates through the following policies:

¢ Sourcing: Trainee recruitment has focused on blatk candidates during
tha past year and a total of 70% of alt trainees that were appointed
were from this group.

*  Development. Employess’ needs have been identified during
periormance development discussions and taler assessment maps
have been used {0 identify employees who will banefit from focused
coaching interventions and one-to-ong mentoring, Specific training

78 = Foschink Group Annual Report 2008

Black Management

2001 2005 2006 2007

courses and interventions and curriculums for merchants and field
and store managers are in place.

s Measuring performance: The performance management process
was entrenched inio the organisation during the past year and will be
used extensively in the talent management reviews that are held
twice a year.

The policies outlined above have led to an increase of 57% since 2003 in
the number of appointments of btack individuals to positions in midd!e and
senior management in the group. Of these appointees, 50% were women.

Skills levy

During the past year the group paid skills levies of R9,8 million.
The maximum available rebate from the Wholesale and Rstail SETA
was recovered. Further details on this topic are set out in the sustainability
report.

HIV/AIDS

The wvoluntary counselling and testing (VCT) programme (hat was
introduced during the previous year is now well entrenched. It is available
to all employees in South Africa and negotiations are under way to extend
it to Namibia. The group arranges for free treatment to be provided,
including antiretroviral therapy, to any employee who is HIV-positive.

Since September 2006 a total of 538 employees have accessed the
VCT programme and 30 employees have envolled for treatment, It is
recognised that empioyee participation is fow and it is planned to expand
ts reach nationally during the next year.
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Qroup services

The Group Services division's mission is 10 add value to the operations of -

ather divisions by providing expert and streamiined {faciities management R
services so that the other divisions are enabled to achieve operational i
efficiency and workplace well-being on a cost-cifective basls. The divisien 9
comprises 70 siaff members, a number which has been static for some
years.

| Outsourced suppliers are used edensively, with a focus on those with

retail expertise. Benefits are extracted for the group by implementing strict

I service tevel agreemeants across the board and utilising a limited number

' of suppliers well known to the group. Service level agregments incorparate
provisions recognising the uniqueness of the group and addressing its
special negds ang methodologies.

Once leases for space have been contluded, the Group Services division
ensures that the premises are supplied with the necessary fittings and
eguipment, whether the premises comprise warehouses or offices.

Another function of the division is to ensure thal ongoing maintenance of
all buildings, plant and equipment takes place. In total, 19 properties are
managed on this basis.

These functions include management of the installation and maintenance
of all security, fire detection and access control systems, as well as
implementing and managing the occupational health and safety
programme, From a governance perspective all security and fire
evacuation systems are tested on a reqular basis. Al offices, with the
exception of the non-critical lsando property, have back-up power
generators. isando has extended uninterrupted power supply (UPS)
battery Gfe.

The Group Services division also attends {o the procurement of
standardised office automation equipment (printers, coplers, audiovisual),
vehicles and capital equipment other than computars.

The fleet depariment aperates within the mandated capilal budget,
monitors expenditure levels and negotiates volume discounts through
approved suppllers.

Monitoring of mailrooms, reception areas, switchboards and store alarms
are among the services provided.

COutsourced conlractoes managed by the division include those providing
catering, physical guarding, gardening, architectural, mechanical,
electronic and electrical and travel services.
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service divisions continued

group property

The Group Property division is responsible for administering the group’s
leases of space for all its stores, which numbered 1 393 at the year-end,
and for administering three properties which the group has historically
owned and fram which it $till trades. The divislon's tasks include assessing
space fequirements ang matching them with suitable properties,
negotiating leases and extensions of leases with landlords and
maintaining relationships with landlords over the periods of leases that
sometimes extend for as long as ten years.

Property rental payments make up the second largest item of expenditure
for the group, and i is accordingly vital to optimise the benefits to be
pained from rentals.

The group's policy is to rent rather than to own since, for a trader, the role
of a tenant as against that of an owner provides greater flexibility and
makes it possible for impartial decisions to be taken about all matiers
aftecling properties.

The group's three owned properties are focated in the central business
districts of Gape Town, Johannesburg and Durban respectively, and have
been in its possession for several decades.

Store openings and space acquisition

During the year under review 76 new stores were opened across the
group's 14 trading units, The net total trading area grew by almast
23 000 square metres, an increase of 6,0% on the previous year,
At the end of the year the group’s 1 393 stores occupied a total of
403 601 square metres of space.

The Foschini womenswear division (comprising Foschini, Donna-claire,
Fashionexpress and Luella) added the largest amount of extra space with
19 new stores.

The jewellery and sporis divisions opened 19 and 15 new stores
respectively. The jewellery units comprise American Swiss, Sterns and
Matrix, while Totalsports, Sportscene and DueSouth make up the sporls
division.

Markham increased its footprint by an additional en stores nationally.
Included in these were four Markham Relay stores which carry only
casuatwear and, being about 150 square metres in &rea, are smaller than
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4 full-ine Markham store. The Markham Relay brand is seen as having
substantial expansion potential.

The homeware division opened a further ten stores, ane of which one was
an @homelivingspace store in the Loch Logan mall in Bloemiontein,
carrying a comprehensive product range that incledes furniture.

Exact! opened three new siores during the year, adding an extra
1 445 square metres to this division's trading space.

Across the group twelve stores were enlarged in key locations to relieve
the pressura of excessive trading densities, whilst the trading area in three
over-sized stores was reduced.

A further 14 stores were relocated to superior trading positions and "right-
sized” in the process. A total of 15 enderperforming stores were closed.
New centres

New centres that opened during the course ol the year and in wiich the
group is represented were:

Mapoaya Mall (Sowelo):

Greenstone {East Rand);

Ireng Mall {Pretoriai

Hitlcrest (KwaZulo-Nalaly; and

Lach Logas (Bloemiontein).

The group intends to open stores in the next year in numerous centres,
among them the following new centres:

Zevenwacht (Western Cape);
Weslwond {Wastville):
Wonderboom (Pretoria MNorthy;
Richards Bay (KwoaZulu-Natal);
The Reds (Pretoria);

Jetireys Bay (Eastern Cape);

Kierksdorp (North West Pravince), and
Kathu (Narthern Cape).

Some 30 new stores are scheduled to open within the first few weeks of
the new financial year.
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Growth in trading space

Despite the Eskom power shortages and the cument subdued retad
conditions the construction of new retail buildings in South Africa is
continuing apace. The pgroup intends to fake advantage of new
opportunities which are emerging and will increase #s trading space by
approximately 10% in the next year, as against a raie of approximately 7%
in preceding years.

The cument phase of construction will thus provide the group with a
welcome appoctunity to raise its activity in space acquisition and marks a
departure from acquisition levels that prevailed in the corresponding
phase of previous business cycles. The programme for the immediate
future will be undertaken on a highly selective basis, with a view lo
enabling the group to benefit fully from the uptum when the business
cycle changes.

Factors influencing current property policy decisions

The division continuously assesses trading performance in relation lo the
location of its stores and naturally pays particular atterition to sites where
it has a very large presence. Among these are Menlyn (Preloria East),
Gateway (Umhlanga), Canal Walk (Cape Town}, Sandion (both Sandton City
and Sandton Square}, Eastgate {Johannesburg East), Montana (Pretoria
North-East), Mitchells Plain (Cape Town), Westville Paviion (KwaZulu-
Natah), East Rand Mall, Cresta {Johannesburg) and Tygervalley (Cape
Town). This assessment process will be particularty intanse in the current
weak economic climate.

A trend in shopping cenire desion which iS on an upward curve
intemationally at present is that of so-cafled "open" malls, which are
generally low-rise buildings configured around parking areas. For
develapers this style of design is substantially cheapes than monolithic
mubli-storey "closed” complexes, with a benefit of lower rental to tenants,
Two types of these “open” malls have emerged. One afiracts value-based
fraders and is not of primary interest to the group, although some of ils
divisions are represented in thase centres. The other is what may be called
“lifestyle* certres accommodating stores that sell homeware and fumiture
and other specialist retailers, and also providing sociy gathering points
such as restauranis and coffee bars. The group is well represented in
complexes of this design.

Angther trend which is emerging overseas but has yet to make a
significant appearance in South Africa Is “green” architecture for shopping
centres, invalving eco-friendly features to save electricity, water and other
resources. This trend could have significant benefits for tenants and the
group wiil press for these measures at siles where they are appropriate.

Effects of electrical power outages

Retailers have a particular aversion to power outages since history shows
that sales lost during hours when trading cannot take place are never fully
recovered, (This is perhaps a reflection of the fact that some shopping is
done on a “want” basis rather than a "nead” basis.)

There have been ingvitable fosses in the group as a result of the power
breakdawns suffered throughout South Africa in recent months, and much
thought is being given 1o possible solutions. The cost of installing fully
satisfactory backup generating power in a large shopping centre may
exceed R100 mifign, and the extra capital o be invested, with dubious
retums, Is a factor of great concern {o landlords. Partial sofutions which
provide adequate if lowish lighting, some alr movement falling short of air-
conditioning and retention of power to retailers’ computerised fills, are a
compromise which large retail chains may have to accepl. Even these
solutions are not always attainable. At present, therefore, the outages
femain a problem In search of a solution. The national public authorities to
whom traders and trade associations have tumed for remedies which are
essentially within their sphere of responsibility have so far nol come
forward with a convincing action plan.

Security against crime

The past year has seen a shift in the pattems of crime experienced by
retailers, at feast to the extent that gang-type incursions at shopping
centres are on the rise. These incidents invariably involve firearms and
usually cause loss of high-value stock on a substantial scale. There have
dlso been undue numbers of hold-ups of store personnel at gunpoint,
Traditional security precautions at shopping centres have been unavailing
against the bulk of these incidents and improved strategies are called for.
This topic is recefving close consideration,
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The board of directors of Foschini Limited (referred to in this report as
Foschin} remains fully commiited to business Integrity, faimess,
lransparency and accountability in ali its activities, In support of this
commimment, the board subscribes to the highest slandards of corporate
governance in all aspecis of the business and to the ongoing development
and implementalion of best practices.

Foschini fufly endorses the principles incorporated in the Code of
Carporate Practices and Conduct outlined in the second King report
{King I, and in the listings requirements of the JSE Limited.

Foschini has, in all material respects, complied with King Il and continually
strives to enhance compliance. The application of King Il continues to
serve as a valuable guide to the entrenchment of strong governance
principes (hroughout the group.

A board charter to give effect to these principles has been finalised and
awaits ratilication and adoption.

Main Board of directors

independent non-executive tirectors
E Osrin (Chairman)
D M Rurek
Prof F Abrahams
S E Abrahams
| F Bergman #
WYV Cuba
N H Goodwin

M Lewis Nominations Commilttee
E Osrin (Chairman), D M Nurek; S E Abrahams
D M Polak*, A D Murray***

Non-executive director
D M Polak

Executive directors
A D Murray (CEQ)""
R Stein {Financial Direclor)

# resigned with effect from 14 Aprll 2008

° retired with effect fram 31 Decernber 2007

* appointed to the board on 2 April 2007; appointed CEO on 1 Jenuary 2008
*** appainted 1 Jamuary 2008
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Remuneration Committee
E Osrin {Chairman); Prof F Abrahams; D M Nurek
C J Ginsburg (Consultant)

Risk Committee
D M Nurek (Chairman); E Osrin; D M Polak; R Stein; A D Murray

Audit Committee
S E Abrahams (Chairman); E Osrin; D M Nurek; N H Goodwin

Trangtormation Committee
E Qsrin {Chairman); Prof F Abrahams; D M Polak™; R Stein;
A D Murray***; G S Naidoo (director, operating board)

——yr
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The main board of directors of Foschini Limited
Role and composition

Foschini has a unitary board structure which, at its 31 March 2008 year-
end, comprised two executive and aing non-executive directors. Eight of the
non-executive direciors are independent according to the King It deflnition,

Subsequent to 31 March 2008, L F Bergman resigned as a director,
reducing the board composition to ten directors, seven of whom are
independent non-executive directors. D M Polak, who became a non-
executive director on 1 January 2008, s not independant, based on the
King Il definition, as he has been employed in an execulive capacity by the
group within the past three years.

The two executive direciors are the Chief Exegutive Officer, A O Murray,
and the Financial Director, R Stein.

Detalled information on the directors and thelr credentials appear on
pages 12 and 13.

At 31 March 2008, the board and its committees were constituted as
foliows:
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The non-gxecutive direciors come from diverse backgrounds in commerce
and industry. Their collective experience enables them to provide sound,
independent and objective judgement in decision-making that is in the
best inerests of the group. They are ultimately responsible for the
performance of the group, its long-tenm sustainable growth and the
enhiancement of sharehoider value. They review and ratify the group’s
strategy in addition to monitoring and measuring its performance and
executive management against key periormance indicators. They provide
opinion and advice regarding the group's financial, audit, govemance and
risk management controls. In order to ensure sustainable teadership they
review group transformation and succession planning at senior levels, and
provide input to the remuneration process.

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman are both independent non-executive
directors. The roles of the Chairman, E Osrin, and the Chief Executive
Officer, A D Murray, are separate, with a clear division of responsibiities.
Both pravide leadership and guidance o the company's board, encourage
deliberation en afl matters requiring the board's attention and obtain
optimum input from the other directors. All directors exercise unfettered
discretion in the fufiment of their duties, resutting In constructive debate
at meetings that continues to yield well-considered decisions.

Newty-appointed non-executive directors hold office only until the next
annual genesal meeting, at which time they retire and become eligitie for
re-election as directors. Each year, one-third of the existing board
members are subject to relirement by rotation and are eligive for re-
election as directors by the shareholders. Non-executive directors have no
fixed term of employment, and the perfermance of all directors is subject
to annual peer review.

An Induction programme for new directors is in place with the objective of
maximising their understanding of the group and enabling them
immediately to provide nput and make weil-informed decisions.

Board meetings

The board typically meets quarterly in Cape Town, and further meetings
are held when necessary.

The board and its committees are timeously supplied with comprehansive
information 0 enable them 1o undertake meaningful discussion and
effectively discharge their duties. All directors have urrestricted access
to the company secretary and all company records, as well as to
Independent prafessional advice at the company’s expense in appropriate
cincumsiances.

Board evaluations

An annual evakiation of the board is undertaken by the Chairman by
means of a questionnaire sent to all board members, The results are
cofiated by the Chairman and feedback is provided to the full board.

This annuat evaluation is comprehensive, encompassing all aspects of lhe
board’s responsibilities. It covers both individual member contributions
and the effectiveness of the board as a whole. The resulis of the executive
and non-executive direclors are separately tabulated, in order to gauge
amy aseas of differences in perceplion. No significant variances in this
regard were noted in the past year.

Areas of strength included:

= confrmation of the group's compliance with stock exchange
requirements;

+ the level of feedback and assurance from the audit committes; and

= the board's review and consideration of the annual budget.

Argas for improvement included:

o the succession plan for board members;

» regutar review of the board's limits of autherity; and

» ensuring that each board member is meeting board standards and
expeciations.

Specific aftention will be given in the next year to those areas where

improvement is indicated.

The nominations committeg is responsible for assessing the composition
and effectiveness of all of the board commitiees. Where shortfalls are
identilied, appropriate action is taken to rectily them.

Directors’ shareholdings

The direct and indirect holdings, share options and transactions of the
directors of Foschini at 31 March 2008 are set out in note 14.5.

Non-execulive directors do not participate in the share incentive schemes,
with the exception of Mr D M Polak who obtained options whilst still an
executive of the company.

Personal share dealings

The board complies with the requirements of the JSE Limited in refation
to restrictions on the tading of Foschini’s shares by directors and
employees during the defined closed periods. Restrictions may also be
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corporate governance report continued

placed on share dealings at other times if the group is involved in
corporate activity or sensitive negotiations. The company secretary notifies
all directors and employees prior to the commencement of the closed
trading periods of the prohibitions contained in the Insider Trading Act
relating to share dealings whilst in possession of price-sensitive
information.

Details of directors' share dealings'are disclosed to the listings division of
the JSE Limited and communicated through its electronic news service,
SENS. These dealings are also disclosed at board meetings. There is a
process in place in terms of the requirements of the JSE Limited for
directors to obtain prior clearance before dealing in the company’s shares.
Al transactions are conducted at the ruling market price on the
JSE Limited.

Succession

As is raquired by its charter, the nominations committee proposed the
following changes to directorships during the year and subsequent to the
year-end. These changas, approved by the main board, are aligned to the
group’s succession planning, which is designed to ensure sustained
leadership.

Main board:

D M Polak retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer with effect

from 31 December 2007. His experience and expertise will be retained as
he has remained on the board in the capacity of non-executive director.

A D Murray was appointed an executive director on 2 April 2007 and
Chief Executive Officer on 1 January 2008. He previgusly held the position

S N Bowley, who was appointed as an executive director on 2 April 2007,
resigned from the group with effect from 1 August 2007,

L F Bergman resigned as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 14 Aprit 2008.

Operating board:

On 31 December 2007, D M Polak retired from the operating board.
On 1 May 2008, D B Gedye was appointed ta the operating board.
Directors’ interests

The directors had no interest in contracts as cantemplated in section 234
of the Companies Act.

Board attendance

The attendance of the directors at board meetings and board committes
meetings for the year was as follows:

Audit Remuneration Risk Nominations Transformation

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Number of meetings 4 3 4 4 2 2
Directors Attendance
E Osrin 4 3 4 4 2 2
D M Nurek 4 3 4 4 2
F Abrahams 4 4 i
S E Abrahams 4 3 2
L F Bergman 3
WV Cuba 4
N H Goodwin 4 3
M Lewis 1
D M Polak 4 2" 3 2 1" - 2t
R Stein 4 3* 4 2
A D Murray 4= 3 1" 4 1%
S N Bowley pree 1*

*by invitation ~appainted 2 April 2007 **appainted 1 January 2008 *relired with effect from 31 December 2007 “resigned with effect from 1 August 2007 *resigned with effect from 14 April 2008
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Main board committees

The main board of directors has delegated specific responsibilities to
board committees, each with its own terms of reference that define its
powers and duties. The board committees meet independently and report
back to the board through their chairpersons. The composition of these
committess is reflected eariier in this report.

Audit committee

The committee is governed by a formal charter that complies with the
requirements of King Il. This charter guides the committee in terms of its
objectives, authority and responsibilities.

The role of the audit committee is, inter alia:

» to review the effectiveness of the group’s systems of internal control,
including internal financial control and business risk management,
and to ensure that effective internal control systems are maintained;

« 1o ensure that written representations on internal conirol are
submitted to the board annually by all divisional managing directors
and general managers (these being represenlations that provide
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the group’s systems
of internal control);

» to moniter and supervise the effective functioning and performance of
the intemal auditors;

+« o ensure that the scope of the internal audit function has no
{imitations imposed by management and that there i$ no impairment
of its independence;

+ to evaluate the independence, effectiveness and performance of the
external auditors and obtain assurance from the auditors that
adequate accounting records are being maintained;

» the appointment of the extemnal auditors on an annual basis;

= 1o ensure thai the respective roles and functions of externa! audit and
internal audit are sufficiently clarified and co-ordinated; and

= o review financial statements for proper and complete disclosure of
timely, reliable and consistent information, and to confirm that the
accounting policies used are appropriate.

The committee consists of four independent non-executive directors and
meets at least twice annually. This year, a third meeting was held
specifically to review afl the conirol-related risks and the risk management
process itself. Executive directors, members of execulive management,
intemal audit, and the external audit partners and staff attend meetings at

the invitation of the committee, Independently of management, members
of this committee meet separately with the external auditors.

Remuneration committee

This committee is governed by a formal charter to ensure that there is a
transparent procedure for developing policies on executive remuneration
and determining remuneration packages of individual directors and senior
executives, within agreed terms of reference and within the framework of
good corporate gavernance.

The key mandate of the committee is to compite emolument proposals in
accordance with the group’s remuneration strategy, which are then
considered by the board. This is designed and tailored to:

* continue to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
calitve;

+ enable the group to remain an employer of choice; and

* ensure a blend of skills that consistently achieves predetermined
business objectives and targets.

The committee's powers regarding non-execulive remuneration are
limited to making recommendations to the board.

This committee has access to independent surveys and consultants for
best practice advice and information conceming current and job-specific
remuneration levels.

Its responsibilities include the making of recommendations to the board on
remuneration structures, performance bonuses, conditions of appointment
of the Chief Executive Officer and his remuneration, executive and non-
executive directors’ remuneration and fees, service contracts, restraints,
the remuneration of senior executive management, employee share
incentive schemes and general salary guidelines across the group.

The committee, which met four times during the year, comprises three
independent non-gxecutive directors and an external consultant. The Chief
Executive Officer and the operating board's Group Human Resources
Director attended by invitation, but recused themselves during defiberation
of their own remuneration.

The chairman of this committee attends the annual general meeting.
Risk committee

The board is responsible for risk management, while divisional and
operational management are accountable to the board for this process.
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The group has adopted an ongoing, systematic and documented risk
management process that ensures that all material risks are identified,
evaluated, effectively managed and, where this is practical, quantified.
This process i undertaken within each division as well as by the operating
hoard, This has served to ingrain a sustainable risk awareness and culture
at all levels, The assessments are aligned to the business objectives within
each division as well as those of the group as a whole.

Al significant projects undertaken by the group are subject to formal risk
assessments. Ongoing business sustainability is addressed as part of this
process.

The risk committee is responsible for ensuring that:

» appropriate risk and control policies are in place and are
communicated throughout the group;

+ the process of risk management and the system of internal contral
are regularly reviewed for effectiveness;

= there is an ongoing process of identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by the group, and that this is in place
throughout the year;

+ g formal risk assessment is undertaken anmually;

» there is an adequate and effective system of internal control in place
to manage the more significant risks faced by the group to an
acceptable level;

s there is a documented and tested process in place that will allow the
group to continue its critical business processes in the event of a
disaster, inter alia, the destruction of a distribution centre, head office
or computer facility, that affects its activities;

» arisk register is maintained and kept up to date; and
+ appropriate insurance cover is placed for the group, and that all
uninsured risks are reviewed and managed.

The risk committee comprises two independent non-executive directors,
one non-executive director, two executive directors and, by invitation, the
heads of the intemal audit and risk management departments. Meetings
are held four times a year.
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Nominations committee

This committee is governed by a format charter to ensure that there is a
process in pace to identify and assess new executive and non-executive
directors fairty and thoroughly. The committee’s responsibilities include:

s reviewing the board structure, size and composition;

*  5uCCession planning;

s reviewing the balance between non-executive and executive
directors;

s ensuring that the directors have the required blend of experience,
skills and knowledge to guarantee the continued success of the
group;

« compliance with the principles of good governance and the code of
best practice.

This committee met twice during the year. It comprises three independent
non-executive directors and one executive director.

Transformation committee -

The scope of authority of this committee is clearly defined in a formal
charter.

The committee has established a broad-based BEE strategy afigned to the
Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Act of 2003 and the
associated codes of good practice, including a BBBEE-level contributor
target with timelines. Clear guidglines have been defined for each of the
seven elements of BBBEE, being equity ownership, management control,
employment equity, skills development, preferential procurement,
enterprise development and socio-economic development.

The committee has an ongoing responsibility to monitor and review all
aspects of the group’s BBBEE strategies and to ensure the achievement
of its targets. In order to attain these targets, sub-committees for each of
the seven elements have been established, with meetings taking place at
least quarterty.

The transformation committee, comprising two non-executive directors,
two executive directors and the operating board’s Group Human
Resources Director, meets twice annually.
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The operating board of directors of the group

The operating board is responsible for the group’s strategy formulation, as
well as the day-lo-day manggement of all aspects of the operations of the
trading and service divisions.

Currently the operating board is responsible for all operational matters in
relation to the group's fashion retailing and financial services businesses
and support functions, including but rot limited lo;

*

merchandise seurcing, buying, planning, warehousing and distribution;
store location, leasing, operations, design and architecture;

human resource recruitment, training, development and remuneration;
information systems acquisttion, development and mainterance;
credit management and customer relationship marketing and systems;
financial management and administration;

strategic plan formulaticn, development, execution and refinement;

development, review and achievement of budgels in relation to sales,
operating expenses and capilal expenditure;

identification, assessment, mitigation and managament of risk;
development angd refinemem of business philosophy and the value
system;

development, monitoring and audit of internal controls;
development, review and implementation of the employment equity
plan;

development and monitoring of operational policias and procedures,
development, implementation and monitoring of transformation
sirategy;

approving transactions regarging investment, disinvestment,
refinancing and restructuring In accordance with parameters set by
the main board; and

adopting angd implementing corporate governance practices and
meeting standards set out in King [l.

This board typicaflly meets monthly anc further meetings take place at
short notice when necessary.

Operating board of directors of the group

A D Murray {Chief Executive Officer)

R Steln (Financial Director)

H B Godirey (Managing Director — @home)

P S Meiring {Managing Director — Foschini Group Financial Services)
B8 J Curry {Managing Director — Foschinidata)

G § Naidoo (Managing Director — Group Human Resources)

A R Bisogno {Managing Director — Faschini division)

M Mendelsohn {Managing Dirgctor — Sports division)

D B Gedye {(Managing Director — Markham)®

* Appolntad 1 May 2008

Detaited information of the operating board and their credentiais
appear on pages 14 and 15,
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corporate governance report continued

Risk management
Risk review

The primary identified risks to the group are listed below, with both their
impact and the management stralegies to contend with them being
stated.

Customer base retention

Retaining our existing customers and attracting new customers.

How we manage this risk

¢ ensuring that we provide exceptional customer sarvice;

»  the provision of keenly priced and attractive product ranges across all
divisions and to all targeted market segments;

» continual staff training at all tevels;
+ the use of “mystery shoppers” to gauge levels of customer service;

* 3 state-of-the-art multi-media customer services call centre to assist
in the rapid resolution of customer enquiries;

o tilisation of an efficient paint-ol-sale system that enhances store
efficiency and custamer service and

* equipping our stores 0 be attractive, enticing and congenial.

Information technology (IT)

Ever-increasing reliance upon compuler systems necessitates a stable,

secure and uninterrupted computer infrastructure.

« constant Senior management review and updating of the I strategic
plan;

*  maintaining & comprehensive, regularty-tested disaster recovery plan
that should provide seamless computing capacity in the event of a
disaster, invalving the establishment of secure computer suites in
separate locations with adequate capacity to provide backup access
to critical systems;

* strict change control procedures for all system enhancements;

* promoting the use of risk assessments for ak significant projects;

= ensuring that access controls are implemented and enforced;

s ongoing consolidation and standardisation ol applications and
infrastructure technology:

* an ongoing upgrade and technology “refresh” programme to ensure
that our applications and infrastructure are current and supported;
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« instiling employee awareness of the need for regponsible use of
computer facilities (all employees being required to abide by a formal
computer code of conduct);

= ongoing emphasis at all levels on enharcing [T security from all
potential threats, both imermal and extemal and

* adopting strong IT governance policies and best practice IT service
delivery models.

Supply chain
The inability 1o provide our customers with the desired merchandise at the

right price and time as a result of deficiencies in the management process
of the supply chain,

= considering all possible occurring evenls and factors that can cause
a disruption in a supply chain;

* examining possible scenarios from past experience and analysing
changing market forces;

* creating solutions culminating in improved stock turn and customer
satisfaction; and

= jmplementing changes in the supply chain methodically within
appropriate and achfevable time frames.

A steering committee of 12 senior executives, chaired by the CEO,
A D Murray, has been formalised to struclure an agile and effective supply
¢hain management process, with specific tocus on optimising lead times,
supplier conformance, replenishment and pipelings.

Fashion trends
The misreading of fashion trends by the merchandise teams.
* gdevelopment and retention of talented merchandise teams wha keep

abreast of global fashion trends;

s exensive input from international fashion fairs, consulants, the
internet, as well as local fashion research;

* Dbased in the southem hemisphere, benefiting from the knowledge of
the forthcoming seasen's successful trends in the northern
hemisphere; and

= utilising advanced systems (o ensure that purchasing volumes are
correct.

Crime

Crime, particularly armed and viclent crime, which continues unabated,
cfeating losses and, in particular, trauma to our staff.
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+ continually reviewing security at stores;

» providing stalf training on how to deal with armed robberies;

+ mainigining a strong focus on syndicated identity fraud via a
dedicated forensics department;

* maintaining reguiar communication with other retailers and anti-
crime fora to ensure that we minimise the impact of crime in all of its
forms; and

« utilising an anonymous toli-iree whistie-blowing facility for the
reporting of criminal acts (details of which are contained later in this
report).

Fluctuation in interest and exchange rates

Fluctuations in interest and exchange rates affecting margin stability and
profitability. (The prime averdraft rate increased four times guring the year
under review by a total of 200 basis points, and the Rand depreciated
from March 2007 10 March 2008 by an average of 7,8% against the
US Dollar)

» mainiaining a striclly controfied and skilled treasury function, guided
by formalised, documented policies and procedures;

¢ constantly reviewing our borrowings mix betweea fixed and floating
rate instrumnents, and long- and short-lerm financing, as the direction
of nterest rates change;

« carefully monitoring the group's debt equity ratio;

= constantly monitoring the potential benefit of any other interest rate
products, such as interest rale swaps and forward rale agreements;
and

« taking forward cover on 100% of our merchandise imports.
Shortage of skills and expertise

Without insightful, specialised, and talented stafl at all levels, our
continued success and growth through innovation would be endangered.

« maintaiting an efiective nominations committee for succession
planning and appointment of senior execulives and board
appointments;

« ensuring that processes are in place to attract, retain and develop
high-quality staff within an environment that can satisfy ambition; and

e having access to a pool of skills in all key areas via our divisionatised
structure, which lends itself to seamless resourge transference.

Power outages

The rigk of pawer outages can significantly disrupt our store trading abifity.

* having stand-by generatoss at all head office and distribution
facilities, with sufficient capacity 1o continue all critical funclions;

* having the ability to trade off-ling at stores provided that there is
sufficient fighting; and

* negotiating shared-cost backup power facilities in shopping mails.

Business continuity

The loss of a major head office facility or distribution centre could impact

upon critical business functions.

¢ maintaining separate head office buildings and distribution facilities,
and providing backup facilities for critical functions;

« splitting the computing capacity over four server rooms in separate
locations;

« maintaining current business continuity plans for all trading and
service divisions,

= maintaining comprehensive physical protection measures; and

* maintaining appropriate insurance cover.

The impact of HW/AIDS upon our staff and customer base

Whilst the effect of HV/AIDS on our staff and customer base still appears
to have been limited, we are well aware of the continuous need to assess
future rigks and cansequences.

* reviewing and laking cognisance of results of the extemal survey
conducted by the Health Monitor Group during 2005;

s encouraging afl employees to ascertain their HV status;

s offering all employees in South Africa two free confidential HIV tests
per annum at & network of extemal pharmacies;

s providing a free, comprehensive disease management service,
including antiretrovirals where indicated, to all permanent staff
members; and

= pifering optional account balance protection to customers, who have
made extensive use of the {actlity. This has in large part conlained the
impact on bad debts. In addition, current experlence indicates that
accounts are continued by extended families.
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continued

corporate governance report

Internal control

The board of directors is responsible for the group's systems of intemal
control. Effective internal control systems have been [mplemented and are
continuously evaluated:

* 1o provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of
the financial statements;

« 1p safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of its assets:

* lo deteci and minimise fraud, potential hiability, loss and material
missiatement; and

» 1o review compliance with applicable Jegislation and regulations.

The intemal control systems are govemed by a comprehensive Intemal
contral standards manual that is available to all staff via our intranet.
Compliance with these standards rests within each division and is
monitored by internal and exterat audit checks.

The board is not aware of any material breakdown during the past year in
the functioning of these controls.

Internal audit

The internal audit department carries out an independent appraisal and
assurance {unction, Although it is responsible to the group’s Financial
Director for administrative matters, it reports to the audit committes of the
board. This siructurs does not impair the function’s independence or
objectivity. An inlernal audit charter, approved by the audit committee and
conforming to the Internationaf Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing, determines the mission and scope of the function,
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Further information on the internal audit function is contained in the
disional reports section of this annual report,

Code of ethics

The group has adopted a code aimed a creating a cufture of the highest
standards of ethics and uncompromising honesty among afl employees.
The code is founded on the principles of integrity, good taith, impartiality,
openness and accountability. The code of ethics forms an integral part of
the induction programmie and all new employees agree to subscribe to the
code. It is available to all stafi members o our intranet.

Whistle-blowing

A whistle-tlowing facilily has been in place since February 1998 for the
reporting of suspected fraud and unethical behaviour. Use is made of an
outsourced, anonymous, tall-free hatiing. All reports are submitted to the
cenfratised risk management department, which ensures that all incidents
are logged and resolved. A minimum reward of RS 000 is paid when
follow-up confirms evidence of fraud or unethical behaviour, There is a
strong focus on staff awareness of this facility through regular distribution
of informational cards and posters.

An additionat reward of R10 000 is paid twice annually 1o a randomly-
selected staff member who has atready been awarded the RS 000
reward.

During the year 74 reports were received, resulting in 12 dismissals.
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Legal compliance

The compliance function’s purpose is to provide assurance to the
board that the group & compliant with applicable legistation.
Within the group, the compliance function is splil into two areas.
One focuses on gengrat compliance and on the co-crdination of
group compliance, and the other an credit compliance.

The changes 1o the group's practices and operations required by
he: National Credit At were managed efiectively.

In anticipation of the enactment of the Consumer Protection Bill,
a forum within the group is monilering the progress of the
Bill with the objective of ensuring that the group will be in
compliance with orgvisions relevant to it ance legislation based
on the Bill has been finalised and promulgated.

The provisions of the Corporate Laws Amendment Act were
also implemented and developments regarding the Companies
Bill are being monitored.

The Protection of Personal Information {concept) Bill and its
progress towards enactment are also being closely montored
fo ensure (hat the group will comply with this legislation once
made faw.

The Group Compliance Officer does regular report-backs to the
audit committee.

The responsibliities of the compliance function include:

* igentifying and advising the group on existing and new
tegisiation that is applicable to the group’s business;

« facilitating compliance with relevant legistation and
assigning responsibility for areas of compliance;

e facilitaling compliance with intemal policias, rules,
guidelines and procedures; and

*  monitoring of compliance.

The intemal audit division and the Group Compliance Oificer

wixk closely together. Whera significant compliance issues

are [dentified they are referred for independent review to

outsourced expents.
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corporate governance report continued

Remuneration

The group’s policy is to afign the remuneration stnucture of the executive
directors and stafl with the interests of shareholders, and consequently a
portion of their packages is pesformante-related. Share optlons and
incentives are based on the performance of the indrAdual, as well as the
performance of the group as a whole, aligned to specific business
objectives and bottom-tine absolute profits. The principle adhered lo is
that bonuses are self-funded out of profits in excess of targets.

In addition, the group provides competitive market-related and
benchmarked base salaries.

The executive directors have standard employment contracts with the
group, their duration nat exceeding two years.

Remuneration for execttive staff members comprises:
Base salaries

» These are determined after a thorough benchmarking exercise within
the retail and related sectors. They are subject to annual review and
are linked to performance. All divisions have established performance
management Systems in order that individual contribution can be
measured and rewarded accordingly. External remuneration
consuliants assist with market surveys and benchmarks and internal
parity is monitored by the Human Resources division.

Short-term incentives

* These take the form of an annual bonus. Targets are set for gach
division at levels exceeding predetermined budgets in ordar that
payments made are effectively sefi-funding. The level of the bonus is
dependent on the performance of the individuat, the trading division
and the group as a whole, Service division bonuses are related to the
group's performance. The levels of bonuses are capped.

Long-term incentives

+ The previously prevailing share option scheme was replaced during
the year with a share appreclation rights scheme. This aligns reward
with the long-term interests of shareholders. Allocations are
considered annually and are based on the reciplent's level of
responsibility, package and individual performance. Participants are
allocated rights based on the appreclalion in value of Foschini's
shares over a three-year period. Exercise of the rights is subject to the
achievement of financial performance critesta by the group.
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Other benefits

« The remuneration committee reviews additional benefits annuafly
against market benchmarks and makes proposals to the board. These
benefits include pension and medical aid fund contributions, car
allowances and other health services.

Service contracts

+ Inexcess of 60 of our key executives have formal service contracts to
ensyre Stability and continuity in management teams. These cantracts
include restraint of trade stipulations.

Remuneration of non-executive directors and the Chalman are reviewed
annuafly by the remuneration committee for proposal (o the board. Non-
executive directors are paid a basic fee with additional lees payable for
their ievel of responsibility and committee membership. They do nol
participate in any of the group incentive plans or share schemes. They are
paid tar their expenditure In atiending meetings in Cape Town,

External consultants assist in providing market information relating to
remuneration tor non-executive directors.

Payments made to directors for services during the year are set out in
note 33,
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Stakeholder relations

Foschin acknowledges the importance of proactive engagement with all
of its stakeholders and in this connection sirives 10 foster sound
relationships between the company ang the investment community,
lwitations are extended to members of the Investmant Analyst Saclety to
attend results presentations 10 provide them with timeous and relevant
information regarding financial performance and prospects. Execulive
directors and senior management are accessible fo investors, and regular
meetings ars held with local and intemational shareholders, both current
and prospective. Price-sensitive information is distributed via the JSE
Limited’s SENS and made available simuitaneously via the Foschini group
website.

A wide variety of information is made avaflable to sta¥ members through

values, HIV/AIDS policy, medical aid information, internal recruitment
opportunities, environmental policy and initiatives, reporting of fraud and
theft, sexual harassment policy and staff announcements,

Ongoing communication with suppliers is vital to the group's sustained
access to the merchandise and services they provide. Within this
framework it is necessary to convey to suppliers the group’s standards
regarding ethical conduct and legal compliance. Of increasing importance
is the group’s requirement to know the suppllers' BBBEE-level contributor
status in order Lo ensure that the group's BBBEE-supplier database is kept
up 10 date.

The group’s primary means of communication with its stakeholders is

the group's intranet, Including the group’s code of ethics, mission and noted in the following table.

Main means of communication

Presentations arranged through the Investment Analyst Socigty. Regular local and intemational investor relations
meetings with executive directors and senlor management.

Stakehotder

Instihutional shareholders
and investment analysts

Shareholders Annual reports, SENS announcements, profit announcements, annual genesal meetings, general meetings.
advertisements, group websiie and e-mail.
Customers Store and head office staff, customer care call centre, website, e-mail, SMS, monthly statements, advertising,
sponsorships, store promotions and competitions.
Suppliers Store and head office staff, regular site visits, audits and meetings, video-conferencing, requests for general and
' compEance miormation, and suppker fora.
Community Community social investment injtiatives undertaken by the group and by staff members, meetings with social
: investment representatives, sponsorships, advertisements, website and media refeases.
Employees Regular dialogue and communication sessions, breakaways, team-building exercises, nofice boards, newsletiers,
f union meetings, raining, ntranet, e-mail, store visits by senior managers, staff meelings and a quarterty internal
' magazine.
| Govemment and Ad-hoc formal meetings and written and ral submissions regarding retevant draft egistation.
reguiatory authorities

Donations to political parties
Mo donations are made to political parties.
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sustainabilit

The release of the King #f report on corporate governance in 2002 led
South African companies 0 place emphasis in their reporting on the "triple
botiom-line™ approach, encompassing economic, social and
environmental sustainabillly. This approach provides shareholders and
other stakehoiders with a broad perspective of all spheres of sustainabllity
within the reporting compary.

This mode of reporting continues o mature, and Foschini Limited {reterred
1o betow as Foschini or “the group™ recognises that onguaing attention will
need 10 be given to the formaiised monitoring and measuring of non-
financial indicators.

Our view of sustainability remains that it is the need to ensure long-term,
balanced profitabllity In the group through innevation and inventiveness,
without compromising short-term competitiveness.

Consideration must at the same time be given lo the needs of all gur
stakeholders, and our responsibilities to the environment and huture
generations must be takan Into account as we recognise that these will be
the source of our susiained growth.

Foschini's primary stakeholders, being its shareholders, employees,
suppfiers, customers, govermment, kocal communities and society at large,
are ali mutually dependent pariners in the sustainability process.

Qur approach o sustainabifity s summarised further in this report.
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Corporate social investment {CSI)

As an established {ashion retaiter, we have a long track record of fving up
to the responsibility of ensuring that our customers look and feel at their
best. In doing S0 we are aware that we bear the further responsibility of
ensuring thal sustainable economic development and social uplifiment
take place in the communities among which we operate.

One of the ways in which the group approaches this latter goal is through
the medium of targeted donations, representing social investment.

Social investment spending with which the group is associated makes use
of funds derived from the Foschini Foundation, from group resources and
from direct donations provided by staff members.

The Foschini Foundation was regisiered as an independent charitable
organisation in August 2006. Its trustees are two independent non-
executive directors of Foschini, E Osrin and O Nurek Its initial capital base
was created by a donation from the group. The Foundation has grown as
a result of recelving further donations and investment income, and the
value of investments under its contro! at the year-end totalled R83 million.
Its objective is to use ils investment income (o provide donations (o
selected charltable causes.

Donations made by the Foundation during the past vear tolalled
R3.,6 million. Additional donations made by the group to charitable causes
tolalled R700 DOO. Merchandise donations for the benefit of public service
organisations iotafled R24 million at retail vaiue. Additional donations to
the value of R1,0 million were mads by various divisions of the group in
cash, sundry equipmant, merchanciise and services. Of their own volition
and from their own resources stafl members and business partners of the
group contributed an extra R47 000.

It is well known that women and children are the most marginalised and
vulnerable members of society. Women make up the majority of our
employees as well as our customers, It is for these reasons thal the
beneficiaries of our CSI contributions will in the main be women and
children. Consideration is also given to tha disabled.

Our revised CS| strategy

To enable more meaningful contribulions to be made, the group reworked
its CSI policy, strategy and selection Criteria during the past year. Pant of
this process imvolved identitying key areas of concem and concentrating
donations largely within these areas. In order to retain an element of
fexdbility, funding was also set aside for special projects.

This new approach has allowed the group 1o become more effective in
achieving meaningful CSI abjectives.
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On this basis the group has identified the foliowing focus areas, with
specific emphasis on women and children:

(EdUcationy
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The allocations of the combined cash donations fram the group’s CSI
funds and the Foschini Foundation for the year under review are ind:cated
Delow.

Education: 31%

Skills development: 26%
HIV/AIDS: 13%
Arts/culture/environment: 7%

Special projects: 18%

o
O
O
¢
@
o

Operational costs: 5%

Having a national presence in South Africa, the group will continue to
focus on identifying suilably registered non-gevernmental organisations
(NGOs) and non-profit arganisations (NPOs) that themselves operate on a
national basis and are worthy recipients of these donations. Child Welfare
South Africa & an gxample of such a nationally-based crganisation thal we
support.

Education

We believe that one of the keys to unlocking the potential of our country
lies in the provision of and access to quafity education for all cilizens.
Consequently the largesi portion of the CS1 budget is devoted lo
education. We invest in projects that focus on improving the quality of
literacy, numeracy, mathematics and stience education at the stage of
early childhood, as well as at primary and secondary levels.

Amongst the organisations that benefited from this position are the Rural
Education Project {through the University of Cape Town's schools
development unit), the Western Cape Primary Science Programme, LEAP
Science and Maths Schiool, ORT Tech South Africa, and READ Educational
Trust.

We also continued to donate class-teading jungle gyms and this year the
beneficiaries were impoverished rural schools in the Westem Cape. All are
primary schools participating in the Rural Education Project, chosen an the
basis of most improved results in numeracy and literacy. To date we have
donated 24 Jungle gyms and plan o provide more this year,

Funding to the EQUIP programme, which is run by the National Business
Initiative, has been continued, suppart being given during the year to a
ctuster of five primary and two high schools in the Westem Cape and one
school In Gauteng.

Many of the institutions of higher learning provide educationat
programmes in nearby disadvantaged communities. Amongst those that
we support are:

= Rhodes University — mathematics education in rural schools in the
Eastern Cape:

«  University of Cape Town — literacy teaching and [earning framework
to assist and strengthen literacy in the Mbelweni schools in the
Western Cape;

*  University of KwaZutu-Natal - a volunteer mentoring programme in
psychology,

«  University of Pretoria — Boipelo community building project; and

«  University of Stellenbosch — a farm schools project.

Programmes Ihat give support to disadvantaged students afsp receive

funding.

Sorme of the other organisations working within the educational sphere
which we supported are SMILE, Care! du Toit Trust and Education Alive.
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Skills development

For the economic development of the cotntry it is essential that members
of previously disadvantaged groups receive not cnly schoot education of
good quality, but also training to equip them with entrepreneurial skills to
enter the world of work or to start their own businesses. With this in view,
the group supports projects that provide skllls for employment, job
creation and enlrepreneurship at post-schoal fevel,

Some of the organisations in this ¢category that received financial support
are The Big Issue, Etaferd Day Care Centre Trust, Grassroots Educare
Trust, Junior Achievement SA, Leamn to Earn, Media and Training Centre
for Health, Qasis Assoclation, South African Council for the Blind, Tsiba
Education, WHEAT Trusl, and Zenzele Training and Development.

HIV/AIDS

The group recognises that HIV/AIDS affects owr stafi, their families, our
customers and the nation as a whole. These is an undenialie obligation to
confribute to under-resourced programmes (0 contain this pandemic,
Support was accordingly cirected to some organisations thal assist
orphan-headed households and to others that provide training and
assistance for home-based care initiatives. These organisations
incfuded Cotlands, Lifeline/Childline Western Cape, Ma Airica Tikkun
Johanngsburg, St John's Training Foundation, St Luke's Hospice and the
University of Pretoria,

Through their activities and combined skills, these crganisations educate
the community about HIV/AIDS and train wolunteers 1o counsel people
infected and affected by HIV/AIDS.
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Arts, culture and the environment

The group firmly betieves in the need to support organisaticns that run
projects o educate children about the arts, culture and the environment
in order for these o be susizined. Examples of organisations which
received funding during the current year under review include the Zama
Dance School, Friends of the Natiena! Gallery, The Mational Sea Resoue
Institute, Witdesness Foundation South Africa 2nd World Wide Fund.

Special projects

The group again proudly supported the White Ribbon Campaign's 16 days
of activism during which the public Is encouraged to “Act Against Abuse®.
The campaign focused in the past year on increasing the awareness of the
negative effects of violence against women and children. A prime
motivator for the group’s support of this campaign is the fact that 78% of
our employees arg femals, many of whom are mothers. The group also
made il possible for employees 1o take part in the campaign,

Rape Crisis” innovative programme, Safe Space, won our backing in the
form of a donation of R3I50 000 which will go towards ensuring that
women and children are able {o live in an environmant free from fear and
violence. A further amount of R150 000 per year for three years was

pledged by the Foschinl division from the sales of its new ¢igthing range, .

Globa! Art, which is to be launched duning the first hall of next year.

Other special projects for the year includeg a casuai day In aid of the Bel
Porto School for the disabled, building a house with Habitat for Humanity
for a family in Miuteni, a Christmas toy drive to benefil organisations
afflliated to Child Welfare South Africa, a blankel drive in aid of Disaster
Management, hosting a “Cuppa for CANSA™ and making special donations
10 Red Cross Children's Haspital, Tygerberg Children’s Hospital and the
SPCA.

Working together on corporate social investment

The group’s CSI initlatve Is very much a team efforl. We actively
encourage a culture of philanthropy and community involvement amongsi
our employees ang business partners. in pursuil of this, the group's CS{
department works with the employees of the various trading and service
divisions on their individual projects to maximise elfectiveness.

These projects are incentivised. To recognise employees who volunieer for
communily work in their spare time, the group provides grants to staff
members through their *staff community builder” programme, which
commenced In 2004,




COQ0O0000QO0O0CO0OO000O0O00000C0O00000000C0O00O0O0O000O0LO0O0OCO0OO0O0!
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO;
OOOODOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOi
CO0000CO0O0COO0O0000CO0OO0O0OOOCO0O00QOO0O0O0O00O000C0OOCOO0OO
00000000 OCOO0OOO0QCO0OOOO0QOOOOCOO0OOOCOO0DOO0O0OOOOOD0O
0000000000000 00DO00O00OCCO0O0OO00OCOOOOO0O00QCOQOQOQO0DO0O0Q0

Q000000000 COOOO0OO000O0OO00COO0OOOQOODOOOO00OOOO0OOO0OC0

individual trading and service division projects are provided with Rand-for-
Rand support.

Beneficiaries selected by the staif of our various divislons include St
Luke's Hospice, the Carel du Toit Centre, Goody2Shoes, Solomon's Haven,
Fountain House, Marsh Memoral Chitdren’s Home, Bemy's Kitchen,
Fikeleta Home for HV-positive Children in Khayelitsha, Green Park,
LifeLing, Colleen’s Place of Hope, and Greenable.

The RCS Group undertook 11 projects during the year In the areas of
education, health and welfare, and community development. This
tivision’s flagship project comprised partnering with TSIBA, a free teniary
educational institution, in developing a financial literacy curriculum aimed
al empowerning students with skills to manage their finances in a
iesponsible way.

In addition, Red Cross Children’s Hospital received R20 000 in children's
books.

Other organisations that received suppart included the Sunflower Fund,
Tygerberg Hospilal, Carehaven and Habitat for Humanity.

Employment equity

The group remains compliant with all aspecls of the Employmen! Equity
Act No. 55 of 1998, This requires timeous submission of an annual
employment equity report and plan io the Oeparment of Labour,
consultation with employees, communication of the report and plan to
employees, and reguar policy and facility audits to ensure that no barriers
1o employment equity exist. Regular inspections by the Department of
Labout's inspectorate, both at store leve!l country-wide and at the group's
head office, have confirmed compliance.

In oeder toincrease the representation of previously disadvantaged grouns
at the middle and senior management levels, the group has embarked on
an exhaustive consultative process 1o review our employment equity
strategy. The key was to align the employment equity approach with the
group’s new human resources strategy in order to benelit directly from
enhanced and Improved human resources practices, specifically in the
areas of recruitment, remuneration, talent management, and training and
development,

Our new strategy focuses on:
Recruitment

Impraved sourcing and rectuliment techaiques which include tha
implementation of e-recruitment and targeted press advertising, will assist
in sourcing and drawing morg applicants, primarity black Africans. This will
enable the group to better mirror the national demographics.

Remuneration

A more focused approach 10 salary and benelit benchmarking, involving
the use of national retail and general salary and beneflt surveys and the
implementation of an electronic job evaluation system, will increase the
internal equity score and lead 10 an improved fit with the market. This will
thave a positive effect on the relention of key employees.

Talent management

A rigorous approach has been adopled lo the management of the talent
pipeline, This process identilies shortages and over-supply of specific key
sidiis a1 various levels, The introduction of coachlng and mentoring will
benefit the accelerated development and retention of existing employees
who have been identified as having upward potentlal.

Training and development

Standardised programmes to impart skilis to store managers have been
introduced to assist in bringing about consistency across the group and
facilitating identification of thase with potential for promotion.
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sustainability report continued

tn addition the merchant academy, which is a fast-track programme for
trainee merchandise planners and buyers, was launched during the year.
Of its intake, approximately 80% were members of previpusly
disadvantaged groups. Existing employees can also benefit by attending
specific modules to up-skill themselves. Further details of the academy
are provided in the talent development section below.

Centralised trainee management

Store manager and merchant trainees are now managed centrally and a
standardised curiculum as described above is followed. This further
benefits the consistency of skills across the group and permits regular
evaluation.

Cross-divisional collaboration

Animportant element of the talent management and develapment process
now under way in the group is the emphasis on providing opportunities
throughout the group rather than relying on individual divisions to provide
employees with their career ladder. This process is managed by the newly-
established talent management department. Regular group manpower
review meetings are held, where the talent of each trading and service
division are scrutinised to identify employees who are ready for promotion
or who would benefit from gaining exposure in a different division or role.

In addition, we ensure that the advertising of vacancies is accessible to afl
staff members.

Consultation and communication
The employment equity consultative forum structure has been enhanced.
Apart from two existing national fora, divisional fora have been

Woridorce Profile Changes

o
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African Coloured
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establishad. This change provides all employees with a greater say in aff
aspects of employment equity and & full programme of group-wide and
division-specific communication is being launched.

Physically disabled persons

The group's two largest office centres, in Cape Town and Johannesburg,
have had {full disability audits completed by a specialist consultant to
ensure that these facilities are suitable for and accessible to physically
disabled employees.

This remains an area of challenge for our employment strategies.
Worldorce profile

In our employment equity submission of October 2007 previously
disadvantaged employees comprised 83,3% of our workforce, compared
to 80,7% in October 2006 and 78,4% in October 2005. The target for
October 2010 is ‘90%, which we anticipate will be achieved, based on
current prograss.

The group has finafised its new employment equity ptan for the three-year
period ending October 2010.

The composition of Namibian employees is 93,8% representative of
previously disadvantaged groups in that country.

Evidence of cur overall progress in remedying imbalances in the ethnic
composition of the group’s workforce over the past eight years is depicted
below.

@ April 2000

. October 2001

*: Qctober 2002
. October 2003

October 2004
October 2005
October 2006
October 2007

Indian

o0
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Actual employee status vs October 2010 Target

This chart excludes employees of RCS Investment
Holdings {Pty} Limited and its subsidiaries, as the ", Actual October 2007
target date of that division’s plan differs by three

years from that of the rest of the group, and is thus : BB  Target 2010

not comparable. Those employees total 4,5% of
headcount and thus do not significantly affect the
statistics. e

Percentage

African Coloured indian White

The chart above depicts our current employee status compared to our 2010 \arget.

The revised employment equity strategy noted above will assist in the attainment of
this target.

A table indicating the change in representation of previously disadvantaged groups
amongst permanent employees is provided below.

October October October  October
2007 2006 2005 2004

% % % %
Senior management 5% 6,3 46 59
Specialists and middle management ma|l 298 30,0 277
Skilled technicaf and junior management | GR®| 630 593 56,5
Semi- and unskillad employees ol:| 886 866 849

A table indicating the change in representation of women amongst permanent
employees is provided below.

October October Octcber October
2007 2006 2005 2004
% % %

384 399 31,1
63,7 63,4 63,0
75,3 80,1 80,3
79,4 79,1 79,1

Senior management

Specialists angd middle management
Skilled technica! and junior management
Semi- and unskilled employees
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Namibian employees A breakdown of recruitment by ethnic group & indicated in our most

The Affirmative Action (Employment) Act of 1998 required that as from recent employment equity progress report is depicted below:

2001 an annua! report and plan be submitted to the Employment Equity
Commissioner. We have complied with this requirement each year.

In Namibia, unfike South Alrica, no distinction is made between the black,
coloured and Indian groups in monitoring the number of members of O African: 47%
previously disadvantaged groups. There is, however, a concened focus on Qb
gender. () Caloured: 33%
1] i
i non-Namibians are employed, it is required thai understudies be O Indian: 7%
appointed and their deails together with their acknowledgement of their ,
. . 1
status be included in the report. @ White:13%

The current camposition of Namibian empioyees comprises 93,9% fram
previously disadvantaged groups with only one non-Namibian being

employed.

Recruitment Skills development

This is a key focus area in ensuring that representivity is achieved. In tandem with the Employment Equity Act, the group has again Rully
Psychometric tests used in the recruitment process have been selected complied with &l of the requirements of the Skills Development Act.
that are valid and fair in the South African environment. These fests Skills development fora within our trading and service divisions are heid to
specifically assess potential as opposed to current competency and skills. review and monitor progress against the warkplace skills plans.

The change in the percentage of employees recruited from previousy During the year R42.3 milion was spent on skills development within the
disadvantaged groups is as {ollows: group.

Skills development grants

As a result of hull compliance, we have qualified for all applicable grants
October 2003:75% due from the Wholesale and Retail SETA (in the case of our rading
divisions) and the Services SETA (in the case of our financial and services

October 2004:80% divisions). In all the SETA ts received arked for furth
) ivisions). In all cases, the grants received are earm er
Octaber 2005:81% investment Into training. All spending of grants is reported at operating
Cclober 2006:83% board level to ensure that these funds are exclusively applied towards
~ Oclober 2007:87% further {raining.

Accreditation

Foschini remains a fully-accrediled! training provider. This has enabled us
10 provide our stafl with the epportunity to achieve qualifications that are
registered on the Nationa! Qualifications Framework via internal training,
thus saving on the cost incurred through the use of extemal Iraining
providers, This training is provided and assessed imemally using
methodology that is approved by the Wholesale and Retail SETA Education
angd Training Quality Assurance bodies and is fn line with SADA principles.
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Representation

We are represented on the Wholesale and Retail Standards Generating
Body and represent the group at afl relevant SETA fora.

Talent development

Training programmes within the group are designet to up-skill our staff in
4!l areas where 2 need has been identified. Relevant programmes are held
throbghout the year, ensuring a constant and consistent level of
undersianding of group processes amangst our staff at all levels,

Our training programmes address the building of both generic business
competence and leadership competence.

An important emphasis for us during the course of the year has been the
strong focus on developing the talent of our store managers and
merchants (the latter being our buyers and merchandise planners) to
ensure that we meet the nieed for a pipeling of trained and competent
employees in these key retail roles.

With these objectives in ming we launched:

* aretail academy for store managers;

* 3 merchant tralnee development programme aimed al newty-
employed talent; and

» amerchant academy for honing the skills of existing merchants.

Al of these are in-house projects designed to cater for our identified skills
requirements.

Our retail academy for store managers touches every store manager and
polential store manager both nationally and in Namibia.

The curricutum is aimed primarily at supporting the following goals:

« development of business skills and improved retail knowledge;

* managing employee relations and performance; and

*  equipping store managers as coaches to develop their stat.

We are committad 1o creating a learning environment with a number of
celivery options including gistance-learning programmes and fgrmal
workshops facilitated natlonally and in Namibia. We believe that {eaming
should aiso be self-directed, and all store managers should take charge of

their own leaming and can progress at their own pace.

Allied to this refall acadery is the developing manager programme. Its
scope is primarily the technical business skills required to manage a store.

These store manager programmes are afigned fo the whalesale and redail
SETA qualifications.

Our merchant trainee development programme is a structured
programme available 10 new and young talent in the group. it is run over
a perlod of 18 to 36 months and combines technical and generic
programmes {0 build the capacity of the trainge buyers and ptanners, They
are given the opportunity i0 spend time in various areas of the group's
businesses, gaining valuable hands-on experience and knowledge.
The programme s supported by a coaching initiative by which each
trainee receives tralning from a lechnical coach as well as a senior
mentor. The trzinees enjoy a high leve! of exposure to and interaction with
senior management throughout this programma.

Our merchant academy for existing merchants has a curficulum that
combines technical and generic programmes designed 10 support the
building of their capacity. The cwriculum is based on an integrated
approach, yet allowing flexibility for customisation across the divisions.
The programme harnesses the existing talent within the group by using
skilled statf members as in-house facilitators, so encouraging muilti-
skilling and the use of best practices by alt merchanis.

COur teadership development training is a further initiative, based on a
pipeline model, t0 meet the group’s future leadership requirentents.
This approach highlights key miestones that make up the devalopment
process for aspiring leaders. To reach a milestone, the altendees must
galn proficiency in a variely of competencies that meet the demands of a
particular career phase. Career progression is basad on mastery of these
concepts, given sufficient time to achieve competence. The process Is
supplemented by assessments, specialised training, coaching, and
various projects and assignments. The capability of each developing
leader is carefully monitored and reviewed, Talented Individuals are
advanced on this journey according to their level of performance and
potential.
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Broad-based black economic empowerment

(BBBE

The group fully supports BBBEE and has adopted a strateqy that is
designed to bring about compliance with the BBBEE codes of good
practice.

The transtormation commiltee formulates, monitors and reviews all
aspects of the group's BBBEE policies as defined in the group's
transformation charler.

Sub-committees for each of the seven elements of the genesic scorecard
have been estabiished and scorecard targets set. The sub-committees
meet quarterly and report directly to the transformation commitiee.

In the Financial MailYEmpowerDEX Top Empowerment listed companies
survey, the group ranked fourth, second and third In 2008, 2007 and 2006
respectively within the retail sector, and Is cumentty a BBBEE level-6
contributor.

The transformation commttee has set an overall target of being a BBBEE
level-4 contributor by 2010, together with goals lor each of the seven
elements of BBBEE.

The group wilk be rated by a BBBEE veritication agency during the nexi
year.
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Employees and employee benefits
Staff complement

The staff complement at the group’s head offices and stores at the year-
end comprised the fallowing:

Employee statistics: 2008 2007 2006 2005

Perrnanent full-time employees | @899 | 8781 8155 7469
Permanent parl-time employees 250 113 323 257

Flexitime employees gy | 2776 2337 2658
Gontract employees 568 724 327 329
Casual employees g | 2801 2989 2867

The gender composition of the wordorce, already heavily weighted
towards female employees, remained relatively static, with women making
up 78,2% of the total compared to 77,6% in the previous year and 78,0%
in the year before.

The group has a relatively young age profile, the average age being
30 years and 83,6% of the iofal being under the age of 40 years. A
breakdown of the group's employees by age over a two-year period is set
out in the following chart, from which it Is evident that minor changes have
occurred.
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Retirement funding

All permanent staft of wholly-owned subsidiaries are required to join the
Foschini Group Retirement Fund, which is a defined contribution fund
registered in terms of the Pensions Fund Act No. 24 of 1956. The fund is
administered by Foschini in accordance with an agreement approved by
the Financial Services Board,

The fund is managed by a board of Wrustees that mests quarterdy.
The trustees receive no remuneration for their services. Particular
attention is paid to trustee iraining, to ensure that they remain abreast
of legislaiive changes and developments within this specialist area.
The assets of the fund are under the control of the trustees, who are
advised by extemal consultants,

Sub-committees for stategy and investments meel quarterty and the
benefits sub-committeg meets montly.

A second portfolio option has been introduced for stalf attaining the age
of 55, which has a lower exposure to the volatility of the equity markets.
These staff may elect to remain on the main portfollo.

Total market value of the assets of the fund at 31 March 2008 amounted
to R2,6 billion, which is unchanged {rom the previous year. Fund retums
reflected an increase of 16,4% during its financial year, but a particutarty
high volume of withdrawals and relirements have resulted in the
unchanged financial position.

Pensioners were awarded an increase of 10% effective from 1 January 2008,
which is in line with the pensioner increase policy of the fund to award at
least inflationary increases, subject to affordability.

As required by the Pension Funds Act, 50% of the trustees are member-
elected. The term of office for all employer- and member-elected trustees
is three years, after which they are eligible for re-efection. Trusise
elections will be held during the 2009 financial year. Induction training is
provided to new trustees, who also participate in the regular ongoing
training noted above.

Apart from retirement benefits, the following are provided by the fund:

» afuneral benefit of R7 500 for the principal member and spouse and
& lesser benefit for their dependent children;
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sustainability r@por‘t continued

» adeath benefit of thies times annual salary as well as the member's
gross equishare is availatie 1o provide benefits to dependants and
beneficiaries, payable in the event of geath in senvice and where the
death is accidental, a further benefit of twice annual salary is payable;
and

« an insured disability benefit is provided to qualifing staff members,
equating to 75% of pensionable salary eamed at the time of
disablement, payable until attainment of nomal retirement age
subject to continued disablement, afier which the normal retirement
penelit becomes effective.

Employees of RCS Investment Holdings (Pty) Limited and its subsidiaries
are not members of the Foschini Group Retirement Fund, but receive
comparable benefits from the Liberty Life Provident Fund.

Where required, employees of subsidiaries trading outside South Africa
betong 0 umbrella funds that comply with the legislation of the relevant
country.

A jormal risk assessment of the retirement fund is undertaken at least
annpatly. Taking into account miigating factors, HV/AIDS remains the
highest potential risk {0 the fund. Risk is minimised by undertaking regular
aciuarial vatuations, extemnal expert prevalence projections and angoing
programmes on HV/AIDS education and awareness. The fund is moreover
able to amend its benefit levels.

The Foschini Group Medical Aid Scheme

The Foschini Group Medical Aid Scheme & an in-house, subsidised
medical scheme that i designed to best suit the needs of most
employees. Membership is voluntary except for senior employees.
The average number of prncipal members at 31 December 2007
(the financial year-end of the scheme) was 2 291, covering approximately
4 690 lives in tolal.

The scheme is admintstered by the Metropalitan Health Group and is fully
compliant with the Medical Schemes Act.

The board of irustees of the scheme is responsible for all aspects of its
operations, which are reviewed by both the Feschinl group medical aid
audit committee and the external auditors, The board of trusiees makes
use of a medical schemes consultant and an actuary who provide
specialised advice and pariicipate in monthly operational and quarterly
board meetings. The trustees and audil committee recelve no
remuneration for their services.
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The accumulated funds ratio of the scheme at 31 December 2007 was
52,4% which is well in excess of the required minimum of 25%, but not
excessive for a small In-house scheme thatl wilt be subject to greater
volatility than the norm as a result of sporadic large claims.

The financial health of the scheme favourably influenced contribution
increases which took effect in January 2008, the increases being 4,5%
and 7,5% for the two benefit plans available compared to 3,1% and 4,8%
{or the previous year. In bath years the increases were significantly below
medical inflation. In addition, general benefit improvements were applied
1o match or exgeed Inflation in the various medical categories.

A risk assessment of the scheme is undertaxen at leas! annually, both by
the trustees and the administrators. The highest risk identified by the
trustees is the volume of legistation affecting medical schemes, Keeping
abreast of all current and pending legislation and adapting the scheme's
rutes accordingly assists in managing this risk.

Other health plans

An external medical scheme, Ingwe Health Plan, is atso avaiiable to group
employees and is subsidised by the group in the same way as the in-
house stheme. The plans offered cater for fower income eamers and
provide basic healthcare through capitation agreements with lasge
hospita) groups. Ingwe forms parl of the black-empowered African Life
group. Cusrently a total of 318 group employees are members, together
with thelr dependants.

Employees outside South Africa may elect to join medical schemes that
are simitarly funded by the group.

Al permanent stalf of RCS investment Holdings (Py) Limited and its
subsidiaries ar¢ required to become members of a medical plan of their
choice offered by Discovery Health,

Bursary scheme

The group operates a bursary scheme for children of employees, funded
by the Feschini Foundation, This scheme is independently administered by
the South African Instilute of Race Relations on our behall and aims to
reward academic excellence in children of employees who may otherwise
not have access to tertiary education.
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Educational assistance

Low-interest [oans are available ta employees fo assist with the costs of

' tertiary education for their children. These loans are available on an annuai
basis for each child and are repayable over two years 0 improve
affordability.

Home assistance

Similarty, low-interest loans are avallable to employees 1o assist wilh the
purchase or impiovement of property. These loans are weighted towards
providing greater assistance in the purchase or improvement of property
within the iower price brackets. In the past year R264 000 was lent 1o
qualitying employees who mage use of this bengfit. Of these employees
86% were from previously disadvantaged backgrounds.

Employees requiring further financiat assistance for home purchases or
improvements may also borrow against their equishare in the Foschini
Group Retirement Fund, subject to its rules. This is an outsourced lending
facHlity, using members’ shares in the fund as security, with the resull that
the Interest payable by employees is minimised. The total of these loans
at the year-end was R6,9 milllon.

Sponsorship

Erployees are encouraged to undertake studies that will assist them in
their current o future career with the group. Sponsorship vartes according
to the lgvel of study and requires greater financial commitment from
employees at higher educational levels. Support for matriculation study
fees is 100%.

pried to this, the group offers sponsorship for the Unisa Retail
Certificate, an intensive one-year retail-specific diploma.

Of employees receiving general sponsorship at the end of the current

financial year, 89% were from previously disadvantaged groups, a
perceniage similar to that of previous years.

Healthcare

The group has delegated the management of occupational health to an
external service provider. Curative and preventative care is provided from
a centrally located occupatienal health clinic permanently staffed by two

nursing sisters with qualifications in occupational health, A medical doctor
is an site twice a week tp assist with cases requiring specialised attention.

The clinic provides a service Lo afl employees working at the head office
campuses as well as those at the distribution centres.

Services offered Incluge family planning, HIV testing, primary heaithcare,
counselling for psycho-soclal stress, health education and healih
sereening.

The service provider is also responsible for the management of @il heaith
within our stores through the WAKE programme, as well as any injuries on
duty in terms of the Commission for Occupational Injuries and Diseases
Act (COIDA). It also facilitates the group's disability benefit processes,
which provide an income-replacement benefit to employees who are
unable to work as a result of il heatth oc injury for an indefinite or fixed
period of time.

Staff safety

The group is commitied to ensuring a safé and healthy working
enviranment for all of its staff. Like most other retailess, il operates within
a low risk eavironment.

The group complies with afl relevant legislation, in paricutar the
Occupational Heatth and Safety Act of 1993.

The statistics for reported incidents involving staff members of the group
are set out below:

2008 2007
Number of working days l0st 17 1 465
tNumber of Incidents 340 399
Average cos! per incident REET) R3N
Total cost of incidents GNIBED | R148196

The majority of incidents reported were minar, and there were no fatalities.

'In 232 instances, not more than three working days per incldent were lost,

compared 1o 278 last year.
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sustainability report continued

HIV/AIDS

The group has a formal HIV/AIDS palicy in place, aimed at combating the
spread and minimising the impact of HIV/AIDS on our employees, their
families, our customers and the community at large. It does so by
providing education and information about HIV/AIDS and promoting non-
discriminatory practices. This policy has been communicated to alf
existing employees, is available on our infranet and is included in the sign-
on pack for all new employees.

I an effort to minimise the impact of HIY on our staff as well as attendant
costs to the group, we provide free and confidential access for all
employees to testing, counselling, freatrnent and support. Employees are
encouraged to ascertain their HIV status in order to enable them to take
responsibility for their health. Those employees whose status is negative
are encouraged to adopt safe behaviour to retain this status, whilst those
that test HIV-positive are given access to the support and treatment they
need to remain healthy and able to work productively for as long as
possible,

Since 2005, HV-positive employees who are members of the Foschini
Group Medical Aid Scheme have had access to a full disease
management service provided by a managed healthcare provider.
Employees who register on the programme receive free HIV testing,
counselling, information and prophylactic medication, as well as
antiretroviral therapy when required.

In September 2006 the group launched the first phase of a
comprehensive HIV/AIDS workplace programme. This is now well
entrenched and as at the year-end 538 employees had been tested
through an external network of pharmacies around South Africa on a
valuntary basis. This programme is managed by Occupational Care
South Africa. On World AIDS Day, 1 December 2007, we announced that
free treatment and support for HIV-positive employees would now be
extended to all permanent employees through a comprehensive disease
management programme provided by QUALSA. Treatment includes
antiretroviral therapy.

According to a risk assessment commissioned by the group and
conducted by the Heatth Monitor Company in 2005, it was estimated that
6,99% of the company's employees would be HIvV-positive in 2007 (for
2006, their estimate was 6,86% and in 2005, it was 6,6%). The estimated
average cost {o the group for 2007 associated with HIV infection was
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R11 054 per HIV-positive permanent, permanent part-time and flexitime
employee, equating 1o a total group cost for that year of R9,4 million. This
cost was based on all potential incremental costs, including antiretroviral
treatment, paid sick leave, funeral costs, lost productivity, increased group
life and disability expenses, cost of training and lost expertise, additionat
cost of incapacity as well as generally increased medical costs.

Experience to date has indicated that the actual cost to the group has
been substantially less than was predicted in that assessment. At the time
of compilation of this report, we have been notified that 30 employees are
registered on the QUALSA programme at an average cost for the year of
R10 644 per employee. This equates fo a gross annualised group cost of
R319 320 before taking into account recoveries from medical schemes.

Ongoing free and confidential on-site HIV counselling and testing
continugs o be available through the clinic at our head office in
Cape Town,

in addition to the measures descrived above, on-site testing for head
office employees through OCSA was introduced for the first time in the
past year as part of gur annual Health Days.

We have also embarked on a pilot voluntary counselling and testing
campaign in collaboration with two other large retaflers with the aim of
making voluntary counselling and testing more accessible to employaes
working in shopping centres. The counselling and testing was outsourced
to Action Against AIDS, an NGO, and took place at the Cavendish shepping
centre in Claremont, Cape Town. The campaign proved extremely
suceessiul, alt available appointments being utilised, and plans 1o expand
it to other shopping centres, as well as to include more retailers, have
been finatised.

A similar campaign for Namibia is being investigated.

Suppliers

It is important that our manufacturing and merchandise suppliers share
the same ethics and values as ourselves. Qur suppliers have been issued
with supplier agreements for signature which require their compliance
with, inter alia, labour, and customs and excise legislation.

Regular audits are undertaken at their premises, We require any recorded
deviations from agreed standards to be remedied if the suppliers are to
retain a business relationship with the group.
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Environment

In line with the group’s objective of minimising its environmental impact,
an environmental committee was established by the operating board
during the past year. The committee comprises senior managers from alt
areas of the business and meets monthly. its scope is all-encompassing
and its mandate is to minimise the environmental impact made by the
group and its stakeholders in all identified spheres. It reports quarterly to
the chief executive officer and two members of the operating board. In
order to ensure that the process is fully inclusive, the committee issues
regular e-mails to all staff encompassing ali aspects of environmental
aWareness.

Whilst retail businesses supplying clothing and related products have a
jow impact on the enviranment, we are well aware that responsible use of
imited resources is imperative. There have been no environmental
incidents of any significance within the group and no penalties or fines
have been imposed by any environmental regulatory authority.

In addition, the following measures remain in force:

+ 3 member of the operating board has the responsibility for setling
environmental poticy, objectives, targets and reporting processes;

* an environmental policy has been comypiled;

s an environmental fisk assessment is undertaken annually;

+ all of the group’s known direct and indirect environmental impacts
have been identified and tabled;

s an ongoing, interactive awareness campaign with all of our staff
concerning environmental issues is undertaken; and

s an undertaking by the group exists to reduce and control each
identified negative impact and to make optimal use of diminishing
natural resources.

Qur environmental policy is available to all staff through our intranet.
Qur direct impacts
Cardboard, paper and plastics

The amount of cardboard and waste paper generated by our distribution
centres and head office remains approximately 130 000 kitograms per
month, the majority being sold to recyclers. A portion of the waste
cardboard is shredded and utilised as protective packaging. Plastic waste
from these sites is minimal as a result of the elimination of shrink-
wrapping of cartons. Residual plastic waste is sold to the recyciing
industry.

Cardboard and other waste at stores continues to be managed by
shopping centre disposal processes and the informal sector.

Plastic hangers are recycled, the cleaning and sorting processes being
performed by The Workshop and House Horizon in Stellenbosch and Chiris
Steytler industries in Bellville. This provides employment to their
differently-abled employess. These facilities recycled 3,5 million hangers
during the past year.

Al plastic bags used by the stores are durable and reusable, being made
of sheeting that is at teast 40 microns in thickness. In certain divisicns use
is alsa made of recyclabte paper packets.

Electricity and water

With the current energy crisis, there is a concentration of effort
surrounding power-saving initiatives.

Head office buildings utilise energy management systems and energy-
efficient lighting 10 minimise the use of electricity. Signage has besn
placed in head office buildings to ensure that staff do not make use of
unnecassary lighting where it is not required. This includes unused
conference rooms and display areas.

The air conditioning piant in the main head office complex houses ice
tanks that generate ice during off-peak hours, which is used for day-time
cooaling, We have reduced the operating time of the air conditioning plant
by two hours per day.

Where possible, computers at head office locations are switched off at
night, and computer procurement now inciudes a requirement for energy
efficiency.

The Eskorn demand side management initiative continues to be met with
contractual obstacles and the project io install electronic control-gear and
energy-saving lighting in all of our stores remains in abeyance. However,
we remain hopeful of a positive outcome. All new and refurbished stores
are as a matter of course fitted with energy-saving lighting and control-
gear.

Where it is practical and safe to do so, stores are now switching off all or
most lights outside trading hours.

Water is primarily consumed for personal and hygiene purposes. Regufar
maintenance ensures that there is minimal wastage.

Etectricity and water expenditure is monitored by the trading and service
divisions each month against budgets and records of the previous year,
and variances are followed up.
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We are investigating the electricity cost per square meter by trading division for all
of the stores. Where there is a discrepancy it is fellowed up.

Printers, faxes and (aser cartridges

All printers and Jax machines make use of recycled laser cartridges.
in addition, we are investigating the use of double-sided printing as a standard
throughout the group.

Vehicles

Company vehicles are checked and serviced in accordance with the
manufagturers’ prescribed intervals. Merchandise transport is managed by
outsourced professionals who, by the nature of their operations, ensure that their
vehicles perform at aptimal efficiency. As this is one of the group's lamger areas of
environmenial impact, we intend to engage with the service providers in order to
ascertain how best carbon emissions can be minimised.

Air conditioning systems

All air conditioning systems are maintained by outsourced technicians
in terms of a regular maintenance programme. Refrigerants are not discharged into
the atmosphere bui recovered and recycled. Only refrigerants that comply with the
requirements of the Montreal Protocol are used.

Electronic waste

Fluorescent tube and general lamp disposal at head offices and distributlon centres
is controlfed by an environmental waste management comgany. in the main, stores
currently rely on the disposal processes of their local municipalities or of the
shopping centres in which they are jocated.

Redundant computers that are not donated are sent to an established electronic
recycling company. They are stripped of recyclable materfals and the unusable
components are disposed of in a manngr that is not harmbul to the environment.

Used watch batteries from both our jewellery stores and head cffice watch repalr
workshop are similarly disposed of in an emvironmentally-friendly manner,

Via our intranet, staff members are encouraged to make use of the environmentas
disposal service for old cellphone components offered by all MTN franchise
dealerships.

Our indirect impacts
Property development

The group will not enter into rental agreements where developers have not
conducted the required environmental impact assessments,

Suppliers

Suppliers have been issued with supplier agreements for signature which require
their compliance with, inter alia, labour, and customs ang excise legislation. Ragular
audits are undertaken at the premises of our merchandise suppliers and deviations
from agreed standards must be romedied if the suppliers are to retain a business
relationship with the group.
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volue added| statement

for the years ended 31 March

I 2008 2007
Note Rm % Rm %
Retail turnover 7 6687 72300
Dividends received 17,2 228
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (4 381,1) (41794
Value added 33048 30734 100,0
Applied as follows:
Employees
Remuneration to employees 9645 34
Providers of capitat
To lenders as finance charges 104,7 34
To shareholders as dividends 5772 188
Taxatton
Taxation 555,6 181
Reinvested
Reinvested in the group lo finance fulure expansion and growth 1 8714 283
Employment of value added 30734 100,0
Notes to the Vatue Added Statemen!
1. Reinvested in the group to finance future expansion and growth
Depreciation and amortisation 1741 56
Deferred taxation (34,7} {1.1)
fRetained incorme 7320 238
874 283
2. State taxes
Direct taxation as above 5556
Net value added taxation 2689
Employees' taxation 120,4
Regiona! Services Council tevies 36
Channetted through the group 9485

2008 2007
@ Employees: 34,3% 31,4%
@ Reinvested: 24,0%  28,3%
O Taxation: 171%  1B,1%

O Providers of capital: 24,6% 22,2%
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This lable is 8 summary of the group's reporting against the Global Reporting Initiative’s Sustainabiiity Reporting Guidelines.

GRI reterence Section in this report
1 Vision and Strategy
1.3 Vision and strategy Corporate Profile
1.2 CED's statement Chief Executive Officer’s Repart
2 Profile
2.1 Nameg of organisation Administration
22 Major products and services Corporate Profite
2.3 Operational structure Corporate Struclure
2.4 Organisational structure Review of Opesations and Services
25 Geographic locations Corporate Profile
26 Nature of ownershipflegal form Shareholdings, Corporate Profile
2.7 Nature of markets served Corparate Profile
2B Scale of reporting organisations Sustainability Feport; Annual Financial Statements
29 List of stakeholders Sustainabifity Report; Shareholdings
2.10 Contact person Administration
21 Reporting period Annual Financial Statements
212 Date of previous report Annual Financial Stalemenis
213 Boundaries of report Not reported on
2.4 Significant changes Chiet Executive Officer's Report
2.15 Basis for reporiing Not applicable
2.i6 Restatements of information Not applicable
247 Decisions ot to apply GRI principles Not reparted on
218 Criteria/definitions Definitions; Group Statistics; Sustainability Report; Annual Financial
Statements
219 Significant changes in measurement Not applicable
220 Assurance Corporate Govarnance Report
2.21 independent assurance Not reportad on
2.22 Additional nformation Not reported on
3 Govemance Structure and Management Systems
3.1 Governance simucture Corporate Governance Report
32 Independence, non-executive directors Directorate; Corporate Govemance Report
33 Board member expertise Not reported on
34 Board level processes Corporate Governance Report; Sustalnability Report
35 Executive compensation Corporate Governance Report
6 Organisational structure Not reported on
37 Mission and value statements Corporate Profile; Sustainability Report
348 Shareowner communication Corporate Governance Report
39 Identification of major stakeholders Shareholdings
310 Approaches to stakeholder consuttation Not reporied on
31 Feedback from stakeho!der consuitation Not reported on
312 tnformation used from stakeholder engagement Not reported on
313 Precautionary approach Corporate Governance Reporl
314 Externally developed chartess, principles, intiatives Mot reported on
315 Principal memberships Not reported on
3.16 Managing upstream and downstream impacts Sustainability Report
317 Managing indirect impacts Sustainability Report
3.8 Decisions regarding location and ¢changes in aperation Chiel Executive Officer’s Report
3.19 Sustainability programmes and procedures Corporate Governance Report; Sustainability Report
3.20 Certification status Corporate Gavernance Report; Sustainanility Report
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Economic

EC Neg! sales

EC2 Geographic breakdewn of markets
EC3 Cost of goods, matesials and services
£C4 Cantragts paid in accordance with agreed terms
EC5 Payroll and benefits

EC6 Distribitions to providers of capital
(1074 Retained earnings

EC8 Taxes paid

EC9 Subsidies received

ECI0  Donations

Envirgnment

EN1 Materials usea

ENZ Waste from external sources

EN3 Direct energy use

EN4 Indirect energy use

ENS Total water use

ENG Land in biodiversity-rich habitats
EN7 Major impacts on biodiversity
ENS Greenhouse gas emissions

N9 Ozone-depleting substances

EN10  Significant air emissions

EN11  Total amouni of waste

EN1Z  Significant discharges to water
EN13  Signilicant spills

EN14  Significant impact of products and services
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directors’ approval and
company secretary’s certificate

for the years ended 31 March

Directors’ responsibility for and approval of
the group annval financial statements

The board of directors (the board) is responsible for the
content and integrity of the group annual financial statements
and related information included in this report. Y is their
responsidility to ensure that the annual financial statements
fairty present the state of affairs of the company and the
group as at the end of the financial year and the results of
their operations and cash flows for the financial year, in
conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards.
The group’s external auditors are engaged to express an
independent opinion on the group annua! financial
statements.

The group annual financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
The accounting policies, unfess otherwise stated, are
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowleoge that they are ulimately
respansitle for the system of internal control and review its
operation primarily through the audit and risk committees
and varlous other management systems.

A strong control environment is maintained by applying a
risk-based system of internal accounting and administrative
controls and by ensuring adequate segregation of dutles. In
addition, Group Audit Services (internal audit} conduct
specific risk-based audits and co-ordinate audit coverage
with the external auditors.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information
and explanations given by management, the intemal auditors
and the extemal auditors, that the system of Internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may
be refied on for the preparation of the group annual financial
statements, However, any system of internal controi can
provide only reasenable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The directors have every reason to befieve that the group will
continue as a golng concem for the foreseeable future, and
the annual financial statements have been prepared on the
basis of this assumption.

The annual financial statements and group annual financiat
statements set out on pages 118 to 167 were approved by
the board on 11 June 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

E OSRIN A D MURRAY
Chairman Chiet Executive Officer
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Company secretary's certificate

} certify that Foschini Limited has lodged with the Registrar of
Companies all returns as required by 3 public company in
terms of section 268G{d) of the Companles Act No. 61 of
1973, as amended, and that all such returns ase, to the best
of my knowledge and beliet, true, correct and up to date.

D SHEARD
Secretary

11 June 2008




independent auditor's report

for the years ended 31 March

To the members of Foschini Limited

We have audited the annual financial statements and the
group annual financial statements of Foschini Limited, which
comprise the balance sheets at 31 March 2008, and the
income statements, the statements of changes in equity and
cash flow statements for the year then ended, and the notes
to the financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes
and the directors’ report as set out on pages 118 to 167.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The direclors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Slandards and in the
manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa.
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control refevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financiat statemenis that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor,
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policles; and
making accounting estimales that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ responstbility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on owr audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require tha! we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures setected depend on the auditor’s
judgerment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statemenis, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessmenils, the auditor
considers iniemal controd relevant 10 the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblalned is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas’s for our audit
opinion,

Opinion

In our apinion, the financiat statements presen! {airty, in all
material respects, the consolidated and separate financial
position of Foschini Limited at 31 March 2008, ang its
consolidated and separate financial performance and
consolidated and separate cash flows tor the year then ended
in agcordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. and in the manner required by the Companies Act
of South Africa.

KPMG Inc.
Registered Auditor

Per Patrick Farrand
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registerad Auditor

Cape Town

11 June 2008
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directors’ report

for the years ended 31 March

Nature of business

Foschini Limited is an investment holding company whose
subsidiaries, through their retail operating divisions -
Foschini, branded as Foschini, Donna-claire, Fashionexpress
and Luella; Markham; Exact!; TFG Apparel Supply Company,;
the sports division, branded as Sporiscene, Totalsports and
DueSouth; the jewellery division, branded as American Swiss,
Matrix and Sterns; @home, branded as @home and
@homelivingspace; and FG Financial Services - retail
clothing, jewellery, accessories, cosmetics, sporling and
outdoor apparel and equipment and homeware to the broad,
middte income group throughout soulhern Africa.

The RCS Group provides a range of broader tinancial services
to customers of the group and to customers of unrelated
retailers.

The group operates in the retail and financial services
segmenis, aimest entirely within the South African Common
Monetary Area.

Retzit turnover emanating from Swaziland and Botswana
accounts for 0.6% of the group’s tumover.

General review

The financial results are reflected in the annual financial
statements on pages 118 to 167.

Share capital

The group's share buy-back programme commenced at the
end of May 2001. At 31 March 2008, 24,0 million shares are
held by a subsidiary, and a further 11,9 million by the group's
share Ingentive trust, These shares, representing 14,9% of
the company’s Issued share capital are treated as treasury
shares and have been eliminated on consolidation. Further
details of the authorised and issued share capital are
reflected In note 14.

Dividends
Interim ordinary

The direclors declared an Interim ordinary dividend of
118 cents per ordinary share, which was paid on Monday,
7 January 2008 to ordinary shareholders recorded in the
books of the company at the close of business on Friday,
4 January 2008,

Final ordinary

The directors dectared a final ordinary dividend of 170 cents
per ordinary share payable an Monday, 14 July 2008 o
ordinary sharehelders recorded in the books of the company
at the close of business on Friday, 11 July 2008.
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Preference

The company paid the following dividends to holders of 6,5%
cumulative preference shares:

1 October 2007 - R13 000

(2 October 2006 — R13 000)

31 March 2008 - R13 000

(26 March 2007 — R13 000).

Directors

The names of the company's directors appear on pages 12
and 13 of this report.

The follgwing changes took place during the current year:

A D Murray {appointed 2 April 2007)

S N Bowley {appointed 2 April 2007)

$ N Bowley (resigned T August 2007)

The following directors retfire by rotation in terms of the
artices of association but, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election as directors:

R Steln {executive)

N H Goodwin (independent non-executive)

M Lewis (independent non-executive)

For cetails of directors’ interests in the company’s issued

shares, refer to note 14.5. Details of direclors’ remuneration
are set out in note 33.

Secretary

The company secretary of Foschini Limited is Ms D Sheard.
Her business and postal address appear on the inside back
cover of this repori,

Subsidiaries

The names of, and certain financial information relating to,
the company's key subsidiaries appear on page 166,
Earnings of subsidiaries

The total profits (losses) of consolidaied subsidiaries are as
follows:

2008 2007
Rm Rm
Profits
Losses
Net consolidated profit after taxation




Special resolutions Special resolutions passed by subsidiary

On 5 September 2007 shareholders renewed the approval, companies
as a general authority, of the acquisition by the company or No special resolutions of any significance were passed during
any of its subsidiaries of the issued ordinary shares of the the year under review.

company, valid until the next annual generat meeting. Al the . .

next annual general meeting ta be held o 3 Seplember 2008 Staff share incentive and option schemes
shareholders will be asked to renew this general autnority, as Datails ara reflected in note 32.1.

set out in the notice to members.

Post-balance sheet event

No other speciai resolutions were passed during the year
under review. Details are reflected in note 23.
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group balance sheet

as at 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill and intangible assets
Preference share investment
{nvestment in associates

Staff housing loans

Private label card receivables
Loan receivables

Partigipation in export partnerships
Deferred taxation assat

DWW ~D bW

—

Current assets

Inventory 11

Trade receivables — retail 12

Private label card receivables 7

Cther receivables and prepayments

Loan receivables 8

Participation in export partnerships 9

Cash 13

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to equity holders of Foschini Limited

Share capital 14

Share premium

Treasury shares 15 {1230,2)

Dividend reserve 16.1 408,8

Hedging reserve (deficit) 16.2 12,1

Share-based payments reserve 16.3 91,6

insurance cell reserves 16.4 1,5

Retained eamings 4059,7
38452

Minority inferest 17 2680,9

Total equity 41361

Nan-current liabilities

Interest-bearing debt 18 961,3

Operating lease liability 128,7

Deferred taxation liabiiity 10 156,5

846,5

Current liabilities

Interest-bearing debt 18 12010

Trade and other payables 19 7418

Taxation payable 64.9

Post-retirement defined benefit plan 20 841
20918

Total liabilities 29383

Total equity and liahilities 70744

120 « Foschini Group Annual Report 2008




group income statement

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

2008

Note
Revenue 25 9253,6
Retail turnover 7 668,7
Cos! o turnover (4479,2)
Gross peofit 31895
Interest received 26 1 05,4
Dividends received 17,2
Met trading expenses 27 {2 357,6)
Operating profit befere finance charges 27 19055
interest paid 28 (120,1)
tncame {rom assaciate t9
Profit before tax 1786,3
Income tax expense 29 {580,2)
Profit for the year 1 206,%
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Foschinf Limited 11284
Minarity interest 77
Profit for the year 1 206.1
Eamings per ordinary share (cents)
Basic 301
Dituted 30.2
Dividend per ordinary share {cents)
Interim
Final 16.1
Total

2007
Rm

8527.8

72300
{4195,1)

30349
877.4
228

(2 048,1)

18870
(104.7)

17823
{590,3)

11920

1119.2
728

11920

534,2
5148

140.0
170,0

2700
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group statement
of changes in equity

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Atfributable
10 equity
holders of
Share Share  Treasury Other Retgingd  Foschini  Minority Total
capital premium  shares  reserves  eamings Limited  Inlerest etpity
Am Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Am
Equity at 31 March 2006 31 4987 (50400 3767 28934 BEFUIRY LR 3 356,8
Tolal recognised income and expenses for the year - - - 13 11192 RERFE 72.5 IRREEE
Eftective portion of changes in fair value of
cash flow hedges* 13 13 13
Profit for the year 11192 RRAEN 72.6 WREAY
Change in degree of control - 7z e
Profit on ditution of interest in subsidiary 121 1121 1121
Share-based payments reserve movements 19,2 19,2 19,2
Transfer from dividend reserve (3366 3366 - -
Dividends paid (5006) NN AN (552,2)
Transfer {o dividend reserve 4088  (408.8) - -
Proceeds on delivery of shares by share Tust 929 929 92,9
Delivery of shares by sharg trust 107 4 {107 4} - -
Shares purchase by share trust (288.4) {288,4) (288.,4)
Equity at 31 March 2007 31 4087 (6850) 4694 35374 QEEFEL 1813 EERULE
Total recognised income and gxpenses for the year - - - 124 11234 REEIE Al 12185
Effective partion of changes in fair value of
cash flow hedges” 12.4 12,4 12,4
Profit for the year 11284 11284 77,7 RR{A
Change in degree of control - 1194 119,4
Investment in associate - @.n 2,7
Profit on dilufion of interest in subsidiary 921 a1 a2.1
Share-based payments reserve movernents 30,7 30,7 307
Insurance cell reserves movements 15 15 1,5
Transfer from dividend reserve {408,8) 4088 - -
Dividends paid (592.6) (592,6) (677,4}
Transter to dividend reserve 4088 (4088 - -
Procesds on delivery of shares by share trust 1095 109,5 109,5
Delivery of shares by share trust 2151 (215,1) - -
Shares purchased by share trust and subsidiary 01 (760.3) {760,4) (760,49
Equity at 31 March 2008 3.0 498,7 (1230,2) 5140 40557 38452 2969 41361

* Denoies items recognised tErectly in equity
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Qroup cosh flow statement

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Note

2008

Cash llows from operating activities
Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in working capizal

351
35.2

1074,2
(568.3)

Cash generated by operations

Increase in private label card receivables
Decrease (increase) in foan receivables
Interest received

Interest paid

Taxation paid

Olvidends received

Oividends pald

353

354

505,9
(241,6)
150,3
1056.4
{(120,1)
{735,1)
17.2
{677.4)

Net cash (outflows) inflows from operating activiies

{44,4)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of cllent list

Invesiment in associate

Decrease in parficipation in export partnerships
Decrease in staff housing loans

Proceeds on dilution of interest in subsidiary

355

(274,4)
6.4
0.8
(6.1}
10,6
1,6
211,5

Net cash outflows from investing activities

(52,2)

Cash flows from financing activities

Shares purchased by share trust and subsidiary
Proceeds on delivery of shares by share trust
Increase in interest-bearing debt

(760.4)
109,5
7418

Net cash inflows from financing activities

90,9

Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

{5.7)
69,1

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

63,4

2007
Am

1187,9
218,1)

969,8
(346,6)

(49,0)
877.4
{104,7)
718.2)

22,8
(552,2)

94,3

(304,9)
4,0
(2.8

6.0
1.2
183,3

1i2.70

(288.4)
929
2155

200

6.6
62,5

68,1
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group segmental analysis

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

RCS Group Retail Consolidated
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Am

REVENUE®

Extemnal 874,2 7216 BEERIEEN 7 806.2 QLKA
Inter-sagment - - - - - -
Tota! revenus 8742 7216 BCEEEN 7 806,2 PERE

SEGMENT RESULT

Operating profit before finance charges 386.7 408,5 ERIGIEEE 1 478.5 EREIGK]

External interest {51.8) (31,03 {68.3) 73.7) BEAAN
Inter-segment interest (65,3) (54,8} 65,3 54,8 -

inteest pid o [ ol oo IR

289,6 3227 BREIECE 14596 EEREEER

Profit before tax and income from associate

* Includes retall lnover, intarest received and other income

SEGMENT ASSETS

Non-current assets 871,0 (RPN 10918 ERELIRE 19807
Current assets 1 004,6 KL 37838 EEREE 46233
Inter-segment assets {liabilities) 129 {12,9} {12,9} - -
Total assets i 888.5 50114 ER:AAR 68999 EETICHY
SEGMENT LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities 4957 194,3 690.0

Current liabilities 1209 1906,0 2 026.9
Inter-segment liabilities {assets) 6659 7254 (665.9) (725.4) -

Total liabilitles 12825 ERRLLI

14344 ERRGIRA 27169
SEGMENT INFORMATION

Capital expenditure 27,1 2473 274.4 3044
Depreciation and amortisation 131 191,6 2047 1741

Al retail divisions within the group operate in an established retail market and are therefore considered {o be subject to similar
risks and rewards,

Segment revenue and expenses
Revenue and expenses that are direcly attributable to segments are allocated to those segments.

Those that are not directly attributable to segments are allocated on a reasenable basis.

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assels include afl operaling assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating cash, receivables, inventories
and property, plant and equipment, net of related allowances and accumulated impairments.

While mast such assets can be directly attributable to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain assats used jointly by
two or more segments is allocated 1o the segments on & reasonable basis. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities, and
consist principally of trade payables, salaries and accruals.

Inter-segment transfers
Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment result include transfers between business segments.

These transfers occur at market prices and are eliminated on consolidation.
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notes to the financial statements

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

Foschini Limited (the “comparny”) is a company domiclled
in South Alrica. The consolidated (inancial statements of
the company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2008
comprise the company and its subsidiaries {together
referred to as the “group”) and the group's interests in
associates.

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the group's accounting policies, which
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and have been consistently applied with those
adopted in the prior year.

The financial statements were authorised lor issue by the
direttors on 11 June 2008.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the
going concern and historical cost bases, excepl where
otherwise stated.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial stalements are presented in
South African Rands, which is the company's functional
currency, rounded to the nearest million, unless otherwise
stated.

Significant Accounting Paolicies

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below:

Basis of Consotidation

The consofidated financia! statements tncorpodate the
financial statements of the parent company, ils
subsidiaries, special-purpose entlties (SPE) and
associates. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
prepared for the consistent reporting period wusing
consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are entilies controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating poficies
of an entity 50 as lo obtain benefits from ils activities.
In assessing conirol, potential voting rights that are
presently exercisable are taken into account. The financiat
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consofidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
untii the date that conirol ceases. Gaing made on difution
of interest in subsidiaries are recognised in equity.

The group has established a SPE In the form of the share
incentive trust, The group does not have any direct or
indirect shareholding in the share incentive trusl. An SPE
is consolidated if, based on an evalualion of the substance
of its relationship with the group and the SPE's risks and
rewards, the group concludes that It coatrols the SPE.
The results of the share incentive trust that in substance Is
controlled by the group, are consofidated.

Associates arc those entities in which the group has
significant influence, but not controt, over the financial and
operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to
exist when the group holds between 20 and 50 percent of
the voting power of another entity. Joint ventures 2re those
entlties over whose activities the group has join! control,
established by contractual agreement and requiring
unanimous consent for strategic financial and eperating
decisions. Associates and jointly controlled entities are
accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted
investees) and are initially recognised at cost. The group's
investment includes goodwill [dentified on acquisition, net
of any accumulated impairment losses. The consolidated
financial statements include the group's share of the
income and expenses and equity movements of equily
accounted investees, after adjustments to align the
accounting policles with those of the group, from the date
that significant influence or joint control commences until
the date that significant influence or joind controf ceases.
When the group’s share of losses exceeds its imerest in an
equily accounted Investee, the carrying amount of that
interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced
to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
excepi to the extent that the group has an obligation or has
made paymenis on behalf of the investee.

M intra-group transactions, intra-group balances and
any unrealised galns and losses are eliminated on
consofidation. Unrealised gains arising from transactions
with equity accounted investees are eliminaled against
the investment to the exent of the group’s interest in the
investee, Unrealised fosses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains, but enly to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

The financial statements of foreign operations are
translated in tarms of the accounting policy on foreign
currencies.

The company's financial stalements measure investmenis
in subsidiaries af cosl.

Cost of Turmover

Cost of turnover is caiculated as the cost of goods sold,
Including promotional costs.
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notes to the financial statements continued

for the years ended 3t March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Dividends

Dividends and the related secondary 1ax on companies are
accaunted for in the period when the dividend is declared.
Dividends declared on equity instruments after the balance
sheet date, and the related secondary tax on companies
thereon, are accordingly not recognised as liabllities at the
balance sheet date. Final dividends declared after the
balance sheet date are however transferred 0 a dividend
resarve,

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of all short-ferm emplayee benefits is recognised
during the period in which the employee renders the
related service, The accruals for employee entitiements to
wages, salarles, annual and sick leave represent the
amount which the group has a present obligation to pay as
a result of employees' services provided to the balance
sheet date. The short-lerm employee benelils have been
calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current
wage ang salary rates.

Other long-term employee benefits

These are emptoyee benefits {other than post-employment
benefits and termination benefits) that are not expected to
be setited within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service.

The group's net obligation in respect of lgng-term
emplayes benefits Is the amount of future benefit that
employees have eamned in return for their service in the
current and prigr periods; that benefit is discounted using
market-relaied rates and the fair value of any related
assets is deducted. The calculation is performed using the
Projecied Unit Credit Method. Any actuarial gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Post-empioyment benefits

The company and iis subsidiaries contribule to several
defined benefii and defined contribution plans.

Defined conlribution plans

Contributions %o defined contribution pension, provident
ang retirement funds are charged against income as
incurred.

Defined benehit plans

The Prajected Unit Credit Method is used 1o determing the
present value of the defined benefit medical aid cbligations
and the relaled current service cost and, where applicable,
past service cost. Actuarial gains or losses in respect of
defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in
income. Past service costs are recognised as an expense
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on a straight-line Dasis over the average pericd until the
benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are
already vesled, past service costs are recognised
immediately.

Post-retirement medical aid benefits

Where the company has an obligation to provide post-
retirement medical aid benefits fo employees, the
company recognises the cost of these benefits in the year
in which the employees render the services using the
same accounting methodology described in respect of
defined benefit plans above,

Share-based payment transactions

The group granis share oplions to certain employees
under an employee share plan. The fair value of options
granted to employees is recognised as an expense with a
comesponding increase in equity. The fair value is
measwred at the grant date using a binomial option-
pricing model and is spread over the oplion lerm. Costs
incurred in administering the schemes are expensed as
mcuired.

Expenses
Interest expense

Inserest expense comprises interest paid and payable on
borrowings calculated using the effective Inferest rate
method. Al! horrowing costs are recognised as an expense.

Operating fease payments

Leases where the [essor retaing the risks and rewards of
ownership of the underlying asse! are classified as
operaling leases.

Payments made under operating leases are recogaised in
the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the
ferm of the lease.

Contingent reni is expensed as incurred.
Finance Lease Payments

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
ol ownership of the underlying asset to the group are
classlifled as finance leases.

Assets acquired in iesms of finance leases are capitalised
at the lower of fair value and the present vaiwe of the
minimum lease payments at Inception of the lease, and
depreciated over the estimated usefuf life of the asset.
The capital element of future obligations under the Ilzases
is included as a liabilily in the balance sheet.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the kability.
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Finaneial Instruments

A financial instrument is recognised when Lhe group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised if the group's
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire or il the group translers the financial asset to
another party without retaining control or substantially all
risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade dale,
being the date that the group commits [tself to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the
group’s obligations specifled in the contract expire or are
discharged or cancelled.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financlal instruments recognised on the
balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, statf housing lgans, participation In
export partnarships, investments, inierest-bearing debt
ang trade and other payables.

Measurement

Financiat instruments are initially recognised at fair value.
For thase instruments not measured al fair value through
profit and loss, directly aitributable transaction costs
are included on initial measurement. Subsequent to inidal
recognition financlal instruments are measured as
described below.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are¢ measured at amortised cost,
based on the relevant exchange rates at balance sheet date.
Outstanding cheques are included in trade and other
payables and added back to cash balances included in the
balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash an
hand and amounits hald on depasit ai financial nstitutions.

Held-to-maturily investments

If the group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt
securities fo maturity, then they are classilied as held-io-
maturity investments. The preference share investment is
classified as a held-to-maturity investiment,

These investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any impairment kosses.

The fair value of held-to-maturity invesiments is
determined by reference to thelr quoted bid price at
the reporting date. The fair value of these investiments is
determined for disclosure purposes only.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Listed investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are carmled at fair valug, which is markst value
calcutated by reference to stock exchange-quoted selling
nrices at the close of business on the balance sheel date,

atter taking into account any impairment losses. Unlisted
investments are shown at fair value, which is delermined
by the directors using appropriate valuation bases (after
taking into acgount any inpairment losses), unless their
fair value cannot be refiably determined, in which case
they are shown at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Cumently the group does not have any available-
for-sate financial assets.

Loans and recefvables

Staff housing loans, loan receivables, private ‘abel card
receivables, trade receivables — retal and participation in
export partnerships are classified as loans and receivables
and are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less accumutated impairment kosses. Amortised
cost for the group's participation in export partnerships is the
group’s cost of original participation less principal subsequent
repayments received, plus the cumulative amortisation of the
difference between the initill amount and the maturity
amount, fess any writedown for Impairment of uncollectabiity.
The fair value of loans and receivables, detemmined for
disclosure purposes Is estimated based on the present valug
of future principa and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Financial Nabilities measured at amortised cost

Non-derivative financial liabilities including interesi-
hearlng debt and trade and cther payables are recognised
at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal
payments and plus amortisations.

The fair vatue of non-derivative financial fiabilities, determined
for disclosure purposes, i estimated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at
Ihe market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments

The group uses derivative financial mstruments to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate rigks arising
from operational, financing and investment actvities. In
accordance with its treasury policy, the group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with the gain or loss on
remeasurement belng recognised immediately in profit or
loss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting, recognition of any gain or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge {refer hedging accounting pokicy).

The fair value of interest rale swaps is the estimated
amount thal the group would receive or pay 10 terminate
the swap at the balance sheet date, laking into account
current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
the swap counterparties.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is the present
value of thefr forward price.
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1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Derivative financial instruments continued
Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incrementa! costs
directly attribulable to the issue of ordinary shares and
share options are recognised as @ deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.

Preference share capital
Preference share capital is classified as equity, Dividends
thereon are recognised as distributions within equity.

Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

All falr value gaing and ksses on subsaquent measurement
of financiai instruments are recognised in profit or loss,
excepl for hedged instruments and available-for-salg
assets. Hedged instruments are accounted for as described
in the hedging accounting policy, Gains and losses arising
from available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
directly in equity. except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on availabie-for-sale
moaetary items which are recognised in the income
stalement. When an investment classiied as available-for-
sale is deracognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity
is transferred to profit or loss.

Oftset

Financial assets and financia) liabilties are offset and the
net amount reported In the balance sheet when the group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and intends either to setle on a net basis, or o
realise the asset and settle the liability simuttanecusly.

Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of each entity within the group is
determined based on the currency of the primary
economic envirgnment in which that entity operates.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies oiher lhan the enlity’s
functionat currency are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling on the transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilities deneminated in such
currencies are translated at the rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Foreign currency gains and losses arising on
translation are recognised in profit or loss, excepl for
ditferences arising on the translatlon of available-for-sale
equily instruments, which are recognised directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such
currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction,

Foreign operations

As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabllities of
foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
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adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into the
presentation currency of the group at the rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet dale and their income
statements are translated at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or the average rates if it
approximates the actual rates.

Gains and losses arising on transtation of the assets,
liabllities, income and expenses of foreign operations
are recognised directly in equity as a foreign currency
{ranslalion reserve.

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying
the purchase method. Goodwill represents amounts
arising on acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures and is the difference between the cost of the
acquisition and the group’s interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assels, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree. When the difference is negative (negalive
goodwill), it is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwil Is measured at cost less any accumulated
Impalrmenm losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and Is not amortised bt s tested
annually for impairment and whenever therg is an
indication of impairment.

In respect of equity accounted Investees, the carrying
amount of goodwll! Is included In the camying amount of
the investment.

Hedging

Gains and losses from remeasuring the hedging
instruments relating o a fair value hedge at fair value are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

To the extent that they are eHective, gains and losses from
remeasuring the hedging instruments refating 1o @ cash
flow hedge 1o fair value are initialty recognised directly
in equity. i the hedged firm commitment or forecast
transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial
assel or a liability, the cumulative amount recognised in
equity up to the transaction date Is adjusted against the
initial measurement of the asset or liability, Fer other cash
flow hedges, the cumulative amount recognised in equity
is included in net profit or lpss in the period when the
commilment or forecast transaction affects profit or loss.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in the income statement,

Where the hedging instrument or hedge relationship is
terminated but the hedged transaction is still expected to
occur, the cumulative unrealised gain or Joss at that paint
remains In equity and is recognised in accordance with the
ahove policy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged
transaction fs no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
unrealised gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement immediaiely.
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Impairment af Assets
Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whelher there is any objeclive evidence thal It
is impaired. A financial asset is consldered to be impaired
il objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured al amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between Its carrying amount, and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the originat
effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an
available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference
to its current fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for
impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial
assels are assessed colleclively in groups that share
similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairmen? losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any
cumulaltive loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial
asset recognised previously in equily is ransferred to
profit o oss.

An Impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be
related abjectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost and available-for-sale
financial asseis that are debt securities, the reversal is
recognised in profit or Yoss. For available-for-sale finantial
assets thai are equity securities, the reversal is recognised
directy in equity.

Non-financial assets

The carrying vatues of the group’s nan-financial assets,
other than inventeries and defesred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such Indication
exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwiti and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful Hves or thal are not yet available for use,
recoverable amount is estimaled at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised il the carrying amount of
an assel or ils cash-generating unit exceeds ils
recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smatlest
identifiable asset group that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assels or asset groups. Impairment lossas are recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised In respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill altocated to the units and
then to recuce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit {groud of units) on a pro rata basis. The
recoverabla amount of an asset ar cash-generating unit is
the greater of its value in use and its falr value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash

flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax
discount rale that reflects current markei assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specilic to the asset.

An impairment oss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In
tespect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in
prior periods are assessed at each reparting date for any
indications that the kss has decieased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment lass is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carmying amount does not exceed the carrying amount thal
would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
seliing price in the ordinary course of business, less selling
expenses,

The cost of invenlories is based on the fisst-in-first-out
principle and includes expendilure incurred in agqulring
the inventories and bringing them to their present location
and condition.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of self-
constructed assels includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, any other costs directly antributable to bringing the
asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different usehul Iives, they are accounted for as separate
jtems {major componeants) of preperty, plant and equipment.

Certain items of properiy, plant and equipment that had
been revatued to falr value on or prior 10 transition to IFRS,
are measured on the basis of deemed cos!, being the fair
value at the date of transiticn.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-ling basis over the periods of their estimated
useful fives, at the following rates per annum:

Shopfitiings 20%
Passenper vehicles 20%
Commercial vehicles 25%
Compuiers and related equipment 20% - 33%
Furniture and fitings 16,67%
Buildings 3,33%

Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, usetu! lives and residuat values are
reassessed at each reporting date.
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i

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Property, Plant and Equipment continued

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benelits
embediad within the part will flow to the group. and it$ cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced par! is derecognised. The day-lo-day servicing
costs of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or Y0ss as incurred.

Gains or losses on the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are credited or charged to income. The prolit or
loss is the dilference between ths net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amoum of the assel.

Imtangible Assets

Intangible assets hat are acquired by the group, which
have linite useful tives, are measured al cosl less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
105565,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specilic assst to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwifl and
brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than
goodwill, from the date that they are avaitable for use. The
estimated useful lives for the currént and comparative
periods are as follows:

Client lists 50%
Pravisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the
qgroup has a present legal or construciive obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an ouiflow of
economic benefits will be required 1o setile the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can ba made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed ai each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue Racognition
Turnover

Turnover represents the invoiced value of relail sales,
excluding intra-group sales ang Vatue Added Tax. Sales are
recognised when significant risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the buyer, there is no
continuing managament involvement with the goods, the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably, costs and
possible reium of goods can be measured reflably and
receipt of the fulure economic benefits is probable.

130 » Foschini Group Annual Report 2008

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of retums and allowances,
discounts and rebates.

interest received

[nterest is recognised on a time-proportion basis, taking
account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate
over the period to maturity, when it is probable that such
income will accrue to the group.

Dividends received

Dividends received on equity instruments are secognised
when the right (o receive paymen is established.

Merchants' commission

Commission income Is recognised when the refated
transaction on which the commission is earned has been
concluded.

Club income
Club income is recognised in the income statement when due.
Insuranca income

Insurance income is recognised in the income statement
when due and no further services are required.

Taxation
Income tax expanse comprises current and deferred tax.

Income 1ax expense is charged to the income statement
axcept 1o the extent that it refates to a transaction that is
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised
In equity.

Current 1ax is the expected taxation payable, calcutated on
the basis of taxabie income for the year, using the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
angd any adjustment of taxation payable for previous years,

Deferred taxation is recognised using the balance sheet
method, 10 take into account the effect of temporary
differences between the tax base of an asset or liability
and its balance sheet carrying amount. Defesred tax is not
recognised for the lollowing temporary differences: the
initial recognition of goodwill; the initia! recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit; and ditferences relating to investments in
subsidiaries and associates 10 the extent thal they
probably wiil not reverse in the foreseeable fulure.
Ceferred tax is measured at (he tax rates that are expected
to be applied to temperary differences when they reverse,
based on the iaws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting data.

Deferred fax assels and liabilities are offset If there is a
legally enforceable right to offset curnent tax liabilities and
assets, ang they relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
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entities, tut they intend 1o settte current tax liabilities and
assels on a net basis, or their tax assets and lizbilities will
be realised simultangousty,

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for all deductible
femporary differences and assessed losses to the extznt
that il is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which such deductible temporary differences and
assessed losses can be utilised. Deferred lax assets are
reviewed al each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Secondary taxation on companies is provided in respect
of dividend payments or declarations, net of dividends
receiveg or receivable, and is recognised as a tax charge
in the year in which the related dividend is declared and
the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

Eamings Per Share

The group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by diviging the profit o loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is calcutated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise share options granted to employees.

Treasury Shares

Foschini Limited shares purchased and held by
subsidiaries are classified as Ireasury shares and are
presented as a reduction of equity,

Dividends received on treasury shares are eliminated on
consolidation,

Gains or lesses on disposal of treasury shares are
accounted for gireclly in equity.

issued and weighted average numbers of shares are reduced
by treasury shares for eamings per share purpeses.

Segmental Reporting

The group is primarily & retailer of fashion goods, spors
apparel, jewellery, cosmetics, cellphgnes and homeware
with significant business interests in the finance services
industry. On a primary basis, the company is organised
into two major operating divisions:

» Retail - comprising the group’s various trading
divisions; and

* RCS Group — comprising RCS Personal Loans, RCS Cards
and RCS Private Label Cards.

The group operates solely in the southern African market
and accordingly has not identified any secondary
segments.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an amm’s length
basis.

Segment resulls include revenue and expenses directly
attributable 10 a segment and the relevant portion of
enterprise revenue and gxpenses thal can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to a segment, whether from external
transactiens or from ftransactions with other group
segments. Segment results are determined before any
adjustments for minority interest and taxation,

Segment assets and liabilities comprise those operating
assets and liabilities, excluding taxation, that are directly
attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the
segmeni on a reasonable basis. Segmemt assels are
determined after deducting related allowances that are
reported as direct offsets in the group’s balance sheet.

Segment capital expendiiure represents the tolal costs
incurred during the peripd to acquire segment assets that
are expected to be used during more than one period,
namely, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
other than goodwill,

Significant Judgements

The preparation of financial stalements in corformity
with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the peried in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgements made in applying the group’s accounting
palicies, that potentially have a stgnificant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial stalements are as
follows:

Trade receivables impairment

Trade receivables are disclosed net of any accumulated
impairment losses. The calculation of the impairment
amount is performed wsing the intemationally-recognised
Markov model. The Markov model uses delinguency rofl
rates on customer balances to determine ihe inherant bad
debt in a debtors’ book. The directors believe that the
application of the Markov model results in trade
receivables balances being measured reliably.

Other

Further estimates and judgements are made relating to net
realisable value of inventory; residuai values, useful lives
and depreciation methods; goodwill impairment tests
(refer note J); estimating the fair value of share options
granted {refer note 32.1); and pension fund and employee
obligations {refer note 32).
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2007
Rm
2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and buildings
Al deemed cost FETA 257.5
Accumulated depreciation {58,1) 52,0)
Carrying value at the end of the year 189.0 205,5
Shopfittings, vehicles, computers and furniture and fittings
Al cost 17815 16141
Accumulaled depreciation (11331 (1 037,9)
Carrying value at the end of the year 648,4 576,6
Total
At cost/deemed cost 20386 18716
Accumulated depreciation {1191,2) {1 089.5}
Carrying value at the end of the year 8474 7821
Analysis of movements
Shopfittings,
vehicles,
COMPUtErs
tand and and fumniture
buildings and fittings Total
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 2055 576,6
Additions - 2744
Disposals {0.4) (6,9)
Depreciation (6.1} {196,7)
Carrying value at the end of tha year 193,0 648,4

None of the group's assets are in any way encumbered,

Registers of the land and buildings are available for inspection at the head office of the company at Parow Easl.
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2008 2007
Rm
3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
Al cost 270
Accumulated impairment losses -
Carrying value at ths end of the year 270
Intangible asset on acquisition of Instinct brand
At cost 1.6
Accumulated amortisation -
Carrying vaiue at the end of the year 1,6
Intanglble asset ont acquisition of cient lists
At cost 44
Accumulated amortisation 2.1
Carrying value at the end of the year 23
Total
At cost 33,0
Accumulated impairment losses/amortisation (2.1
Carrying value at the end of the year 309
Intangible asset  Intangible asset
on acquisition of  on acquisition of
Goodwill Instinct brand client lists Total
Carrying value at the beginning of ihe year 27.0 16 23
Additions - - 18
Impairenent losses/amortisation - - (1.9
Carrying value at the end of the year 270 1,6 2,2

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets, libilities and
contingent liabilities acquired through business combinations.

The Instinct brand intangible asset represents registered rights to the exciusive use of certain irademarks and brand names.
The client lists are name fists purchased by the RCS Group which are used fo invite individuals to apply for loans.
Indefinite life goodwill is tested annually for impairment and as soon as there is an indicatian of impairment.

2008 2007
Am fim

Impairment testing of indefinite life gocdwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to two
individual cash-generating unils as foltows:

Totalsports acquisition 93
RCS Personal Finance piecemeal acquisition 17,7
27,0

The recoverabte amount of both cash-generating units has been determingd based on a value-in-use calculation, using cash
flow projections which cover a three-year period. The cash flows have been discounted at a rate of 10%.

The tollowing significant assumptions have been applied when reviewing the goodwill impairment:
assel values have been based on the carrying amounts for the financial period;

- tulure expecled profits have been estimated using historicat information and approved budgets:

- Totalsports' sales growths ang gross margins were based on historical perfermance, while casts were assumed to grow
in line with expansion and expectation of inflation; and

— RCS Personal Finance projections are based on historical performance as well as anticipated growth in advances and
expeclations of fiture interest rates.
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4, PREFERENCE SHARE INVESTMENT
Held-to-maturity investment
Cumulative preference shares

Comprises an Investment of R200 million, redeernable from 25 August 2011, with
dividends payable biannualty on 15 December and 15 June.

This investment eams dividends at a rate of 63% of prime compounded semi-annually.

The group's management of and exposure to credit and marked risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.

5. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
RCS Home Loans {Proprigtary) Limited
Etfective Intelligence (Proprietary) Limited

The qroup’s share of profit in its equity accounted investees for the year was
R0,3 million {2007: Anil). This share of profit is in respect of Effective Intelligence
{Proprietary) Limited, as the group did not recognise its share of losses relating to
RCS Home Loans (Praprietary) Limited since the group has no obligation in respect
ol these josses.

Summary financial infarmation for equity accounted investees, not adjusted for the
percentage ownership held by the group, are as foliows:

RCS Home Loans {Proprietary) Limited
Revenue

Net loss befare taxation
Taxation

et loss after taxaticn

Non-current assets
Curren! assets

Equity
Non-current liabilities
Current fiabilities

Effective Intelligence (Proprietary) Limited
Revenue

Net profit before taxation
Taxation

Net profit after taxation

Non-current assets
Curmrent assets

Equily
Current liabilities
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2008 2007
Rm
6. STAFF HOUSING LOANS
Loans and receivables
Staff housing loans 348
Deduct amount to be repaid within one year, included in othar receivables and
prepayments 6.9
29
Heusing loans made 1o employees are secured by morigage bonds, bear interest
at varying rates linked 1o prime, and are repayable over varying periods, not
exceeding 20 years.
The group's management of and exposure to credit and market sisk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22
7. PRIVATE LABEL CARD RECEIVABLES
Loans and recelvables
Private label card recetvables 8267
Deduct amount to be repaid within one year, included in curren! assets 6717
155,0
Private label card receivables comprise a number of individual unsecured
revolving card accounts, which attract interest at variable rates as per the
National Credit Act,
The effective interest rate on these receivables for the year under review is 35,.3%
(2007: 34,2%).
The amounts are repayable over periods not exceeding two years.
There is a cession over these receivables in favour of The Standard Bank of
South Africa Limited (SBSA) and Foschini Retail Group (Proprietary) Limited jointly
in relation to their respective funding, Refer note 18,
The group’s management of ant exposure to credit and market risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.
8. LOAN RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables
Loan receivables 866,95
Beduct amount to be repaid within one yaar, included in current assets 160,2
706.3

Loan receivables comprise a number of individual unsecured loans. The toans bear interest al fixed rates determined on the
initial advance of the loan based on the risk profile of the customer. The effective rate of injerest earned during the year under
review is 36,7% (2007 36,3%). These foans are repayable over periods not exceeding five years,

There is a cession over these receivables in favour of The Standard Bank of South Alrica Limited {SBSA) and Foschini Retzil
Group (Proprieiary) Limited joinily in relation to their respective funding. Refer rote 18,

The group’s management of and exposure to credit and markel risk is disclosed in notes 21 and 22.
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2008

9.  PARTICIPATION IN EXPORY PARTNERSHIPS
Loans and receivables
Certain subsidiary companies participated in various export parinerships, whose
business was the purchase and export sale of containers. The partnerships bought
and sold the containers in terms of long-term suspensive purchase and credit sale
agreements respectively, with repayment terms usually over a 10- 10 15-year period
Deduct amount to be repald within one year, included In current assets

The group’s management of and exposure to credit and market risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.

10. DEFERRED TAXATION

Balance at 1 April

Prior year overprovision

Rate change

Current year movement in lemporary differences
Secondary t2x on companies
Gperating leases
Working capital allowances
Capital allowances
Restraint of trade payments
Export partnerships (refer note 9)

At 31 March

Arising as a result of:

Deferred tax assels
Secondary tax on companies
Operating leases
Working capital allowances
Capial allowances
Restraint of frade payments
Trademarks

Deferred taxation asset

Deferred tax liabllity
Capita! allowances
Working capital alfowances
Export partnerships (refer nots 9)

Deferred taxation liability

Total deferred taxation

2007
Rm

11,1
76

1035

6.0
44
71

32,9

33
35,3
139.3
28
44

179.7

29.3)
(17.5)

(146,8)
329

In the event that the total available distributabte reserves of R4 573,7 (2007: R4 006,8) million were declared as a dividend

to shareholders, tha related secondary tax on companles would amount to R415,8 (2007: R445,2) million.
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1.

12.

13.

2008 2007
fm
INVENTORY
Merchandise 11948
Raw materials 44,4
Goods in transit 343
Shopfitting stock 18.1
Consumabies 1.3
12929
Inventory writedowns intluded above 64,2
TRADE RECEIVABLES — RETAIL
Loans and receivables
6-month revalving credit 13701
12-month extended credit §65,1
22352
The effective rate of interest earned on the above receivables during the year
undler review is 15,3% (2007: 12,8%).
The group’s management of and exposure to credit and market risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.
CASH
Bank balances 69,1
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2008 2007
Rm Rm

14. SHARE CAPITAL

141

14.2

14.3

144

Authorised
200 000 {2007: 200 000) 6,5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each
600 000 000 (2007 600 000G 000} ordinary shares of 1,25 cents each

Number of shares

2008 2007

Issued

Ordinary share capital

Ordinary shares of 1,25 cents each

Total in issue — company and group PEOEUERERN 240 408 241 30
Shares held by subsidiary (24 045 824) BALE:TLE: 734

Shares held by share incentive trust (11 883 952) IARNTR:TA)]

pLUELERESN 240 498 241
PCEGE T 211 952 537
Preference share capital

200 000 (2007 200 000) 6,5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each

Balance al the end of the year — company
Balance at the end of the year - group

Total issued share capital - company

Total net issued share capital — group

Dividends

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dividends as declared from time fo time and are entitled to ene
vote per share at meetings of the company, Holders of the cumulative preference shares receive a cumulative dividend
of 6,5 cents per share at interim (September) and year-end (March) of each year.

Unissued

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act No. 61 of 1973, and limited to the issuing of shares in terms of the
company's obligations under the staff share incestive schemes, the unissued ordinary shares are under the control of
the directors only untit the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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14. SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED
14.5 Directors' interast
At 31 March 2008, the directors had the following interests in the company’s issued shares:

Options Price per 2007
Shares exarcised share Year of Total
000 000's R delivery 000's

Non-executive
E Osrin (Deneficial) 105,0 - - - 100,0
D M Nurek (non-beneficial) 10,0 - - - 10,0
F Abrahams - - - - -
S E Abrahams - - - - -
L F Bergman* - - - - -
WV Cuba - - - - -
N H Goodwin (beneficial) 270 - - - 270 270
142,0 - 1420 1370
M Lewis (beneficial) 2221 - - - 2221 2221
M Lewis (non-beneficial) 14 932,6 - - - 14 932,6 14 055,6
15154,7 - 151547 4 2777
0 M Polak {beneficial)** 22738 - - - 22738 1188,0
0 M Polak (non-beneficial) 2120 - - - 212,0 2120
0 M Polak - - 6,35 2008 479,2
D M Polak - - 16.60 2008 2833
0 M Polak - - i8.80 2008 200,0
0 M Polak - - 8,70 2008 3025
D M Polak - - 16,60 2008 283,3
D M Polak - - 18.80 2008 200,0
D M Polak - 2006 36,00 2009 2000 200,0
D M Polak - 150,06 60,95 2009 1500 150,0
D M Palak - 2000 36.00 2011 200,0 2000
D M Polak - 150,0 60.95 201 150.0 150,0
D M Polak - 150,0 60,95 2013 150,0 150,0
24858 850,06 33358 39983
Total non-executive 17782, 8500 166325 EREEIKK]
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Options Price per
Shares exercised share Year of
000's 000's A delivery
14, SHARE CAPITAL COKTINUED
14.5 Directors' Interest continued
Executive
A D Murray (beneficial# 10358 - - -
A D Murray (non-beneficia) 1376 - - -
A D Murray - - 18,80 2008
A D Murray - - 16,60 2008
A D Murray - 2000 8,70 2009
A D Murray - 1333 60,95 2009
A D Murray - 1167 36,00 2009
A D Murray - 1233 18,80 2010
A O Murray - 166,7 16,60 2010
A D Murray - 833 60,55 2010
A D Mumray - 1333 60,95 2m
A D Mumay - 116,7 36,00 2011
A D Murray - 833 60,55 22
A D Murray - 1333 60,95 2013
A D Murray - 833 60,55 2014
11734 13732
R Stein (beneficial) 600,8 - - -
R Stein {non-beneficial) 2757 - - -
R Stein - - 18,80 2008
A Steln - - 16,60 2008
R Stein - - 6,35 2008
R Stein - 0.0 36,00 2009
R Stein - 143.3 970 2009
R Stein - 76.7 60,95 2009
R Stein - 93,3 18,80 2010
R Stein - 116,7 16,60 2010
R Stein - 90,0 36,00 20m
R Stein - 76,7 60,95 201
R Stein - 76,7 60,95 2013
876,59 763.4
Tolal exacutive 2048,9 21366
Total 198324 29866

* L F Bergman resigned as a ron-executive director of the group with effect trom 14 Apal 2008.
** DM Polak retired on 31 December 2007 but continues 10 serve a5 a non-exscutive disctr from this date.
# A D Murray was appoinied a3 an executive director on 2 April 2007 and as group CEO on ¥ January 2008,

2008 2007
Total Total
o0’s 000's

7978
137.6
1233
166,7
200,0
1333
116,7
1233
166,7

83.3
1333
16,7

833
1333

833

25986

427.8
275,7
93.3
116,7
197.8
90.0 90,0
1433 143.3
78,7 76,7
93,3 93,3
118,7 16,7
90,0 90,0
76,7 76,7
76,7 76,7

16399 18747
4186,5 44733
rrRALK 22 886,3

No changes have been acvised since 31 March 2008 other than the resignation of L F Bergman.
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15. TREASURY SHARES

In terms of a special resolution passed af the annual generat meeting of the company on 5 September 2007 shareholders
renewed the approvel, as & general authority, of the acquisilion by the company or any of its subsidiaries, of the issued ordinary
shares of the company, nol exceeding 20% in aggregate in any one financial year. The general autherily is subject to the
Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited and the Companies Act No. 61 of 1973 of South Africa as amended, and is valid

only until the company’s next annual general meeting.

Number of shares
2008 2007

Foschini Stores (Proprietary) Limited
The Foschini Share Incentive Trust

16 B77 827 16 877 827
11 667 877 11 049 675

Balance at the beginning of the year

28545704 27 927 502

Foschini Stores {Proprietary) Limited
The Foschlni Share Incentive Trust

7171997 -
5 307 620 5270714

Shares purchased during the year

12 479 617 5270714

The Foschini Share Incentiva Trust

(5091 543) (4652512

Shares delivered during the year

(5001 545) [CRAAP:)

Foschini Stores (Proprietary) Limited
The Feschini Share Incentive Trust

24 049 824 16 877 827
11883 952 11 667 877

Balance at the end of the year

35933776 28 545 704

As at 31 March 2008 a subsidiary, Foschini Stores (Proprietary) Limited, held 24 049 824 (2007: 16 877 827) shares,
representing 10,0% (2007: 7,0%) of the company’s share capital. The Foschini Share incentive Trust held 11 883 952
{(2007: 11 667 877) shares, representing 4,9% {2007: 4,9%) of the company's share capital.
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16. RESERVES
16.1 Dividend reserve
A llabillty for cash dividends and the related secondary taxation an companies (STC) charge is recognised in the period
when the dividend is dectared. An amgunt equal to dividends declared subsequent o the balance sheet date is

transterred to the dividend reserve.

A final dividend of 170,0 {2007; 170,0) cents per ordinary share was declared on 29 May 2008 payable on 14 July 2008,
This will give rise to STC of R33,7 millian {net of relevant STC credits).

No Giability has been raised, as this dividend was declared subsequent to the balance shee! date.

2008 2007

Am fim

Balance at 1 April 4088 336.6
Transter from dividend reserve to distributable earnings {408,8) {336,6)

Transfer to dividend reserve from distributable earnings 408,8 408,8

Batance at 31 March 408,8 4088

16.2 Hedgirg reserve (deficit)
The hedging reserve (deficit)y comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of cash {low hedging instruments
related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred,

Bafance at 1 April {1,6)
Unreglised gain on hedging instruments 13
Batance at 31 March (0.3}
16.3 Share-based paymenis reserve

This comprises the cumufative fair value of options granted to employees

after 7 November 2002.

Balance at 1 April 41,7
Share-hased payment reserve movement 19,2
Balange at 3t March 60,9

164 Insurance cell reserves
As the insurance cells are defined as shart-term insurers, they are required
in terms of the provisions of the Short-Term Insurance Act No. 53 of 1938
.10 maintain a contingency reserve for adverse claims development. This
reserve is calcutated at a minimum o 10% of net witten premium as
defined in the legislation,

No distribution of this reserve can be made without the prior approval ol
the Registrar of Short-Term Insurance,

Batance at 1 April
Transfer to reserves

Batance at 31 March
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17.

18.

19.

20.

MINORITY iNTEREST

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited (SBSA) increased its shareholding in the RCS Group from 35% to 45% during the

current financial year.

RCS Investment Hotdings (Proprietary} Limited issued new shares during the year which resulted in 2 dilution in shareholding
of 10% (refer note 35.5), thus taking SBSA's total shareholding to 45% at 31 March 2008, with the remaining 55% being

held by the group.

2008 2007
Rm Rm

INTEREST-BEARING DEBT

Non-current

Unsecured fluctuating loans in terms of long-term bank facilities at prevailing
Interest rates

10146

Current

59

Included in interest-bearing debt is an amount of R495,2 (2007: R389,7) millicn
advanced by The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited (SBSA) to RCS Investment
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (RCSIH) and its subsidiaries in terms of a funding
agreement between the parlies. This funding agreement is not subject to any
guarantee or security from Foschini Limited or any of its subsidiaries except RCSIH
and accordingly can only be repaid out of the cash flows of RCSH and its
subsidiaries. Refer notes 7 and 8.

The group’s borrowing powers in terms of the articles of association of the
company are unlimited.

The group's management of and exposure 1o market angd cash flow and liquidity
risk is disclosed in rotes 21 and 22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other liabilities

VAT payable

Other payables and acgruals

828,2

36
3399

1171,7

The group’s management of and exposure to market and cash fiow and liquidity
risk is disclosed in notes 21 and 22.

POST-RETIREMENT DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Post-retirement medical aid

Balance at 1 Aprif

Accruals made during the year

80,1
40

Balance at 31 March

841

Further details in respect of post-retirement medical aid benefits are included in note 32.5.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

211

212

Overview

The group has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

* Credit risk;

» cash flow and liquidity risk: and

* market risk.

This nole presents information aboul the group’s expasure to each of the above risks and the group's objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing sisk. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
these consolidated financial statements.

The board of directors has gverall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group's risk management
Iramework. The board has established the risk committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
rovp's risk managemen! policles. The committee reports quarterly to the board of directors on its aclivities.

The group’s risk management palicies are established to identity and analyse the risks faced by the group, o set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence lo limits. Risk management policies and
syslems are reviewed regularty to reflect changes in market conditions and the group's activilies. The grou, through
its tralning and management standards and procedures, aims 10 develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all empioyees understand thelr roles and obligations.

The group audil commitiee gversees how managernent monitors compliance with the group's risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the group. The group audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by intemat audit. internal audit undertakes
both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the resulis of which are reported to
the audil commiitee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group If a customer or counterparty to a tinancial instrument fails to meet
fts contractual obligations and asises on trade receivables — retail, cash equivalents, investments, participation in
export parinerships, staff nousing foans, loan recefvables and private fabef card receivables,

Trade receivables ~ retail
The gioup’s exposure 1o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, Therg is no
concentration of credil risk.

The risk arising on trade receivables — retail is managed through a stringent group policy on the granting, continual
review and monitoring of credit sates, The group has established a credit policy ungder which each new customer is
analysed individually for creditworthiness before payment terms and conditions are offered. A credit facility is
established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the risk
management commitiee; ihese limits are reviewed annually.

The group does not require collateral In respect of trade and other receivables.

The group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade
and other receivables, The allowance is calculated using the internationally-recognised Markov model. The Markov
model uses delinquency roll rates on customer balances to determine the inheren! bad debt in a deblors’ book.
The board of directors believe that the application of the Markov model resulls in trade receivables balances being
measured fairly,
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21, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

212

213

214

Credit risk continued

Cash equivalents and investments

The group dimits iis exposure to credit risk through dealing with well-established financia! institutions with high credit
standing, and thus management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. The group does not
consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk in respect of which adequate impairment has not been
raised.

Participation in export partnerships

A company listed on the JSE Limited has warranted certain important cash flow aspects of the subsidiary companies’
participation in export partnerships. The group does not consider there to be any significant conceniration ot credit
risk in respect of which adequate impairmen! has not been raised.

Staff housing loans, loan receivables and private label card receivables

The group limits its exposure to credit risk through a Stringent group policy on the granting, continual review and
monitoring of loan advances. The group does not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of which adequate Impairment has not been raised.

Cash flow and liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able 1o meel its financial obligations as they fall due. The group's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sutficient cash liow to meet its IEabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group's
reputation.

This risk is managed through cash flow forecasts, the optimisation of daily cash management and by ensuring that
adequate borrowing facilities are maintained. In terms of the anticles of assoctation, the group's borrowing powers are
unlimited.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the group’s income or the value of its holdings of financiat instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and contral marke! risk exposures within acceptable parameters. whilst optimising the
return.

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign eéxchange and interest rate risks
arising from pperational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its reasury policy, the group does not
hold or {ssue derivative financial instruments for trading purpeses.

Currency risk
The group is exposed to currency risk as operating subsidiaries undertake transactions that are denominated in foreign
currencies. These currencies are the euro, US Dollars (USD) and Stering (GBP).

At any point In time it is the group’s intention to hedge all its estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of forecast
purchases over the following six months. The group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its cumrency risk, most
with a malurity of less than one year from the reparting date. When necessary, forward exchange contracts are rolled
over at maturity.

Refer to note 22.3 for further details.

Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to interest rate risk as il both borrows and invests funds. This risk is managed by maintaining
an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate instruments with reputable financial institutions.

In addition, the RCS Group eniers into interest rale swap contracts for the purposes of cash tlow hedging since the
{oan receivables largely bear inlerest at fixed rates whilst borrowings bear interest at variable rates.

Foschinl Group Annual Aeport 2008 « 145




notes to the financial statements continued
for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
21.5 Capital management
The group primarily makes use of equity for capilal
management purpeses.

The board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base
s0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence, and to sustzin future development of
business. The board of directors monitors the return on
equity, which the group defings as profit for the year
divided by ftotal average equity, inctuding minority
interests. The board of directors also momitors the level
of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The hoard seeks to mainlain a balance between the
higher returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the adventages and security
atforded by a sound capital position. The group's
medium-term target s 10 achieve a return on equity of
35%, in 2008 the retumn was 29,6% (2007: 32,5%).

From time to time the group purchasas ils own shares
on the market. The shares are primarily intended to be
used to meet the group's obligations in terms of its
share option schemes (refer note 32).

There were no changes in the group’s approach 1o
capital management during the year,

Neither the company nor any of its subsldiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital reguirements
except for the subsidiaries of RCS Investment
Holdings (Proprigtary) Limited who in terms of the
shareholders’ agreemem with SBSA cannot lend in
excess of 70% of their combined trade receivables
vatue. This requirement has been med for the year
under review.
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22, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

221

Credit risk
Exposure

The maximum expesure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the batance

sheet.

The maximum exposure W credit risk al the reporting date was:

Carrying amount
2008 2007
Rm Rm

Held-to-maturity investments
Preference share investment
Loans and receivables
Staft housing loans
Private tatel card receivables
Loan receivables
Participation in expoft partnerships
Trade receivables - retail
Other receivables and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest rate swaps used for hedging
Assets
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
Assets
Liabifities

200,0 200,0

1.3 29
10683 8267
716,2 866.5
100,5 11,1
24148 22352
150,0 186,9
634 69,1

1.8 -

0.3

44881

The group believes that there Is no significant concentration of credi risk.

Impairment losses

The group manages the ageing of its trade recelvables — retail book on
both a contractual and recency basis, but uses the recency basis 1o
calculate writeotf and impairmant losses. Recency refers to the number of
payment cycles that have clapsed since the last qualitying payment was
received.

Recency categories range from 0 to 5, at which peint the account will be
charged off, unless the payment profile score is above a fixed level.

The ageing of past due unimpaired trade receivables — retail at 31 March
was:

Recency 1
Recency 2
Recency 3
Recency 4
Recency 5

346,3
107,9
45,7
15,0
2.2

5171

Foaschini Group Annual Report 2008 » 147



notes to the financial statements continued

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
22.1  Credit risk continued
Impairment losses continued

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade
receivables — retail during the year was as follows:

Carrying amount
2008 2007
Rm Rm

Balance at 1 April 1658

fmpairment raised 2168

Impairment loss recognised (187.8)

Balance at 31 March 1948

During the year the group renegotiated the terms of customers to the value

of R131,0 (2007: R51,4) million. No impairment in respect of these

customers was recognised (2007: Rnil).

The group manages the ageing of its tpan recelvables and private label

card receivables on a contractual basis.

The ageing of past dus unimpaired ioan receivables al 31 March was:

Past due 0 - 30 days 34,8

Past due 31 - B0 days 12,4

Past due 61 - 90 days 6.0

Past due more than 91 days 106

63,8

The movement in the allowance for impaimment in respect of foan

receivables during the year was as follows:

Bafance at 1 April 54,6

Impairment ralsed 85.4

Impairmest loss recognised 87.7

Balance at 31 March 82,3

No loan receivables have been renegotiated during the year (2007: Rnil).

The ageing of past due unimpaired private labef card receivables at

31 March was:

Past due 0 - 30 days 164,9

Past due 31 - 60 days 63,3

Past due 61 - 90 days 285

Past dus more than 91 days 6.3
263.0

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of private label

card receivables during the year was as follows:

Balance at 1 April 55,6

tmpairment ralsed 82,8

tmpairment loss recognised B84.7)

Balance at 31 March 73,7

Included in the camying amount of private label card receivables is R73.5 (2007: Rnil) million relating to receivables
whose terms have been renegotiated, which would otherwise have been past due,

Customers that are not past due and have a good track record with the group make up 74,9% of the trade receivables
— retail book (2007: 75,0%], 84,5% of loan receivables (2007: 83,6%) and 57,6% of the private label card receivables
(2007: 65,7%).
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22, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
22.2  Cash flow and liquidity risk
The tollowing are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Carrying Less than More than
amount  Cash flows 1year 1 -5years 5 years
31 March 2008
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Inlerest-bearing debt 1762,3 17623
Trade and other payables 7418 FLAR]
25041 2 5041
31 March 2007
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing debt 10205 10205 59 10146 -
Trade ang other payables 1177 Vin? 11717 - -

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest rate swaps used for hedging
Forward exchange cantracts used for
hedging 03 1851 1851 - -

2192,5 230 13584 10126

6.3) 4.3 2.0} -

The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges
are expected to occur and impact profit or toss:

31 March 2003
Interest rate swaps
Assets 2,0 1,9
Forward exchange centracts
Assels {134,9) (134,9)
{132,9} (133.0)
31 March 2007
Interest rata swaps
Assets - 6,3 43 2.0 -
Forward exchange contracts
Liabiities (0.3) {185,1) (185,1) - -

0.3 {178,8} {180.8) 0 -
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUUMENTS CONTINUED
223 Cumency risk
Exposure to currency risk
Expasure to currency risk is hedged through the use of forward exchange contracts. At 31 March the group had
forward exchange contracts in various currencies in respect of future commitments, which da not relate to specific
bafance sheet items. These amounted 10:

Rand
equivalent
Foraign {at forward
curfgncy cover rate)
000's R'000
31 March 2008
UsD 131 467
euro 2 350
GBP 1068
134 885
31 March 2007
uso 24 611 181 396
euro 190 1850
GBP 130 1856
185 102
The following signilicant exchange rales applied during the year:
Averaga rate 3t March spot rate
2008 2007 2008 2007
usp
eurg
GBP
Sensitivity analysis

The group is primarily exposed to the US Dollar, euro and British Pound currencies. The follewing analysls indicates
the group’s sensitivity at year-end to the indicatad movemenis In these currencies on financial instruments, assuming
thal all other variables, in particular inteest rates, remain constani. The rates of sensitivity are the rales used when
reporting the currency risk (o the board and represents management’s assessmenl of the potential change in foreign
currency exchange rates at the reporting date.

A 10% strengthening of the Rand against the following currencies al 31 March would have increased (decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below,

Equily Profit or loss

Rm Rm
31 March 2008
uso
eurp
GBP
31 March 2007
uso 174 -
eUro 0.1 -
GBP 0.1 -

A 10% weakening of the Rand against the above currencies at 31 March would have had he equal bul opposite effect
on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other varlables remain constant.
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22, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

224

Interest rate risk
Profite
At 31 March the interest rate profile of the group's interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying amount
2008 2007
Rm Rm

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assels 716,2 866.5
Financial lizhiliies )] -

616,2 866.5

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 35479 31339
Financial fiabilities (1662.3) (¥ 020,9)

16856 21134

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The group does not account for any tixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profl or loss, and
the group does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge
accounting model. Therelore a change in interest rates at 31 March would not affect profit or loss.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates at 31 March would have increased (decreased) equity and profil of
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particuar foreign currency rates,
remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2007,

Profit or loss Equity
fim Am

31 March 2008
Variable rate instruments
Interest rate swaps

Cash flow sensitivity {net)

31 March 2007

Variable rate instruments 84,7 -
Interest rate swaps 48 75
Cash flow sensitivity (het) 99,3 7.9

22.5

A decrease of 10 basis points in interest rates at 31 March would have had the equal but opposite effect on equity
and profit ar loss on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Fair vatues
Fair values versus carmrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximate thelr carrying values in the balance sheet.
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23.

2.

25.

26.

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENT

No significant events took place between the end of the financial year under review and the dale of signature of these financiat

statements.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Authorised capital commitments

Contingent liabilities

There are no known contingent liabllities requlrng disclosure.

Forward exthange commitments
Refer to note 22.3.

REVENUE

Retail tumaover

Interest recelved (refer nole 26)
Dividends received — retail

Merchants’ commission — RCS Group
Club income — retail

Club income — RCS Group

Customer charges income — retail
Customer charges income - RCS Group
Insurance income ~ retail

Insurance income — RCS Group

Cellular income — one2one airtime product
Sundry incoma — retail

INTEREST RECEIVED

Trade receivables — retail
Loan receivables

Private label cand receivables
Sundry — RCS Group

Sundry - retail
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2008
Rm

385.5
3147
3479
1.4
7.2

1 056,94

2007
Rm

72300
B774

228
36.2
159.9
43
16,0
39,7
355
66,9
8.8
30.3

85278

2993
3365
2370
1,0
3.6

877.4
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27.

28.

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE CHARGES

Operating profil before finance charges has been arrived at afier taking account of:

Net trading expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Employee cosls: normal
Employee costs: bonuses
Empioyee cosls: restraint payments
Employee cosls: share-based payments
Store occupancy costs: normal
Store occupancy costs: operating lease liability adjustmant
Net bad debt and provislon movement — retail
Met bad debt and provision movement — RCS Group
QOther operating costs
Other revenue

The following disclosable amounts are included above;
Auditors” remuneration

Audit fees

Fees for other services
(Profity loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Retirement fund expenses
Staff discount
Net foreign exchange loss

INTEREST PAID
Interest expense on financial kabilites measured at amortised cost

2007

Rm
{204.7) {174,1)
{10539 {9209
- 4.4
{35,4) {20.0)
(30,7 (19,2
{575,8) (512,7}
7.7 .7
(217.2} (1878}
(253.7) {132,4}
{489,8) (466.5)
5113 3976
(2 357.6) {2 048,1}
238

A

A

797

11,4

1.4

104,7
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continued

2007
Rm
29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
South African current taxation
Current year 550,7
Prior year (over) under pravision 6,6
Secondary tax on companies 59,3
Capital gains tax 0.4
South African deferred taxation
Current year (34.4)
Rate change -
Prior year under (over) provision 7.0
Secondary tax on companies 6.6
Non-South Alrican current taxation
Current year 79
Prior year under provision 0.1
Man-South African deferred taxation
Current year 0
5903
%
Reconcifiation of tax rate
Effective {ax rate 34
Exempt income 0.4
Non-deductible expenditure {0.7)
Non-South Alfrican tax rate {0.1}
Prior year under provision -
Rate change -
Secondary tax on companies and withholding tax on dividends 3.9
South African statutory rate 290
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

30.1

30.2

Basic and headline eamings per share

The calcutation of baslc and headline eamings per share at 31 March 2008
was based on profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of
Foschini Limited and headline eamings of A1 128.4 (2007 R1 119,2} million
divided by the weighted average number of rdinary shares as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders of Foschini Limited

Headline earnings

2008 2007
Rm

11284 11192
11284 11192

Weighied average aumber of ocdinary shares in issue

Earnings per ordinary share {cents)

206 282 464 209 493 784
5470 5342

Headline earnings per ordinary share {cents)

547.0 5342

Dituted earnings and headline earnings per share

The calculation of dilited eamings and headling eamings per share at
31 March 2008 was based on profit {or the year atribwtable to ordinary
shareholders of Foschini Limited and headline eamings of R1 128,4 {2007:
R1 119.2) million divided by the fully dituted weighted average number of
ordinary shares as lollows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares as above
Number of shares that would have been issued for no consideration

Plua v 209 493 784
3451483 78895952

Weighled average number of ordinary shares used for dilution

209 733 957 217 389 736

Dituted eamings per share (cents)

5380 5148

Difuted headline earnings per share (cenis)

5380 5148

31. OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATION
The group leases most of its trading premises under operating leases.

Leases on trading premises are contracied for periods of between five and ten
years, with renewa! aplions for a further five years, wherever possible. The lease
agreements for certaln stores provide for a minimum annual rental payment and
additiona) payments determined an the basis of tumaver. Turnover rentals, where
applicable, average approximately 4,5% of tumover. Rental escalations vary, but
average al a rate of approximately 8% per annum.

At 31 March, future non-cancellable minimum lease rentals are as loflows:

Less than 1 year
More than 1 year and less than 5 years
More than 5 years

5341
12538
2552
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

21

Share incentive schemes
Certain employees of the group participate In lts share incentive schemes.

The scheme rules of the 1930 and 1997 schemes provide thal delivery and payment for the shares take place in three
equal iranches on the second, fourth and sixth anniversary of the date on which the options were exercised.

The scheme rules of the 2007 scheme provide that, upon futfitment of certain performance conditions, the share

appreclation rights (SARs) may ba converied from the third anniversary of the grant date.

The fair value of options granted and exercised after 7 November 2002 was determined using a binomial option-

pricing model. The assumptions used in determining the fair value are as follows:

2008

Options granted and exercised during the financial year
ending 31 March

Exercise price R38,30 to R70,63
Expected wolatility 26,7% to 31,1%
Expected dividend yield 3.4% 10 7,2%
Risk-free interast rate 8.1% 10 9,5%

2007

R43,59 to R63,01
29,0% t0 32,9%
3.6% to 3,9%
7.3% 10 8,6%

The group recognised tolal expenses of R30,7 (2007: R19,2) million related to these equity-setiled share-based

payrnent transactions during the year.
Details of the share oplions outstanding at the end of the year are set out below.

Number of share oplions

Foschini Staff Share Incentive Scheme (1990)
Options granted, but not exercised at 1 April
Options exercised during the year

Options granted, but not exercised at 31 March

Foschini 1997 Share Option Scheme
Options exercised, subject 10 future detivery, at 1 April 16 840 174
Options exercised during the year, subject to future delivery 325000
Optlons forfeited during the year {1519 351)
Options delivered during the year (5 091 545)

Options exercised, subject to future delivery, at 31 March 10 554 278
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4 861 676
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTINUED

321

Share incentive schemes continued

Foschini 2007 Share Incentive Scheme
SARs granted, subject to fulfilment of conditions, at 1 April
SARs granted during the year, subject to fulfilment of conditions

SARs granted, sublect o fulfilment of conditions, at 31 March

Options in terms of the 1997 scheme will be delvered during the
Tollowing financial years:

Year Average price
2009 37,66
2010 2017
201 47,40
2012 49,46
2013 60,01
2M4 58,47

SARs in terms of the 2007 scheme may be converted from the
2011 financiat year.

These schemes are agministered by The foschini Share incenlive
Trust which holds shares in Foschind Limited as {ollows:

Shares hetd at the baginning of the year
Options exercised during the year
Shares delivered during the year
Shares purchased during the year

Shares held at the end of the year

tumber of share options

2008

4077 500
4 077 500

4744 429
1696 703
2973048

210 002

1221 760
108 336

10 554 278

11667 877

(5091 545)
5 307 620

11 883 952

2007

11049 675
{19 009)

{4 633 503)
5270714

11 667 877
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32, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTINUED

J2.2

323

Staff housing loans
Refer note 6.

Retirement funds

Foschini Group Retirement Fund: Defined contribution plan

The Foschini Group Retirement Fund, which is governad by the provisions of the Pension Funds Act No. 24 of 1956,
is a defined centribution plan. It provides comprehensive retirement and associated benefits for members and their
dependants.

Al permanent employees of wholly-owned subsidiaries of Foschini Limited, exctuding those that are members of the
Namilex or Swaziland Funds, are members of the retirement fund.

An actuarial valuation of the fund was performed as at 31 December 20086, in which the valuator reported that the
fund was in a sound financial position.

The actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2009 is due to be performed during the 2011 financial year.

Investment Solutions Pension Fund: Defined conttibution plan
All employees above an annually determined pansionable salary threshold pay 7,5% of their above-threshold earnings
as contributions into this fund, which is an umbretla retirement funding arrangement,

Investment Solutions Provident Fund: Defined contribution plan
All employees above an annually determined pensionable salary threshold are required to be members of this fund.
The employer contributes 1,5% of employee’s eamings to this fund.

Liberty Life Provident Fund: Defined contribution plan
Employees of RCS tnwestment Holdings {Proprietary} Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, are not members of The
Faschini Group Retirement Fund, but receive comparable benefits from the Liberty Life Provident Fund.

Namflex Pension Fund: Defined contribution plan

All permanent employees in Namibla under normal retirement age are required lo be members of the Namilex Pension
Fund. This fund is a money purchase arrangement whereby the members pay 7,5% of their pensionable salary as
contributions towards retlrement benefits.

Swaziland Provident Fund: Defined contribution plan
All permanent employees in Swaziland under normal retirement age are required to be members of the Swaziland
Provident Fund, whereby members pay 7,5% of thelr pensionable salary as confributions fo this fund.

The employers and the members make equivalent contributions in respect of retirement benefits. in addition, the
employers cover death and disability benefits, reinsurance, and agminisiration and management costs.

Number of members Contributions

2008 2007 2008 2007
Summary per fund: Rm Rm
The Foschini Group Retirement Fung 9492 69,7
Namilex Pension Fund 208 12
Swaziland Pension Fund 10 -
Liberty Life Provident Fund 275 45
Investment Solutions Pension Fund 124 3
Investment Solutions Provident Fund 126 1.2

1023 791
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTINUED
324 Medica! aid

325

326

The Foschini Group Medical Aid Scheme: Defined bengfit plan

The company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries operate a defined benefit medical aid scheme for the benefit of their
permanent employees (excluding these employed in Namibia and Botswana). Membership of the scheme is voluntary,
except for senior employees.

Total membership currently stands at 2 277 principal members.

These costs are charged against incoeme as incurred and amounted to R20,1 (2007: R18,2) million, with employees
contributing a further R20,1 miltion to the fund.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2007, the schems earned contributions of R39,5 million and reflected a
ned surplus of R1,0 million after the deduction of all expenses. The fund had net assets totalling R40,4 million.

The projected surplys in respect of the year ending 31 December 2008 is RG,1 million.

Bankmed Medlca! Ald Scheme: Defined benefit plan
Permanen) employees in Namibia are woluntasy members of the Bankmed Medical Aid Scheme.

These costs are charged against [ncome as incurred and amounted to RO,5 {2007: RO,5) million, with employees
contributing a further RO,5 million to the fund. There are currently 65 members of this fund.

Ingwe Heatth Plan: Defined benefit plan

An external medical aid scheme, Ingwe Health Plan, is also available to group employees and is subsidised by the
group in the same way as the schemes mentioned above. The plans offered cater for fower income eamers, and
303 empioyees are currenlly members. Costs chasged to income toial R1,8 million.

Discovery Health: Defined benefit plan
All permanent staff of RCS Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, a non-whofty-owned subsidiary are required 10
become members of their choice of the medical pians offered by Discovery Heaith.

These costs are charged against income as incurred and amounted to R2,3 million. Total membership currently stands
at 269 principal members,

Post-retirement medical aid
Qualitying retired employees are entitied to medical aid benefits, which have been fully provided for (refer note 20).

The cost of providing post-retirement medical aid has been determined in accordance with {AS 19 and the charge
against income for the year was Rnil (2007: R4,0) million.

The principal assumptions at ihe last valuation date, being 31 Masch 2008, were as follows:

Net discount rate 2%
Withdrawal rates 0% - 24%
Normal retirement age 60 — 65 years
Other

Group employees and pensioners are entitled to a discount on purchases made at stores within the group.

Foschini Group Annual Repont 2008 » 159




notes to the finoncial statements continued
for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

33. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Remuner- Pension Teave) Other 2008 2007
Fees ation fund  allowance  benefits® Total Total
R'000 R'CO0 R'000 A'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Non-executive

E Qssin 7575 - - - - 751.5

D M Nurek 296.9 - - - - 296.9

F Abrahams 2100 - - - - 210,0

S E Abrahams 246,2 - - - - 246,2

L F Bergman 1525 - - - - 152,5

WV Cuba 152,5 - - - - 152,5

N H Goodwin 188.8 - - - - 188,8

M Lewis 150,0 - - - - 150,0

D M Polak** - - - - - -

Total 21544 - - - - 21544

Executive

A D Murray# - 25075 2410 213 6156,2 91220

R Stein - 16493 176,8 2173 4076,5 61199

D M Polak ** - 25275 236,2 2126 838 3 060.1

Total - 66084,3 654,0 6472 103165 PRI

Total remuneration 2008 2 154.4 6684.3 654,0 6472 103165 RRUELLE
Non-executive

E Osrin 7125 - - - - 7125
D M Nurek 236.3 - - - - 236.3
F Abrahams V78,7 - - - - 178,7
S E Abrahams 2012 - - - - 2m.2
L F Bergman 135.0 - - - - 1350
WV Cuba 135,0 - - - - 1350
N H Goodwin 1588 - - - - 158,8
M Lewis 130.0 - - - - 1300
Totai 18875 - - - - 18875
Executive

D M Polak™ - 3nns 286,0 269.9 1843 38510
R Stain - 15196 1581 2069 97,8 10824
Total - 46304 4441 4768 2821 58334
Total remuneration 2007 1887.5 46304 4441 476.8 2821 77209

* (ther benefits include medical akd 2nd group liie cover, as well as restraint payments covering a four-year tenm of 86,0 (2007: Rnil) mifiion o
A D Murray and R4,0 (2007: Ry million to R Stein.

=* D M Polak retired on 31 December 2007, bul conlinues to Serve as a non-execttive direclor from this data.

# A D Murray was appointed as an execulive direcior on 2 April 2007 and as Group CEO on 1 January 2008,

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 2, the fakr value of share options granted to employees is expensed in the
income statement over the term of the option. An amount of R3,7 {2067: R2,1) milllen, R1,9 (2007: R1,1) million and
R2.7 (2007: R2,5) million was recognised in respect of options granted 10 Massrs A D Murray, R Steln and D M Polak
respeclively. These amounts are not included in the amounts reflacted above.

1560 » Foschini Group Annual Regort 2008




notes to the financial statements continued
for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Shareholders
An analysis of the principal shareholders of the company is provided in the Shareholdings section of the annua! report.

For details of directors’ interests refer to note 14.5.

Subsidiaries
During the year, in the ordinary course of business, certain companles within the group entered into asm's length transactions.
These Intra-group transactions have been efiminated on consolidation.

Other related parties
The Foschini Group Retirement Fund
The Foschini Group Retirement Fund is administered by Foschini Retail Group (Proprietary) Limited, a subsidiary ot Feschini Limited.

2008 2007
Rm Rm

1.3

Administration fee earned from The Foschini Group Retirement Fund

An executive director of Foschini Limited {Mr R Stein) is also a trustee of the
Foschini Group Retirement Fund.

Directors

Remuneration

Details relating to executive and non-execulive directors’ remuneration are
disclosed in note 33,

Interest of directors in contracts
No directors have any interasts in contracts.
Exacutiva directors are bound by service contracts.

Loans lo directors
No loans have been made fo directors.

Employees
Details retating to the share Incentive schemes are disclosed in note 32.1.

Key management personnet

Key management personnel are those having authorlty and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling activities, directly or Indirectly, inchuding any
director of that enlity. Executive directors and associates of all subsidiary companies
and Foschini Limited have been classilied as key management personnel.

No key management personngl had a material interest in any confract of
significance with any group company during the year under review.

Remuneration paid 1o key managerment parsonnel is as follows:

49,5
5.3
1.4
1.8
4.5

16,9

854

Remuneration

Pension fund

Travel allowance

Other benefits

Performance bonus

Falr value of share options granted”

Total remuneration

* The fair value of options granted is the annual expense determinad in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based payments,
Refer to note 33 for further disclosure regarding remuneration paid to executive dirsclors of the company.
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2007
Rm
35. CASHALOW
35.1  Operating profit before working capital changes
Profit before tax 1786,3 17823
Adjusted for:
Interest receved {1 056,4} (8774}
Interest paid 120,1 104,7
Dividends received {17.2) (22.8)
Income from associate (0,9 -
Depregiation and amortisation 2047 174.1
Share-based payments 30,7 18,2
Operating lease liability 7 7.7
{Profit) loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.8) 0.1
Operating profit before working capiiat changes 1074,2 11879
35.2 Working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in inveniory 29 {176.2)
Increase in trade and other recevables (141,3) {207.6)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables (429.9) 1657
Increase in working capital (568,3} {218.1)
353 Reconciliation of taxation paid
Amount unpaid at the beginning of the year {234,7) (3279}
Current year provision {565,3) 625,00
Amount unpaid at the end of the year 64,9 2347
{735.1) (718.2)
35.4 Reconciliation of dividends paid
Dividends declared curing the year (992,6) (500.6)
Dividends paid by subsidiary to outside shareholders {84,8) (51.6)
{677,4) (552.2)
355 Proceeds on dilution of interest in subsidiary
As part of the agreement eniered Into with The Standard Bank of
South Africa Limited (SBSA) (refer note 17), RCS Investment Holdings
{Proprietary} Limiled tssued further shares, which were acquired by SBSA.
This resutted in a turther difution of 10%.
SBSA’s holding in this subsidiary at 31 March 2008 was 45%.
The cash flow effects of the acquisition by SBSA of this further 10% are
reflected below.
Purchase consideralion 1833
Fair value of net asseis 71,2
Profit on dilution 121
Proceeds an dilution of interest in subsidiary 1833
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36.

3.

RECLASSIFICATION
Cenain comparative figures have been restated in order 1o Improve disctosure. These adjustments have no efect on

comparative eamings.

The effect on the comparative balance sheet is as follows:

2007
Rm
Changes to currant liabilities
Increase in trade and other payables 326
Increase in post-retirement - defined benefit plan 84,1
Decrease in employee benefils accruals {116,7

The increase in trade and other payables is as a result of reclassilying the leave pay and AIDS accruals which were previousty
included with post-retirement medical aid as empioyee benefit accruals.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO BE ADOPTED IN FUTURE YEARS
There are Standards and Interpretations in ssue that are not yel effective. These intlude the following Standards and
Interpretations that are applicable to the group and may have an impact on future financial statements:

IFRS 8 Segmental reporting
This statement, which will be applicable to the group for the year ending 37 March 2010, requires significant additional
disclosures as it exiends the scope of segmental reporting.

|AS 1 Presentalion of financial statements

This statement, which will be applicable to the group for the year ending 31 March 2010, requires changes to the litles of
financial statements and the presentation of all non-owner changes in equity as a separate statement of comprehensive
income. It is not expected to have a maleriat impact on the group.

IFRS 2 Share-based payment

An amendment to the current [FRS 2 has been published which will be applicabla to the group for the year ending
31 March 2010. The amendment was made 1o clarliy the terms “vesting conditions™ and “canceliations®, It is nol expected o
have a material impact on the group.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IAS 27 Consofidated and Separate Fnancial Statements, IAS 28 nvestments in Associates
and IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

A tevised IFRS 3 Business Combinations has been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) with
consequential amendments to IAS 27, IAS 28 and [AS 31, The amengments made relate mainly to the application of the
acquisition method and will be applicable 1o the group for the year ending 31 March 2011.
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Foschini Limited

as at 31 March

BALANCE SHEET
2008 2007
Note Rm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in preference shares 200,0 2000
Interest in subsidiaries Appendix 1 1968,5 18807
Deferred taxation - 33
21685 20840
Current assets
Interest in subsidiaries Appendix 1 5277 B21,6
Other recelvables 51 44
Cash and cash equivalents 03 0.2
5331 8262
Total assets 27016 28102
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 14.2 34 34
Share premium 498.7 4887
Divigend reserve 16.1 408,8 408,8
DCistributable reserve 17283 1564,7
26372 28756
Current liabilitles
Other payables 5.3 171
Taxation payahle £8.9 17,5
64,4 s
Total equity and liabilities 27016 29102
Guarantee: The company has guaranteed the overdratt facilities of subsidiary companies.
The amounts utilised ameunted to 1376,0 710
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Foschini Limited continued

for the years ended 31 March

INCOME STATEMENT

2008 2007

Profit before taxation*
Taxation - cument year

568,3
14,1

Profit atfributable to ordinary shareholders after taxation

4542

* after taking account of:
Dividends received — subsidiary companies
- preference

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

309.7
171

Equity at the beginning of the year
Profit for the year
Dividends paid

2 875,6 3161.9
454,2 290,9
(692,6) {577.2)

Equity at the end of the year

26372 28756

' i
®
[ ]
.
.
*
‘e
.
c"
o
.
.
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fFoschini Limited continued
for the years ended 31 March

APPENDIX 1: SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Issued 2008 2007
share 2008 2007 Indebted-  Indebied-
caplial Cost Cost ness ness
Name of subsidiary Note R Rm Rm Rm Rm
Trading Subsidiaries
Foschini Retail Group (Pty) Limited 237 2
Retall Credit Selutions (Pty} Umited 2 18 200
What U Want To Wear (Pty) Limited 2 66 200
Markhams (Pty) Limited 2 1
Fashion Retailers (Pty) Limited 4 250006
Foschini Finance (Pty) Limited 2 6
Foschinl Stores (Pty) Limited 2.6 1
Feschini Swaziland (Piy) Limited ] 2
Feschinl bvestments (Pty) Limited 2 10

Total trading subsidiaries 102,38 102,8 23932
Other* 11 1.7 {0.9)

Totat 103,9 104,5 23923

2008 2007

Summary

Investment in shares at cost 1039

Amounts owing by subsidiaries - non-current portion 1 864,6

Totat non-current portion 19685

Amounts owing by subsidiaries = current portion 5277

Totat interest in subsidiaries 2 496,2

Notes

1. The company owns, directly of indirectly, all the ordinary shares in the subsiciaries tisted above.

2. Incorporated in South Alrica

3. Included is an amount of R102,5 (2007: R102,5) million representing the fair value of 102 500 R1 preterence shares issued
on 28 February 2002, The directors’ valuation thereof at 31 March 2008 is R102,5 (2007; R102,5) million.

Incorporated in Namibia

Incorporated in Swaziland

The loan to subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and no fixed date for repayment has been determined.

The loan to subsidiary is unsecured, bears interest al rates determined from time to time and no fixed date for repayment has
been determined.

No o

* A schedule of these detalis is available on request.
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Foschini Limited continued
for the years ended 31 March

APPENDIX 2: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

2007
Rm

Loans 1o and from related parties are disclosed in appendi 1.

tnterest was received from the folfowing related party:
Foschini Retail Group (Pty} Limited

56,0

Dividends were recelved from the following related parties:
Retail Credit Solutions {Pty} Limited

Foschini Retail Group {Ply) Limited

Foschini Investments (Pty) Limited

Foschini Finance (P1y) Limited

Markhams {Pty) Limited

Sport Scene (Pty) Limited

Pages Stores (Pty) Limited

Foschini Stores (Ply} Limited

1583
535
8,0
99

05
43
40,5

275,0

Preference dividends were received from the following related party:

Foschini Retall Group (Pty) Limited

6.5

Dividends were paid to the following related parties:
Foschini Stores (Pty) Limited
The Foschini Share Incentive Trust

40,5
36,1

76,6

o 00 0 0 C 0
c 0O 0O O O 0 O
O 00 0O 0 O ¢

|
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shareholdings

Foschini Limited

Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2008

Spread analysis Number of Number of Percentage of
shareholdings % of total shares held  shares in issue
1 — 1 000 shares 1930 51,0 796 691 0.3
1 001 ~ 10 000 shares 1218 32,2 4192 295 1,7
10 001 -~ 1006 000 shares 394 10,5 130472 150 55
100 001 — 1 000 000 shares 196 52 60 696 439 252
1 D00 001 shares and over 43 1,1 161 740 666 67,3
3781 100,0 240 498 241 1000 -
Distribution of shareholdings
Number of Number of Percentage of
Category shareholdings % of total shares held  shares in issue
Banks 84 22 55925 933 232
Companies 223 59 39992 491 16,6
Insurance companies 28 0,7 7385139 31
Mutuat funds 170 4,5 47 671 031 19,8
Nominee companies and trusts 568 15,0 17 293 446 7.2
Pension and provident funds 230 6,1 60 259 382 25,1
Individuals 2478 65.6 11670 819 50
3781 100,0 240 498 241 1000
Beneficial shareholdings greater than 5%
Beneficial interests — direct and indirect as per share register and
information supplied by nominee companies as at 31 March 2008 Holding Percentage
Foschini Stores {Pty) Limited 24 049 824 10,0
Public Investment Corporation 14 251 406 59
tnvestment Selutions 13 685 663 57
Lewis family 15154 737 6,3
67 141 630 279
Fund managers’ holdings greater than 5%
According to disclosures made, the following fund managers
administered client portfolios which included more than 5%
of the company's issued shares Holding Percentage
investec Asset Management (SA} 46 363 882 19,3
Prudential Portfofic Managers 18 949 390 79
Franklin Resources Inc 12 357 438 51
77670710 323
Shareholding spread Number of
beneficiat Number of Percentage of
Category shareholdings % of fotal shares held  shares in issue
Public 3744 99,0 182 824 675 76,0
Directors 34 09 21739790 9,1
Trustees 2 6.1 11 883 952 49
Subsidiary 1 - 24 043 824 10,0
Total 3781 100,0 240 498 241 100,0
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notice of annual general meeting

Foschini Limited

Notice is hereby given that the seventy-first Annual
General Meeting of shareholders of FOSCHINI LIMITED
will be held at Stanley Lewis Centre, Voortrekker Road,
Parow East, Cape Town on Wednesday, 3 September
2008 at 12h15 for the following purposes:

Ordinary resolution number 1

To receive and adopt the annual financial statements of the
comparty and the group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Ordinary resolution number 2

To reappoint KPMG fnc. as auditors of the company until the
following Annual General Meeting, and to authorise the
directors to determine their remuneration for the past year.

Ordinary resolution number 3

To approve the remuneration 10 be paid to non-executive
directors for the year ending 31 March 2009, details of which
are as follows:

Chairman R780 000
Deputy chairman £175 000
Audit committee chairman R120 000
Risk committee chairman R85 000
Director R160 000
Member of audit committee R40 000
Member of remuneration committee R32 500
Member of transformation committee R32 500

Ordinary resolution number 4

To re-elect Mr R Stein who is retiring by rotation as executive
director, in accordance with the provisions of the articles of
association of the company; Mr Stein, being efigible, offers
himself for re-election as an executive director,

R Stein {58)

Ronnie Stein has been an executive director of the company
since 1999. He is a member of both the risk and
transformation committees.

Ordinary resolution number S

To re-elect Mr N H Goedwin who is retiring by rotation as an
Independent non-executive director, in accordance with the
provisions of the articles of association of the company,
Mr Goodwin, being eligible, offers himself for re-election as an
independent non-executive director.

N H Goodwin {68}

Neville Goodwin has been a director of the company since
1989, first as an executive director and for the past number of

years as an independent non-executive director. He is a
member of the audit committee.

Crdinary resolution number 6

To re-elect Mr M Lewis who is retiring by rotation as a non-
executive director, in accordance with the provisions of the
articles of association of the company; Mr Lewis, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election as a non-executive director.

Mr M Lewis (49)

Michael Lewis has been a4 non-executive director of the
company since 1989,

Special resolution number 1

“Resulved that, the company hereby approves, as & general
approval contemplated in sections 85(2) and 85(3) of the
Companies Act, 1973 {Act No. 61 of 1973), as amended (“the
Act™), the acquisition by the company or any of its subsidiaries
from time to time of the issued ordinary shares of the
company, upon such terms and conditions and in such
amounts as the directors of the company may from time to
time determine, bul subject to the articles of association of the
company, the provisions of the Act and the Listings
Requirements of the JSE Limited (*JSE"} as presently
constituted and which may be amended from time to time, and
subject to the following:

1. the repurchase of securities being effected through the
order book operated by the JSE trading system and done
without any prior understanding or arrangement between

the company and the counterparty (reported trades are -

prahibited);

2. approval by shareholders in terms of a special resolution
of the company, in annua! general/general meeting, which
shall be valid only until the next annual general meeting or
for 15 months from the date of the resolution, whichever
period is shorter;

3. repurchases may not be made at a price greater than 10%
above the welghted average of the market value for the
securities for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the transaction is effected;

4, at any peint in time, a company may only appoint ane
agent to effect any repurchase/s on the company’s behalf;

5. issuers may only undertake a repurchase of securities, if,
after such repurchase, it stilt complies with paragraphs 3.37
to 3.41 concerning shareholder spread requirements;

6. an issuer or its subsidiary may not repurchase securifies
during & prohibited period as defined in paragraph 3.67;
and
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notice of onnual general meeting continued

foschini Limited

7. in terms of this general approval, the acquisition of
ordinary shares in any ene financial year may not exceed,
in aggregate, 20% of the company’s issued share capital
of thal class, at ihe time that approval is granted, and the
acquisition of shares by a subsidiary of the company may
not exceed 10% in aggregate, in any one finangial year, of
the number of issued shares of the company of that class.

Statement by the board of directors of the company

Pursuant to and in terms of the Listings Requirements of the
JSE, the board of directors of the company hereby states:

1. the intention of the directors of the company is to ulifise
the general authority if al some fulure date the cash
resources of the company are in excess of its
requirements. In this regard the directors will take account
of, infer alia, an appropriate capitalisation structure for the
company, the long-term cash needs of the company, and
will ensure that any such utllisation is in the interests of
shareholdets; and

2. in determining the method by which the company intends
10 repurchase its sectrilies, the maximum number of
securities o be repurchased and the date on which such
repurchase will take place, the directors of the company
will ensure that;

2.1 the company and the group will be able to pay their
debts as they become due in the ordinary course of
buginess for the next 12 months;

2.2 the assets of the company and the group will be in
excess of the liabilities of the company and Lhe group
for the next 12 months. For this purpose, the assets
ang liabllities will be recognised and measured in
accoigance with the accounting policies used in the
latest audited consolidated annual financial
statements;

2.3 the issued share capital and reserves of the
company and the group will be adequate for the
purposes of the business of the company and the
group for the next 12 months; and

2.4 the working capital available 1o the company and the
group will be sufficient for the group's requirements
for the next 12 months,

The board of directors of the company will notify the
shargholders of the terms of the repurchase of the company
shares by publishing an announcement in the press in
accordance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE should
the company or its subsidiaries cumulatively repurchase move
than 3% of the company’s kssued share capilal.
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The toard of directors will ensure that {s sponsor provides the
necessary sponsor letter on the adequacy of the working
capital in terms of section 2.12 of the JSE Limited Listings
Reguirements, prior to the commencement of any purchases of
Foschinl Limited shares on the open market aftes the date of the
Annual General Mesting of the company on 3 September 2008.

Reason and effect of special rasolution number 1

The reason for special resolution number 1 is 10 grant the
company a general authority in terms of the Act for the
apquisition by the company or any of its subsidiaries of shares
issued by the company, which authority shall be valic until the
carlier of the next annual general meeting of the company o
the variation or revocation of such genera! authortty by speciel
resolution by any subseguent general meeting of the company,
provided that the general authority shall not exend beyond 15
months from the date of this general meeting. The passing and
registration of this special resolution will have the effect of
autharising the company or any of its subsidiaries to acquire
shares issued by the company.

Ordinary resolution number 7

“Resolved that, any director of the company be and is hereby
authorised to do alt such hings and sign all such documenis
as may be necessary for or incidental to the implementation of
ordinary resoiutions 1 to 6 and special resolution number 1
praposed at the meeting convened to consider this resoksdion.”

To transact any other business that may be fransacted at
an annual general meeting.

Section 11.26{h) of the Listings Requirements requires the
following disclosure, somg of which is included in the annual
report of which this nolice forms part:

- girectors and management {section 11.26[W5) — refer
pages 1210 15;

~  major shareholders (section 11.26{)(i) — refer page 168;

— material change {section 11.26(e){ii) - there have been
no material changes In the affairs or financial position of
Foschini Limited and its subsidlaries since the date of its
financial year-end and the date of this notice;

— directors’ interests in Foschini Limited shares {section
11.26()(w) — refer note 14.5;

— share capital of Foschini Limited (section 11.26(0)(v) —
refer note 14;

— directors’ responsibility statement (section 11.26{)(vi) ~
the directors, whose names appear on pages 12 ang 13
of the annual report of which this notice forms par,
collectively and Individuatly accept full responsibifity for the




notice of annual general meeting continued

Foschini Limited

accuracy of Information pertaining lo this notice and
certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief there
are no facts that have been omitted which would make
any statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable
enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that
this notice contains all such information; and

~ [litlgation statement {section 11.26{)(vi)) - there was no
material litigation against the company of any of its
subsidiaries at the end of the financial year.

General instructions

Members are encouraged to atiend, speak and vole al the
annual general meeting.

It you hold shares in cenilicated form (.. you have not
demaierialised your shares) or are registered as an “own
name” dematerialised shareholder, then;

— you may attend and vote at this meeting: aliematively

- you may appoint a proxy to represent you at the meeting
by completing the attached form of proxy ang loaging it
with the transfer secretaries of the company at least 24
heurs before the time of the meating.

If you have dematerialised your shares and are not regisiered
s an “own name demateriatised shareholder® {i.e. specifically
instructed your Central Securities Depository Participanl
(‘CSDPM) to hold your shares in your own name on the
company's sub-register), then, subject to the custody
agreemen! between yourself and your CSDP or broker:

~ if you wish {0 attend the meeting you must contact your
CSDP or broker, as the case may be, and obtain the
refevant letter of representation from it; allernatively

— if you are unable to attend the meeting but wish 1o be
represented at the meeting, you must contact your CSDP
or broker, as the case may be, and fumish it with your
voling instructions in respect of the meeting. You must not
complere the attached form of proxy. The instructions
must be provided in accordance with the custody
agreement between yourself ang your CSDP or broker, as
the case may be, withint the time perlod required by your
CSOP or broker, as the case may be.

CSDPs, brokers or their nominees, as the case may be,
recorded in the company's sub-register should, when
authorised in terms of their mandate or instructed to do so by
the owner on behalf of whom they hotd dematesialised shares
in the company, vote by either appainting a duly authorised
representalive to attend and woie at the meeting ar by
completing the attached form of proxy bn accordance with the
instructlons thereon and fodging it with the transter secretaries
of the company at least 24 hours before the time of the
meeting.

By order of the board

D SHEARD
Secretary

11 June 2008
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FOSCHINI

Form OF proxv FOSCHINI LIMITED

Foschini Limited
JSE code: FOS ISIN: ZAEQOOO31019
Incorporaied in the Republic of South Africa Reg. No. 1937/009504/06)

To be returned o The Transfer Secretaries, Computershara Investor Services (Pty) Limiteg, 70 Marshall Stregt, Johannesburg, 2001
{PO Box 61051, Marshafltown, 2107) as soon as possible and not later than 24 hours before the meeting, excluding Salurdays,
Sundays and public holidays.

FORM OF PROXY (N.B. FOR USE ONLY BY CERTIFICATED AND “OWN NAME" DEMATERIALISED SHAREHOLDERS)
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING WEDNESDAY, 3 SEPTEMBER 2008 AT 12h15

e (full names)

of {address)

being a member(s) of Foschini Limited and entitled ta voles (ONE PER SHARE HELD)

hereby appoint or failing himMmer

or tailing himvher the chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to act for me/us at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be
held at 12h1%5 on Wednesday, 3 September 2008 at Stanley Lewis Centre, 340 Voortrekier Road, Parow East and al any adjournment
thereof as follows:

Insert X in appropriate block
For Against Abstain

Crdinary resolution No. 1 - appravat of annual financia! statements

Ordinary resolution No. 2 — reappaintment of the auditors

Ordinary resolution No. 2 — approval of directors’ fees for the year ending

31 March 2009

Ordinary resolution No. 4 - election of Mr R Stein as a director

Ordinary resofution No. 5 - election of Mr N H Goodwin as a director

Cdinary resolution No. 6 - election of Mr M Lewis as a director

Special resolution No. 1 — general authority to repurchase company shares

Crdinary resolution No. 7 — general authority of directors

Signed this day of 2008

Signature Assisted by (where applicalle)

Piease read the notes on the reverse side of this proxy form.
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form of proxy continued

Notes

1,

The person whose name stands first on the proxy form and who is present at the annual general meeting will be entitied to act

as a proxy to the exclusion of those whose nz2mes follow thereafter. if no proxy is inserted in the spaces provided, the chairman -

shall be deemed to be appointed as the proxy.
Unfess otherwise instrucied above, 2 proxy is entitled to vote as he thinks fit.
A proxy appointed by a member to attend, speak and vote in his stead need not also be a member of the company.

In order to be effective this praxy form, and the power of attomey or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, must be
RECEIVED by the transfer secretaries of the company, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited not less than twenty-four (24)
hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or any adjournment thereof, as the case may be, at which the proxy
proposes to vote, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Any alteration or correction made 10 this proxy form must ba initalled by the signatory/fies, but may not be accepied by the
chairman,

if you hold shares In certificated form (i.e. you heve not dematerialised your shares) or are registered as an “own name’
dematerialised shareholder, then yeu may attend and vote at this meeting; altematively you may appoint a proxy {o represent you
at the meeting by completing the zttached form of proxy and lodging it with the transfer secretaries of the company to be
RECEIVED at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

If you have dematerialised your shares and are not registered as an “own name dematerialised shareholder® {i.e. specifically
insiructed your Central Securities Depository Participant ("CSDP) to hold your shares in your own name on the company’s sub-
register), then, subject 1o the custady agreement between yourse!t and your CSOP or broker:

* if you wish to attend the meeting you must contact your CSDP or broker, as the case may be, and obtain the relevant lefter
of representation from it; atternatively

+  if you are unable to aftend the meeting but wish to be represented at the meeting, you must contact your CSDP or broker,
as the case may be, and furnish it with your voting Instructiens In respect of the meeting. You must NOT complete the
attached form of proxy. The instructions must be provided in accordance with the custody agreement between yourself and
your CSDP or braker, as the case may be, within the time period required by your CSDP or broker, as the case may be.

CS0Ps, brokers or their nominees, as the case may be, recorded in the company's sub-register should, when authorised in terms
of thefr mandate or Instructed to do so by the awner on hehalf of whom they hold dematerialised shares in the company, vole by
either appointing a duly authorised representative to attend and vote at the meeting or by completing the attached form of proxy
in accordance with the instructions thereon and lodging it with the transfer secretaries of the company at least 24 hours before
the time of the meeting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

@novlu
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